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IMPROVING ACCESS TO STUDENT FINANCIAL
AID INFORMATION

THURSDAY, MARCH 21, 1991

U.S. SENATE,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT INFORMATION AND

REGULATION, COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS,
Washington, DC.

The Subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:35 a.m., in room
SD-342, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Hon. Herbert Kohl presid-
ing.

Present: Senators Kohl and Cohen.

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR KOHL

Senator KOHL. Good morning. I would like to thank you all for
joining our subcommittee this morning.

The purpose of this morning's hearing is to highlight the lack of
information about educational and career opportunities for young
people beyond high school. Lack of information has several conse-
quences. If economically disadvantaged kids think that there is no
way they can go to college, then why bother with high school? Lack
of information can result in a sense of hopelessness and despair.
And if middle-income families think there is no aid available for
their children, then they lower expectations, and we lose the bene-
fits of maximizing those kids' potentials.

If pre-college counselors and aid administrators can't get the in-
formation they need about the public and private aid available or
about successful early intervention programs, then they cannot
possibly fulfill the expectations that we have of them.

Education is on everybody's list as the number-one priority
facing our country. Of course, there are many other important con-
cerns, but for some time we have all known how important it is to
move this country dramatically on the road to education. We have
an education President. We have national education goals. We
have new recommendations from the Committee for Economic De-
velopment, along with reminders of what it costs us not to invest in
our young people.

Our future in every conceivable way literally hangs on the
threads of our action or inaction with respect to education. And
our action is a long time coining.

This hearing hopefully is about more than words and good inten-
tions. After awhile, all this talk with no action gets quite trite. We
must act. The SCAN legislation that we have sponsored is our con-
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tribution to the need for action, and we are committed to working
this program through the legislative process.

If the Department of Education would be so kind as to save us all
that trouble by working it into the legislative process, by simply in-
corporating SCAN into their higher education agenda, I would be
very pleased.

Judge Canellos, you are joining us today in your capacity as
Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary of the Office of Student Finan-
cial Assistance. Perhaps you might just walk up to the White
House and tell the President that while going through some of the
past reauthorization bills, you found the other 9 percent in public
approval rating that he is looking for to get the 100 percent. Tell
him that it is right here in Senator Kohl's education bill.

Seriously, my concern is one that I do believe is shared by the
President and the First Lady. It is simply this: We know there are
millions of kids who are falling through the cracks, millions of kids
who give up long before their senior year in high school, millions of
kids who, beginning some time around the ages of 5 or 9 or 12,
start losing hope of ever going to college, much less fulfilling their
dreams.

In addition to these kids, there are millions of young people out
there who do not have some of the benefits that many of us in this
room enjoy. Their parents are perhaps not wealthy, nor college
educated, nor well informed. Those young people and their parents
may not have the foggiest idea of how to go about selecting a col-
lege and putting together a financial aid package, and yet in many
ways it is the investment decision of a lifetime.

To the extent that there is public aid available to economically
disadvantaged young people, to the extent that there are private
sources of aid available to middle-class families, then our failure to
get that message out, intervene on behalf of those young people,
and help to fulfill those potentials is an unacceptable and a moral
tragedyfor them and for us.

I do not pretend to have the answers, and I want to hear from
our witnesses what they think of our proposal.

First, I think the Department of Education should take a lesson
from the success of the Army's "Be All You Can Be" campaign.
The Army has, to its credit, encouraged and inspired young people
to look at the Army as a way of bettering themselves through job
training and a college education. We should emulate that to recruit
more young people into college and vocational education.

Second, 1 think we need to shore up the pre-college counselor
system and do more early intervention. We need to train and assist
the professionals to better help these children and their families.

And, finally, we need to make information about colleges, voca-
tional schools, application deadlines, forms, and public and private
financial aid readily accessible. There have been repeated efforts to
do this in the FIrste, and most have failed. SCAN would set up a
co mputer data at the Department of Education which would
put all of this information on line in one place for the first time.
NYe ought to employ one-stop shopping when it comes to higher
education.

That is our starting point. I look forward to working with my col-
leagues on this Subcommittee, as well as the members of the Labor
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Committee who will be tackling the larger issues of the Higher
Education Reauthorization Act this year. We are committed to
making some real and tangible progress on improving access to
postsecondary education.

We are all pleased to be here today, and I would like to ask Sen-
ator Cohen if he has some opening remarks.

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR COHEN

Senator CoHEN. Thank you. Mr. Chairman, let me commend you
for holding the hearing and introducing your legislation, and I join
with you in supporting the goals of that legislation.

There ere two key points that you touched upon: one is dissemi-
nation of information, and the second is lifting up students' aspira-
tions. I would suggest that students give up the dream of going on
to college or even completing high school long before they deal
with the financial aid question. That is way off in the distance as
far as most of them are concerned. A student who would like to go
to college assumes it is an impossible dream because of the cost,
and this is only one manifestation of a more general trend. There
is a crisis of opportunity, aspiration, and hope among the adoles-
cents and young families in this country, and I think it is reaching
epidemic proportions. Nearly one-fifth of America's children now
live in poverty. Nearly one-third of our children face educational
and even lifelong failure. And this year alone, one million margin-
ally literate young people will drop out of high school.

Faced with such an uncertain future, I don't think it is at all sur-
prising that so many of our children lack the ambition or, indeed,
motivation to break out of this cycle.

I share the view of the Chairman that the need to raise the aspi-
rations of our youth is of paramount priority for kids of all ages. In
my State, the problem is being addressed. We have the office of the
Governor, the University of Maine, and a number of business lead-
ers who have signed on to the Maine Aspirations Compact, which
directly involves businesses in schools. That commitment has paid
off, and a number of business/school partnerships are currently in
operation all over my State.

To give you one example. Geiger Brothers is a printing and ad-
vertising company in Lewiston, Maine. It publishes the famous
Farmers' Almanac. Well, it has instituted a special relationship
with the Monte llo Elementary School through the Adopt-A-School
program, and Geiger Brothers has donated its resources to estab-
lish several programs which give the Monte llo stud_nts special at-
tention that has made a very significant difference in their lives.

We also have the Piscataquis Community High School in Guil-
ford which has increased the number of seniors who go on to some
type of postsecondary educational institution from a 10 percent
level in 1980 to a 75 percent level most recently because of this as-
pirations-directed program.

I want to join with you, Mr. Chairman, in commending the
Army's "Be All You Can Be" program. On a recent tripand I
have made many of these trips, but on a recent trip last fall to the
Persian Gulf, a number of Senators were along on that trip. And it
was almost a common assessment as we looked at the individuals
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who were in the Persian Gulf, in all servicesthe Army, Air Force,
Navy, Marine Corpsit was one of absolute pride to look at these
young people, look at what they are doing, look at their expertise,
look at the equipment they are handling with such pride and confi-
dence. Why is it we can only do this in the military? Why is it we
haven't got programs like this across the board to take these skills?
These kids were off the streets, from ghetto areas, low-income,
middle-income, upperit didn't matter. The kind of jobs that they
were performing was astonishing. And yet we don't have a pro-
gram that promotes the "Be MI You Can Be" attitude in other
areas.

I would like to take a modest amount of credit for helping to
reinstitute the GI Bill. As a result of reinstituting that bill back in
the early 1980's, we have done a great deal to attract young people
into our military services, who then look forward to going on to
completing their education.

Finally, let me say, Mr. Chairman, that what we need is some
inspirational leadership. Believe it or not, I watched the Democrat-
ic Convention during the election last time, and I took some notes
on it. And I remember when Jesse Jackson concluded his speech. It
was a very moving, and emotional, and I think uplifting speech
when he said, "Keep hope alive, keep hope alive." That is our obli-
gation here today and tomorrow and into the future.

There if an old familiar expression that if you would like to
plant for a year, you plant wheat or grain. If you would like to
plant for a decade or two, you plant trees. If you would like to
plant for the centuries, then you plant children. And you plant
them in the rich and fertile soil of education so that they can flour-
ish in the years to come. That is what this hearing is about, and I

look forward to the testimony of the witnesses today.
Thank you.
Senator KOHL Thank you, Senator Cohen,
We have three panels. On our first panel today, we have two dis-

tinguished people with us. Colonel John Myers. Colonel Myers is a
Director of the United States Army Recruiting Command Advertis-
ing and Public Affairs Office. Colonel Myers comes to us with ex-
tensive experience in the public affairs field and has been involved
in various capacities within the Army. He is also a graduate of the
University of Wisconsin.

And we have with us the Honorable Ernest Canellos. Judge Can-
ellos serves as the Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary for Student
Financial Aid Assistance in the Department of Education. Judge
Canellos, also a veteran of the United States Armed Forces, the
United States Air Force, has had considerable experience in post-
secondary education, both in the institutions themselves and more,
since 1990, at the Department of Education in his current position.
We are pleased to have you with us this morning.

Colonel Myers?
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TESTIMONY OF COLONEL JOHN C. MYERS.' DIRECTOR. ADVER-
TISING AND PUBLIC AFFAIRS. UNITED STATES ARMY RECRUIT-

ING COMMAND
Colonel Alms. Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, it

is a pleasure to appear bi fore this committee and share insights
with the members concerning the Army's "Be All You Can Be"
campaign. I have prepared a detailed history of this historic cam-
paign, the strategy and objectives of that program, and I offer it for
your review and inclusion in the record.

Senator Komi- Without objection.
Colonel MYERS. I have a brief statement that summarizes some of

the major points I think will be useful to you, sir. The military
services are authorized to advertise because recruiters can't possi-
bly reach the 20 million young people of prime enlistment age un-
aided. Advertising gives military recruiters a hand, and Army re-
cruiters are fortunate in being helped by one of the best campaigns
in advertising history.

The "Be All You Can Be" campaign originated from a zero-based
review of the advertising program undertaken in January of 1980.
This review culminated in creative recommendations being pre-
sented to the Department of Army in June of that same year. Test-
ing and production of the improved creative concepts proceeded
during the summer and fall months, and the first ads airt-d in Jan-
uary of 1981.

Initial "Be All You Can Be" ads capitalized on the Army's new
technology to counteract the "Willie and Joe" image that research
had revealed as a major barrier to serious consideration of Army
service. In commercial advertising terms, it aimed for an improved
brand image, and tracking studies showed that it succeeded. How-

ever, the campaign has remained vital through continuous review
and adjustment of advertising treatments and strategic objectives
as we have learned more about enlistment motivation and have
adapted to our changing circumstances. Different phases of the
campaign have been characterized by changes in the last line of
the Army "Be All You Can Be" song that is so memorable. Origi-
nally it was, "Because we need you in the Army."

A more positive closing line, "You can do it in the Army," was
introduced in 1983, with advertising strongly promoting the Army
College Fund, which offered up to $25,200 for post-service education
to those who qualified. This was followed in 1985 by "Find your
future in the Army," after research revealed that the best pros-
pects goal-oriented and look at Army service as a means to a
onger-term end. Ads featured young soldiers speaking in the first
person about how their Army experience related to their aspira-
tions for the future.

The same future-oriented thrust was maintained as the Army
changed advertising agencies in 1987, but the idea was expressed a
little bit differently in the signature line, "Get an edge on life." Ini-

tial ads usinF this line were similar in content to earlier "Be All
You Can Be' ads, but its full implications begin to be expressed in

1 The prepared statement of Col. Myers appears on page ltr2
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the "Army Advantages" campaign, which was introduced early in
1989 and which we have with us today.

The name derives from a refocusing away from short-term bene-
fits and toward the long-term advantages of serving. It was sup-
ported by labor market research which indicated that volunteer
Army era soldiers do transfer technical skills and good work habits
into the civilian workforce. A key study, and one cited in "Army
Advantages" advertising, was a survey of employers conducted by
the Committee for Economic Development. This research did not
specifically study soldiers, but its findings did reveal that what we
consider soldierly qualitiesgood work habits, good interpersonal
skills--are highly valued by today's employers. A new but compa-
rable study recently completed by the HumRRo Corporation work-
ing under contract to the Army Research Institute has focused
more explicitly on the military experience itself and has obtained
similar results.

A major review of the advertising program was conducted in
1990 by the Army Recruiting Command and Young & Rubicam, the
Army's contract ad agency.

Two specific recommendations emerged. A barrier to consider-
ation of Army service had revealed itself in the form of a strong
objection to the regimentation many research respondents felt was
characteristic of soldiering. Many young soldiers, however, offered
a different perspective to agency personnel as they visited Army in-
stallations, a perspective that supports an individually challenging
portrayal of an Army experience in which young soldiers are given
opportunities to influence events. This was translated into story
boards for television which feature young soldiers, one a Ranger
and the other a Cavalry Scout, dealing with heavy personal respon-
sibilities during the conduct of training exercises.

A variety of opportunities to extend the "Army Advantages"
idea were identified and exploited. A television scenario employing
quick cuts of soldiers in action displays a variety of reasons why
today's employers want to hire people with the skills and attributes
acquired in Army service. Support for this claim comes from the
survey of employees recently completed by HumRRo.

In just a few minutes, with your permission, I will show you the
three spots that I have just referred to.

In addressing the "Army Advantages" idea to the high school
students who represent our largest source of potential recruits, the
greater selectivity that comes with smaller Army manpower needs
enables us to make common cause with educators in urging stu-
dents to graduate and qualify. A high school "Stay in School" cam-
paign including posters, public service announcements, and other
support items have been extremely well received by high school
educators in the Southeast, and the concept was expanded nation-
ally during this school year. Additionally, promotional materials di-
rected to the business community provide reasons to "support your
local recruiter" and also to seek out and take advantage of "Army
alumni" in solving the highly publicized "skill gap" that confront
our Nation,

The new additions to the Army advertising pool amplify and
extend our ability to address prospective enlistees and also the
adults who influence them. They will, further, promote the trend

ii



toward a converging interest of the Army, educations and business
people in activities that improve the productive capabilities of the
Nation's young people as an important byproduct of national de-
fense. We want a win-win situation for our young people also.

It is important to remember, in summary, however, that Army
recruiters as role models and expert representatives of the Army
are the key to recruiting success. In a manner of speaking, Army
advertising helps to open mental doors of prospects and their in-
fluencers to the opportunities offered by Army service. It is the
interaction by recruiters with young people, their parents, and,
very importantly, school administrators and counselors, that makes
the difference. We in Army advertising are happy to play an essen-
tial part in Army recruiting with materials that contribute to re-
cruiting success. I have prepared a package of these types of mate-
rials for the members which illustrate the kind of messages we use
and the ways in which we place those messages before various
prospect and influencer audiences.

Now, Mr. Chairman, I will be very happy to try to answer any of
your questions. I do have three of our latest television spots that
demonstrate some of the communication strategies that we are em-
ploying and will employ when we resume our sales offer advertis-
ing later this summer. Following the three spots is the transitional
advertising that we are using right now that you may have seen on
TV in the last couple of weeks, which reinforces the American peo-
ples confidence in their Army and what their soldiers have accom-
plished and what they will accomplish for them in the future.

Senator KOHL. Thank you very much, Colonel Myers. We will get
to your spots in a minute.

Judge Cane llos, good to have you with us.

TESTIMONY OF HON. ERNEST C. CANELLOS,1 AcnNG DEPUTY
ASSISTANT SECRETARY, OFFICE OF STUDENT FINANCIAL AS-
SISTANCE, UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Judge CANELLOS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Senator Cohen. I

likewise have a short statement I would like to read, and I have
some material that I will pass on to the Committee for their exami-
nation after my presentation.

It is a pleasure to appear before you today to talk about the De-
partment of Education's dissemination of information related to
Federal, State, and other programs of student financial assistance.
We support a wide variety of activities designed to inform high
school and college students, their parents, and high school and col-
lege counselors, about the student assistance programs under Title
IV of the Higher Education Act. These activities range from target-
ing and distributing publications for students to more than 40,000
secondary schools and other community and State and private or-
ganizations each year, to funding training programs and specific
educational access programs that target low-income, often first-gen-
eration students for recruitment and placement, with the necessary
financial assistance, in a postsecondary institution. Let me share
with you some of the particulars of our efforts.

' The prepared statement of Judge Cancljos appear* on page 1 lo



8

For the current fiscal year, the Congress has appropriated more
than $12 billion to the Title IV student assistance programs. In
order for students and parents to benefit from the availability of
these funds, they must first know that they are there to aid stu-
dents that are eligible. Therefore, each year we publish a "Student
Guide" of' about 50 pages of' information describing the major Fed-
eral programs, the terminology, student rights and responsibilities,
and the student loan default avoidance programs. We distribute 9
million copies of this guide to high schools, colleges, libraries, com-
munity agencies, and individual students and parents.

Parenthetically, we provide numerous copies of these to each
Member of Congress for distribution to their constituents. We also
provide a copy of this pamphlet on request.

We also design a colorful poster announcing the availability of
Federal student financial aid. It is given to high schools and to
high school students. It basically is a short ready reference to stu-
dent financial assistance. It provides also a reference to where fur-
ther information may be available to these students.

We also involve counselors in high school and TRIO projects, in
Urban League and rural service center organizations in our efforts
to disseminate information about the fmancial aid programs. This
fall we plan to publish the Counselor's Handbook, a resource for
guidance personnel who must answer student questions about the
F'ederal student assistance programs. These counselors also assist
students and parents in completing application forms for these pro-
grams. We expect to mail more than 40,000 copies of the Counsel-
or's Handbook to student service personnel in the high school
areas. In conjunction with the "Student Guide," this handbook will
provide the college and secondary school and community counsel-
ors with key information they need to carry out the critical role in
publicizing these programs to millions of high school and college
students who need this information.

To the extent that our resources permit, we also tailor our publi-
cation to the needs of specific segments of the student population of
this country. Thus, we print and distribute an application for Fed-
eral student financial assistance, which is a free form the students
may use to apply for all Federal assistance. We print 13 million
copies of this and distribute them to the varying sectors where they
may be used. We also print 1.3 million copies in Spanish so that
they may be utilized by those who are not totally fluent in the Eng-
lish language. We also distribute 50,000 copies of a student aid fact
sheet which is in Spanish, which is a general boiling down of the
"Student Guide" and provides basically the same information in
Spanish. We would like to have printed this also in Spanish, but
we didn't have the funding to do that.

We are also developing a new publication for students in middle
school and the early high school grades that will emphasize how
careful academic and financial planning can put college within the
reach of all qualified students. Finally, we distribute 20,000 copies
of another ED publication, the "Higher Educational Opportunities
for Minorities and Women," to many of the same groups that I
have mentioned earlier. This publication describes public and pri-
vate sources of student assistance which are of special interest to
that audience.

13
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In addition to these publications, we have also operated a Feder-

al Student Aid Information Center for more than 10 years. This
center consists of a staff of highly trained and knowledgeable spe-
cialists who operate a bank of toll-free telephone lines to respond
to general questions about student assistance from students, par-
ents, and school guidance counselors. These counselors also help
with more specific requests for assistance in completing application
forms, verifying the status of the student application, or forwarding
copies of publications. To make certain that the Center's services
are widely publicized, we print and distribute a brochure describing
it to more than 40,000 individual organizations in our network of
high school, college, and State and local community agencies.

During 1990, this Center responded to more than 1 million tele-
phone calls and more than 200,000 written requests for informa-
tion. We are pleased with the quality of this service that the
Center provides, and we find it a very useful function.

Incidentally, it is done by contract with the Department of Edu-

cation, with a contractor here in Maryland.
I have described some of the major publications we develop and

distribute throughout the Nation each year using an information
dissemination network that we are continuing to refine and
expand. In an effort to make certain that we do not inadvertently
omit any group or individual needing these publications and infor-
mation, we also coordinate our dissemination efforts with other
Federal and State dissemination activities. We make copies of our

publications available through the Consumer Information Center
operated by the General Services Administration. We publicize our
publications to educational associations, such as the National
Scholarship Service for Negro Students, and the professional asso-
ciations representing high school and college guidance counselors

and college financial aid officers. We also make our staff available
to provide information to many of the columnists who write arti-
cles for students and parents seeking information regarding stu-
dent financial assistance. Through the media, we reach a still
larger audience and further ensure that vital information is re-
ceived by the public.

The Department also funds access and retention programs that
have as their objective the identification, recruitment, preparation,
and admission to postsecondary education of low-income, first-gen-

eration college students. The largest of these programs are the
TRIO programs. Two of these, the Talent Search and Upward
Bound, work with students and adults who are not yet enrolled in
college and provide them with counseling regarding college admis-

sion and financial assistance. We currently fund more than 170
Talent Search programs that work with students and adults to pre-

pare them for entering into postsecondary education. For the first
time, 58 of these programs have been approved to serve seventh
and eighth graders and will work with them to ensure that the stu-
dents stay in school long enough to benefit from the programs that
the student financial assistance program helps to make available
for college. Beginning later this year, all Talent Search projects
will be required to provide seventh and eighth grade students and
their parents this counseling and financial aid information. In this
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fiscal year, the Talent Search programs will reach 245,000 students
with college admission counseling and student aid information.

The second of the TRIO programs that serves as an access pro-
gram for secondary students is the Upward Bound program. Cur-
rently, there are more than 37,000 students participating in more
than 500 Upward Bound programs throughout the Nation. Upward
Bound counselors work with tenth, eleventh, and twelfth graders to
improve their academic skills and utItimately to enroll them in
postsecondary education. Upward Bound projects also are required
to provide information about student financial assistance and col-
lege admissions to their students. These programs have played a
significant role in the dissemination of information and financial
aid available to the disadvantaged and minority students.

Another discretionary grant program is the Department's pro-
gram through the Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary
Education, and they have supported individual projects over the
years that work with low-income and disadvantaged students to
place them in a college with adequate financial assistance. A
recent FIPSE grant supports a 6-week summer camp during which
tenth and eleventh graders will attend workshops addressing col-
lege admission and financial aid for high school students interested
in teaching careers. One of the smaller TRIO programs, Education-
al Opportunity Centers, provides college and financial aid counsel-
ing services to their clients as well. We also fund a number of
access programs targeted to graduate studies. These programs pro-
vide information about student aid to needy undergraduates whose
ability to pursue a graduate degree hinges on the availability of
Federal and other sources of aid.

We recognize our responsibility to publicize and disseminate in-
formation about Federal programs. Through our program of publi-
cations, information centers relying on toll-free banks, and out-
reach programs, we believe we perform a vital service in this area.
We are proud of the quality of the publications, our information
center, and our outreach programs. In tandem with these efforts,
we certainly continue to analyze our application system to assure
that it is simplified and that the application process not be so com-
plicated as to dissuade people from applying for student aid. Taken
together, these activities constitute a significant and hopefully suc-
cessful national effort to publicize to the Nation's parents and the
students the importance of student financial assistance.

Likewise, I will be ready to answer any questions that the Com-
mittee might have.

Senator KOHL. Thank you very much, Judge Cane llos.
Before we start with a few questions or comments, would you

like to show us your tape?
Colonel MYERS. At your pleasure, Senator.
Senator KOHL Colonel Myers, we would like to see it very much.
Colonel MYERS. The first three spots were pulled off when we

started the war, and we will get back into our sales message adver-
tising probably mid-summer. The final two spots are the transition-
al patriotic service-to-country spots that we are using right now,
sir.

[Videotape played.]

15
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Colonel Mv Ras. We have about a 30-second separation between
this sequence and the two transitional spots. The transitional spots
you are going to see were put together by existing footage that we
had. We didn't think that we could reintroduce with business as
usual after the historic nature of the event that we went through
in the Persian Gulf, We wanted to reinforce to the American
people the relief they felt and we felt that their Army managed to
prevail in the manner that they did, and we will continue to do so.

[Videotape played.]
Senator KOHL That is very good. That is excellent.
Senator COHEN. Could I offer a couple of comments, Mr. Chair-

man?
Senator KOHL. Yes, go ahead.
Senator COHEN. There were two things that struck me, Colonel.

Number 1, in the first three videos, there wasn't a single woman
present in any of them. Secondly, with respect to the transition
videos, there was just a very fleeting shot of a woman typing at a
computer terminal. And I raise this, Mr. ChairmanI appreciate
your indulgencebecause going back through the 1980's, Colonel, I
have had a lot of involvement in this program because back in the
early 1980's there was quite a drumbeat for going back to the draft.
We had a serious problem, Mr. Chairman, with the quality of the
individuals going into the military. We had a very high level of
Category 4's. We had the Army being ridiculed, having to reduce
its literature to comic strip level. And the drumbeat was on for

many people in the Senate and the House, to let us just go back to
a draft. We will get a cross-section of the community, and we will
have a better force.

There were a number of us that said, wait a minute, what we
have to do is give incentives. What we had done at that point is cut
the Army's advertising budget and then say, gee, you are not at-
tracting the right kind of people. So we said let us go back and put
some money into those budgets. As a result, you started doing some
really very creative advertising.

But even in that process, it struck me that there were very few

women ever shown. And I must say I was impressed with the high-
tech quality of the videos, but I still am not impressed that you
didn't have women doing something other than sitting at a type-
writer.

Colonel MYERS. Can I respond, sir? These are only three of our
current advertising pool, three spots out of that pool which consists
of about 11 or 12 spots. We have to target principally to males 17 to
21, but we do not forget the other elements of the demographics
that makes up our great Army.

As a matter of fact, in that advertising pool, we have one spota
very popular one, too, I might addthat focuses on a signalwoman
doing a job in a field training situation and doing it very well and
being congratulated by her commander.

Senator COHEN. How about helicopter pilots?
Colonel MYERS. We have print advertisements which feature heli-

copter pilots. But we don't ignore the importance of communicating
to a wide range of people, male and female, minorities. We really
take that into consideration. We don't want to overdo anything
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that would focus the wrong message, and I think we do have a
fairly good mix.

Senator COHEN. Let me follow this up on my time. I am taking
the Chairman's time, but go ahead.

Senator KoHL. That is good. That is all right.
Colonel Myers, you have been in your present position for how

many years?
Ccilonel MYERS. The current assignment, sir, I have been there

coming up on 1 year.
Senator KOHL. And you have been involved in this whole recruit-

ment effort for how long?
Colonel MYERS. Coming up on 1 year, sir. This is my first assign-

ment to the Army Recruiting Command. I have been in public af-
fairs for the Army for about 10 years now.

Senator KOHL. And what is your advertising budget?
Colonel MYERS. The advertising budget this fiscal year for the

lar Army is $36 million.
nator Kota. How much of that money is being spent on

media?
Colonel MYERS. Approximately 60 percent of it or better is used

to purchase media of all sortsprint, TV, radio, direct mail, and
recruiting publicity items that our recruiters themselves use, sir.

Senator KOHL. In your testimony, you state that there is a pool
of about 1,320,000 17- to 21-year-old males which the Army targets
in its recruitment program. How do you identify your pool?

Colonel MYERS. The pool is identified from studies from existing
data that defines what our target market is out of the overall de-
mographic of recruitment-age males and females, sir.

Senator KOHL So if you are interested in about 20 percent of this
target group, that would come to about 264,000 men in order to
meet the needs of the volunteer force?

Colonel MYERS. I don't have those figures right in front of me,
sir, but that sounds about right.

Senator KOHL. So you target about 20 percent of the available
pool that is what you are looking for?

Colonel MYERS. Yes, sir.
Senator Korn.. And as a result, do you have choice?
Colonel MYERS. Sir?
Senator KOHL. Do you have choice involved? Do you get to select

whom you want and turn away
Colonel MYERS. Well, we establish recruiting accession standards

that must be met. For example, we accept very, very few prospects
in the lowest middle catwory, and we have a goal for prospects in
the Categories 1 to 3A which are in the upper half of the demo-
graphic as far as the Armed Services Vocational Aptitude Battery
test results. And, of course, the 3B's also, we have a goal for those.

We have a need, a demonstrated needand it has been demon-
strated in the gulf why we have that needof a quality Army. And
so that is why we set those goals, and we have been very successful
in meeting them.

Senator KOHL. So you have the opportunity to pick and choose to
get the quality that you are looking for? You have enough applica-
tions? In terms of your advertising and your outreach, you gener-
ate enough interest
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Colonel MYERS. Yes, sir.
Senator Korn.. so that when .t comes to selection you have

choice?
Colonel MYERS. Yes, sir. As an example, the first quarter of this

fiscal year has been the most successful for us in terms of quality
marks, as we call them in our jargon, for any similar quarter in
the history of the all-recruited Army.

Another very essential element of that quality is possessing a
high school diploma. Senator Cohen mentioned the tremendous
success story of one high school in increasing that, and he under-
stands full well, as all of us do, the importance in the indicators of
the future success for a young person if he fmishes high school.

For this first quarter of fiscal year 1991, our marks were about
97 percent high school diploma graduates, and about better than 67

percent, better than two-thirds, were in the upper middle category,
and less than 2 percent were the Category 4, the lowest possible
score on the ASFAB as far as our standards for enlistment. So we
have been doing very well.

Advertising, of course, is a very important aspect of that success
story, but the recruiters themselves, they are role models in their
communities. They are success stories themselves. They are all
high school diploma graduates. Many of them have college. They
are the keystone of that success story.

Senator Korn,. Judge Cane llos, I think the armed services are
doing a good job, clearly, of recruiting for the target that they
meet, and while they are comparable, they are certainly not exact-
ly identical to what we are trying to accomplish in education. How
would you describe the difficulty of your role?

Judge CANELLOS. Well, let me start off by saying I am envious of
the Army's ability to have a budget that is a recruiting budget in
the first place and an advertising budget on top of that. We don't
have a budget that is earmarked for advertising as such. We have
an S&E budget for our entire department of postsecondary educa-
tion of $53 million, to which we dedicate $3 million for our various
programs of advertising. And obviously coming out of the S&E
budget, it is subject to the cuts and whatever that occurs over time
in t e budget process.

We certainly have been squeezed down to rock bottom by not
being able to do things we would like to do. In fact, last year, we
couldn't even publish our "Student Guide" because of money prob-
lems. We had to publish a fact sheet that was the best we could do
with the money we had.

So truly everything is done trying to solve a problem with as
much money as we can apply to the problem, and there is somehow
never enough money to go to do what we really want to do.

Senator KOHL You have an advertising outreach budget of $3

million, did you say?
Judge CANELLOS. That is it, yes.
Senator Korn,. So in terms of your ability to advertise, to commu-

nicate, the $3 million for the entire United States is almost noth-
ing.

Judge CANELLOS. Well, it is really taken up by a combination of
the publications that we have sent out. That doesn't even include
the contract for our 800-number service which is separately budg-
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eted. So all our publications make up about $3 million worth of our
cost. We have nothing left over. In fact, we have to skimp at the
end of the year to try to make some of these. When some of the
requirements come in which are more than our projections and we
have to reprint, it really is a scamper to try to come up with the
money to do that with. There really isn't anything left over.

Senator KOHL. Why do you think that between the armed serv-
ices and education one is funded adequately and does so well, and
by comparison education is not funded and doesn't do so well?

Judge CANELLOS. Well, I can only speculate, but as Senator
Cohen remarked, when you are in the recruiting business and you
need to gain people for your mission, you have to spend what you
need to spend. The Department of &location's outreach programs
are designed to try to help, but they recognize that the Federal
impact on education is a secondary one and that it is mostly based
on a local funding function. Although we provide $12 billion in stu-
dent financial assistance, that is a small percentage of the actual
impact on money that is applied to the education process in the
United States.

I think the mission of the Department of Education, as I under-
stand it and as it has been portrayed as being not a ministry of
education which is responsible for the education in the United
States, but rather an adjunct and oversight type process, the fund-
ing really isn't there. I suspect that if the mission was to basically
be an education ministry which was responsible for programmatic
as well as other aspects of education, that might be different.

Senator KOHL SO you are saying that the problem, to an extent,
is one in terms of organization, education how it is organized in
this country, the Federal role, as compared to the State and local
roles, versus the armed services that is entirely Federal and is or-
ganized in a certain way and able to get jobs done by getting
money, appropriating money, knowing what their goal is and being
able to execute a plan with all kinds of intervening bodies?

Judge CANELLOS. I think that is in large part very much the case.
I think that our Federal money is appropriated by Congress for
very specific purposes, like our $12 billion in student aid is dedicat-
ed to student aid which has to be given in grants and aid. Our S&E
budget which is given to run the Department as such is the catch-
all for every other aspect of the Department. And as I am sure you
know, when the budget summits result in freezings or don't allow
for expansion of budgets, even though the people are there and in-
flation takes hold, there isn't enough to take care of all the press-
ing needs that there are. And we just have to basically apply the
limited funds that we have to those programs which are mandated
by the law and have very little at the end for the discretionary
purposes that these publications really come under.

Senator KOHL. Last question. Colonel Myers, would you say that
there is a real difference between the way in which armed services
can go about recruiting and training and getting the people they
need to get the job done, the way our country is organized to get
that job done, versus the problems in education in this country and
how we resolve them in terms of how this country is organized edu-
cationally.
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Colonel MYERS. Oh, yes. I really can't speak for the Department
of Education programs, although I am starting to look at them
with great interest, having four teenagers coming up of college age.

The Army as far as its recruiting policies and programs that
have been supported by Congress, we have a body of knowledge

about how to go about business that enables us to predict with
great deal of assurance what cause and effect relationships are be-

tween what we do, what is happening in the marketplaceyou
know, our pool of prospect individualsand what it takes to bring

the quality people that we need into the Army.
Our information management structure within the Recruiting

Command has been the product of a lot of very smart people per-
sisting in trying to get to construction of models that will predict

our operations, whether they are going to be successful or not so
successful, and they have been very helpful in corresponding ivith
Members of Congress about what congressional support will be
needed to attain the kind of Army that Congress is in the position

or has a responsibility of raising and equipping. So we have a lot of
experience in that area, yes, sir.

Senator KOHL One final comment before I turn it over to Sena-

tor Cohen. I think there is a difference, an incorrect misperception
and difference in terms of the Army and education in this country.
We do recognize--and it is truethat we have to be prepared mili-

tarily. If we are not prepared militarily, the existence of our coun-

try is on the line. And so there is not an alternative to being suffi-
ciently prepared militarily.

I believe it is equally true educationally, but we don't recognize

it. We don't understand how critical it is that we are prepared edu-

cationally in this country and that the future of our country is
every bit dependent on the educational quality of our citizens as is

our military preparedness. And I think lately we are beginning to

understand as a country how critical it is that we be prepared edu-
cationally. But we are late in coming to it; whereas, we have un-
derstood it militarily for some years, and now we are organized to

get the job done.
Senator Cohen?
Senator COHEN. Thank you Mr. Chairman.
I would like to come back, Colonel, to the videos. As I watched

them, it was hard for me to understand how anyone who was in

the military could have claimed that they were only recruited to go

into the military for the purpose of getting an education. During
the whole course of the Persian Gulf conflict, I heard from some
mothers, who were understandably distraught, saying that we
never made it clear that they would ever be called into combat.

And I can't help but look at those videos and see anything but

what you were recruiting the soldiers for but to be, potentially to

be, in combat.
Secondly, I did point out the women's issue because it is some-

thing that I have been dealing with for the past decade or so. It has

always struck me as ironic that whenever we see ads for Deltait
used to be Easternor one of the others, you would always see a
male pilot. You never saw a female pilot. There was a reason for

that. They didn't have the opportunity in the military. Most of the

pilots were trained at taxpayers expense and went directly from
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the Army or the Air Force or Marine Corps, to very high-paying
jobs in the private sector, and there was a noticeable aWence of
women because they weren't allowed to fly those aircraft.

That is something that has changed, under pressure, I might add,
from Congress. I think there has been an attitude, there was an at-
titude, well, that women's work is over here and she will be a
typist or help maintain the home in the Army as such. And there
has been a change.

I was going to ask you, what percentage of women do you have
in the Army right now?

Colonel My Ras. I don't have the exact figure.
Senator COHEN. It is a pretty high percentage, isn't it?
Colonel MYERS. If I recall, Army-wide it is somewhere aro...nd 10

percent, but that is just a recall from
Senator COHEN. And they have a range of skills that they have

developed.
Colonel MYERS. Absolutely. Mentioning women helicopter pilots,

that has particular relevance to me, being a helicopter pilot when
there were no women. And I have been watching the development
of the programs that accept men and women into the helicopter
training program, and there is absolutely no difference in their
abilities. There were a lot of skeptics within the Army that are
skeptics no longer.

We are happy to highlight some of this and especially in our
print advertising. We have got some great looking advertising that
features that

Senator COrIEN. I would like to see you highlight it in some of
those TV advertisements as well.

Colonel MYERS. I will have to bring someI will have to send
you some of our other ads.

Senator COHEN. I have seen some. It is just a point. This is not
entirely relevant to the focus of the hearing, but it has a large
bearing, I think, ultimately on where we are going. You are going
to have reduced end strength. We are going to have fewer people in
the Army. We are going to have a much tougher line of competi-
tion for people to get in, and so you are going to get a higher qual-
ityfewer of them but a higher quality, which means we have got
a big problem in terms of that reservoir of talent that is out there,
that is latent, that doesn't have a place to go to.

And you are going to have a problem, Judge, in terms of how you
are going to inspire these people, give them direction, lift their
sights.

I was going to ask you, Colonel, did you have to call upon outside
contractors in terms of how to phrase your advertising? You start-
ed out, I think you indicated that you started with sort of an
"Uncle Sam Needs You" approach, and then it gradually evolved
into "Be All You Can Be," as the individual aspiring to a higher
level of accomplishment. Did you rely upon outside consultants or
contractors to give you some assistance in that?

Colonel MYERS. Yes, sir. As a matter of fact, the advertising
agency that the Army contracted with at the time was essential in
the development of the "Be All You Can Be" campaign. To this
day, we depend very heavily on the professional capabilities of
Young & Rubicam.
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Senator COHEN. Sure. And so while you have, let us say, a $15
million budget for advertising or something in that neighborhood,
you really are piggybacking upon a tremendous talent that is out
in the commercial field to take advantage of.

Colonel MYERS. Absolutely, sir. It translates into technical capac-
ities that we wouldn't have if we weren't associated with a large
advertising firm. For example, efficiencies in purchasing media is
one example. You have the entire media purchasing weight of
Young & Rubicam, the largest advertising agency in the country.
So when they make a deal for the Army, it is a really good deal.

Senator COHEN. But also in terms of the creativity, you can draw
upon the millions, tens and hundreds of millions of dollars that are
spent by the private sector in terms of generating creative ways to
catch attention. Those are very creative ads.

I mention this because 1 think we are going to have to move that
over into the civilian sector. How do you compete with that? You
have people in uniforms. They have got exotic equipment. They are
carrying their M-16 or .50-caliber machine gun. They are jumping
out of helicopters. They are flying in aircraft. You have got to be

even more creative in terms of the civilian programs.
The Chairman mentioned our existence being on the line, and it

is. But there are awfully creative ways in which you could con-
struct an advertising campaign, assuming you had the money. And
this is what I want to come back to, Colonel Myers. You weren't
given the money back in the late 1970's. They cut the money dra-
matically. And when we increased the funding for advertising and
said this is what we have to do to get that quality up, the Army
and the other services responded.

The same thing is going to be true about the issues confronting
us. I can, just sitting here, for example, think of a very creative ad
for bringing people into the environmental movement. We need to
have more people dealing with this planet that my colleague from
Maine, Senator Mitchell, has described "planet on fire.' I could
take one of those videos of those seagulls drowning in oil, say that
this is a potential threat to our environment, and make that into
an ad to draw people into that category.

We are now trying to develop a fast rocket-type of aircraft to go
from here to Japan in 3 hours. You surely can translate the need
to get engineers and aerospace-type of individuals involved in that
in the commercial field,

You can show the streets of New York the plumbing erupting
and blowing up to say we have got to have plumbers as well as phi-

losophers.
There are a variety of ways in which you can be very creative

and use television, which is the most powerful medium in our lives.
When you talk about a $15 million budget, some States spend that
for a senatorial campaign, most of it on television.

It seems to me that if we put the kind of resources there that are
necessary, and use the kind of creativity that is necessary, we can
draw people not only into the military, but we can shift that over
into the civilian sector and still call upon a lot of talent and devel-
op it. But it is going to take some real creative thinking. Frankly,
passing out one of these doesn't do it. That is simply not going to
be sufficient enough.
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I notice that the Army has one program, Colonel, that you talk
about, with educational materials directed to the business commu-
nity. I assume it is this one, "Experience For Hire

Colonel MYERS. "Experience For Hire," yes, sir.
Senator COHEN. It struck me as ironic that the business commu-

nity wouldn't recognize already the reservoir of talent they have
got there to call upon, 150,000 people coming out of the military
every year with all of these skills developed. I would think every
corporation would want to snap up anyone in the military. So it
seemed almost redundant, but it is not.

Colonel MYERS. If I could comment on that particular booklet, we
sent that to about 300,000 human resource directors and about
100,000 CEO's of corporations of 100 employees or more. A tremen-
dous response on the part of the business community. There is a
workforce problem out there. They recognize it.

There has been a myth on the part of many businessmen, our
research shows, that the Armythis myth that the Army is an em-
ployer of last resort when, you know, it has not been that way for
years. We had to chip away at that myth and advise those busi-
nessmen that aren't aware that that Army alumni is the guy he
needs to solve some of his workforce problems.

On the education side, similarly, sir, we are making inroads to
try to explain that we are not in competition with higher educa-
tion. We are in cooperation with higher education. As an example,
we have got a concurrent admissions program that takes a prospect
and links him up with a college, if he meets the application qualifi-
cations, and our education system in the Army tracks that young
soldier and makes sure that he continues to stay in contact. And
when he gets out of the Army, he matriculates from that college.
And it is a great program.

We have got loan repayment programs. If somebody is having
problems with a loan, as long as they are not in default, we have
got the means to get them out of that trouble, give them some
skills that they can learn for an enlistment, and they can continue
on either in the Army or return back to school or whatever they
want to do.

So we don't want to be in competition with anyone. We think
there is a need in this country for all of us to work together on
maximizing the potential of our youth population.

Senator COHEN. Judge Cane llos, can I just ask you this? Assum-
ing you had the resources, would you call upon outside expertise to
develop advertising campaigns to really start to shift our focus to
what needs to be done domestically?

Judge CANELLOS. I would say certainly because in-house we don't
have that kind of capability. We have a staff in dissemination and
training in my particular division which tries to kind of gerryrig
stuff together and does a real yeoman job with the limited re-
sources they have. But any time we go beyond that, which obvious-
ly this particular thing would entail, we need to g) out to the pro-
fessionals by contract.

Senator CDHEN. Well, I have watched the IBM ad, for example.
You have that man going around, a very powerful individual in-
spiring those students to do the same thing about being all that
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they can be out there. It seems to me we have got to tap into that
kind of creativity to lift these people up.

SecondlyI know my time is running outmuch of the focus of
these advertising materials tends to be directed toward urban
areas, inner cities, where there is perhaps the greatest perceived
need. I come from a rural State, and as I like to point out, I used to
be the mayor of the third largest city in Maine. It sounds pretty
impressive until you find out there are 36,000 people in my third
largest city in Maine. So you understand the dimensions of my
State, which is very, very rural for the most part.

What kind of programs do you have that are directed toward the
rural areas? Do you think that you should develop special ap-
proaches there, at, we do to inner cities, to help those who are
really trapped in a cycle of poverty and perhaps evenwell, a cycle
of dependency?

Judge CANELLOS. Well, Senator, I think based on, again, the limi-
tation of funds, we have targeted on those that are Chapter 1 eligi-
ble, which are the disadvantaged, either educationally or economi-
cally. It doesn't matter that it is an inner city or not. It is the fact
that they are qualified under Chapter 1. I believe most of those arethe

Senator COHEN. But what I am getting at is, do you shape the
advertising or the direction toward a rural versus an urban area?
To say that they are all poor doesn't really help. I am talking
about these very impressive advertising techniques here.

Judge CANELLOS. Right. Actually, the only thing that we target
by region are the TRIO programs that I mentioned in my testimo-
ny, which are regional programs. And by definition, since they are
wherever they are, they handle the problem at a local level. But
from an advertisement point of view, other than our Hispanic one,
which is targeted towards the Hispanics specifically, our advertis-
ing is strictly across the board, aimed at either the high school sen-
iors and juniors who should be aiming their thoughts towards post-
secondary education, or the non-traditional students who are out of
school, who maybe are interested in coming back.

Senator COHEN. Can I just suggest that you have got to do two
things? I think what you have got to do is be much more specific in
how you target the advertising in terms of the job opportiinities for

the future. To take a general across-the-board approach I think is

less than inspiring. If you look at what the military has been able
to do, they have specific talents that they are looking to pick out.
To simply say that we have educational assistance for all of those
in this income category isn't very uplifting, to say the least. Not
interesting, and you are not going to get the same kind of response.
I think you have got to target it, not only in terms of what kind of
skills can be developed, but I also think you have to target it in

terms of regions as to what skills you can develop within a region
given its customs, history and so forth.

Judge CANELLOS. We do have some studies going on, especially in
tryingwe have focused on teaching and trying to bring people
into the teaching profession. And so we are focused in that, and ob-
viously in the last year or so, we have gotten into the math and
science and trying to aim people towards those. And we do have
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some studies in an attempt to tryhow do we influence and how
do we induce people to get into those fields.

We certainly have special scholarships that Congress has set
aside for those types of programs, and the advertising part of it or
how we accomplish that is now being worked throughbut, again,
worked through at the speed that we can afford with our current
budget constraints.

Senator KoHL Thank you very much, Senator Cohen.
Before we go on to the next panel, I think it is important to rec-

ognize that the Army is another profession. It is another avenue
for young people. And to the extent that you do your job well, of
course. that is great for this country because that is what we are
all about, is attracting young people into meaningful careers. The
job, in terms of your job, it is the whole thing. And the fact that
some of these young people go into the Army is fine. That is what
you want. I mean, that is another educational professional opportu-
nity that we present in this country. And to the extent that young
people take that avenue, you are happy, you are happy, we are all
happy.

But what we are talking about is getting our young people to un-
derstand the whole panoply and take advantage of the whole pano-
ply of educational opportunities and careers in this country.

I happen to own a professional basketball team, and we do some
of that in the NBA. I happened to see yesterday in the Los Angeles
Times there was just an article about the Lakers. And what they
do is they invite kids who have great attendance records in school
to attend a Laker game and Laker practices, and they have the
ballplayers, who are role models to the kids, talk to them. They
talked about Magic Johnson, Perkins, Worthy, and some of these
guys that I wish I had. But, anyway

Senator COHEN. It only takes money, Mr. Chairman. [Laughter.]
Senator KoHL. And Senator Cohen in his heyday.
But they talk to these kids, and they tell the kids it is fine to

dream about becoming an NBA basketball star. But they remind
the kids that sports careers are short, but being a lawyer, a doctor,
or a business person lasts a lifetime. And they say that we need
more successful people in business and in the professions.

And I think that is what you are all about, and that is what we
need to convince the young people of America, to stay in school,
and then you have opportunities, one of which is military, but
there are other opportunities. But if you don't stay in school and
don't get an education, you can't even get in the military.

That is what SCAN is all about and what we are all about as a
country, and we need to get focused on it. Thanks a lot. Nice to
have you guys.

Senator KOHL. Our second panel, we have two fine women. First
we have the Honorable Gwendolynne Moore, who has been a
member of the Wisconsin State Amembly since 1988. While in
office, she has been very involved in her community, specializing in
economic development and community reinvestment. As a gradu-
ate of the TRIO program, Ms. Moore knows firsthand the impor-
tance of early intervention and awareness of the availability of pro-
grams.
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We also have Selena Dong with us. She is serving as the legisla-
tive director of the United States Student Association. As a central
figure in this organization, which represents over 4 million stu-
dents across the country, Selena hears from many of these students
and their concerns about the information they receive regarding
the availability of financial aid for higher education.

It is nice to have you with us, ladies. Gwendolynne?

TESTIMONY OF GWENDOLYNNE S. MOORE,3 REPRESENTATIVE,
SEVENTH ASSEMBLY DISTRICT. STATE OF WISCONSIN; ACCOM.

PANIED BY SOWANDE OMOKUNDE

Ms. MOORE. Good morning, Senator Kohl. I bring you greetings
from the citizens of the State of Wisconsin, to the distinguished
gentleman from Maine, Senator Cohen, and particularly from the
residents of the Seventh Assembly District which I represent.

My name, again, is Gwendolynne Moore, and I am a member of
the Wisconsin Assembly, and I represent an inner-city community
in the State's largest city.

I have listened to a lot of testimony, and yet I am very awed and
honored to have been invited here, and I am hoping that I will be

able to share some information with the Subcommittee that will be

very helpful in terms of moving S. 501 forward.
In view of some of the comments that have been made here, Mr.

Chairman, I hupe that you will suffer my digression from my writ-

ten testimony, which I have submitted to your Committee.
The front page of Tuesday's New York Times speaks to the

recent economic recovery in Milwaukee together with the bitter
irony of one of the highest black unemployment rates in the coun-
try. The Department of Labor statistics indicate that that figure is
at about 20 percent, which is a rate that is five times greater than
for the white population. However, I would concur in an analysis
presented by a Dr. Rob Kennedy from the University of Wisconsin-
11.1adison which puts that figure at about 50 percent, given the
numbers of folk who are not within the Department of Labor sta-
tistics reach because they are not longer lookingthey are so dis-

couraged that they are no longer looking for employment. More
than half of the black population in Milwaukee is on some form of

public assistance.
The problem, of course, is that young blacks and other black

workers must develop the skills to compete in the current econo-

my. Wisconsin was primarily a manufacturing State, and in the
postindustrial era, they now lack the job skills and job preparation
for the jobs of the 21st century which will require a postsecondary
education in more than 80 percent of the instances. Therefore, I am

very supportive of S. 501, and particularly supportive of this adver-
tising campaign.

A couple weeks ago, I had a long very candid discussion with a
public relations executive, and we discussed the sort of negative
campaigning of the alcohol and tobacco advertisements in the
inner city. And one of the things we talked about, now that those
advertisements have been replaced with other public service an-

The prepared statement of Ms Moore appears on page 1 IS.
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nouncements, they have been geared toward other types of nega-
tive campaigning: don't do this, don't become a prostitute, don't
take dope, don't do this, don't do that. And so we must replace
those advertisements with something affirmative, somelling posi-
tive, something that will speak to what alternatives there are.

I am particularly impressed with Section 4 of the bill, Senator, in
view of the recognition that it is very important to have folk in the
fieldparents, teachers, counselors, recreation workers, any people
who may come in contact with young peopleto endow them with
proper information about the availability of college scholarships,
college programs, and to actually put young people in touch with
professionals who are knowledgeable and caring human beings.

My own experience is a testimony to the really key importance
of Section 4. I was born healthy. However, I was born to a single
female-headed household. And Murphy's law says if anything could
go wrong, it would go wrong. And everything went wrong. I had
eight other brothers and sisters to compete with for food. I grew up
in inadequate shelter, grew up with very slim rations. I went to
school with no breakfast and no lunch, for many years one meal a
day, and then was told by my mother, who did the best she could,
"to fill up on Lake Michigan." I was mis-educated, provided un-
equal educational opportunities, sexually assaulted as a child, so
that by age 16 I had been ravished by my own poverty. Ravished.

Were it not for Upward Bound, I am not sure that I would be
seated here before you today. Upward Bound recruited me and
really assisted me in not becoming a high school dropout, because
by my high school year I was pregnant and just stopped going to
school. And one of my Upward Bound counselors, Mr. TheMore
Nxumalo, an exiled medical student from South Africa, decided
that he really, really wanted me to graduate from high school, and
literally delivered me to the University of Wisconsin's library each
day to study for my exams so that I could complete the require-
ments for high school graduation.

During that same time, I had the great fortune of meeting Dr.
Arnold Mitchem, who was then the educhtional opportunity pro-
gram director for Marquette University. He flistributed literature
to me regarding the opportunities available at Marquette Universi-
ty, gave me an application for admissionthat I did not follow up
on. He then sent a core of high school students out into the com-
munity to find me because I had moved about five times between
high school graduation and the beginning of my freshman year in
college.

And I make that point for this reason: While I think that the in-
formation component is really important, when you are dealing
with very, very low-income students, very disadvantaged students
of any race, you are dealing with human beings who are decimated
by the lack of opportunity, and you really do need those human re-
sources to harvest those young people. So I am very pleased with
your bill and very supportive of your effort here.

I think that, with all respects to Colonel Myers and the very suc-
cessful "Be All You Can Be" campaign, I would suggest that we
need to compete with the Army for the best and the brightest in
our communities. One of the things that really concerned me and
really had a very chilling effect on my well-being was the possibili-
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ty and the prospect that tens of thousands of body bags were going

to be returned to the United States from the Persian Gulf; and that
because of the volunteer army, the lower class in our country were

going to be disproportionately represented in those body bags. It
was a very chilling recognition on my part that young African

American males, the best, those who might have become biochem-
ists or teachers or so on, were recruited by the Army because of

their very correct perception that there were no other opportuni-
ties out there for them.

I think that if we were to just look at laissez-faire and the natu-
ral ordering of things, we would see quite clearly that the best and
the brightest would automatically find their way into institutions

of postsecondary education. But that is not true because our society

is run by the social order where kinship, rights, racial conventions,
and other color privileges are the order of the day, and it is the
crucible of social disadvantage. And that social ordering can and

often does devour whatever talent or intelligence a human being or

a whole society may possess. And I think that as Government we

must continue to intervene so that our relative position in the
international economy will be protected.

I would be very happy to answer any questions.
Senator Kom.. Thank you.
Selena Dong?

TESTIMONY OF SELENA DONG., LEGISLATIVE DIRECTOR.

UNITED STATES STUDENT ASSOCIATION

Ms. DONG. Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, it is
an honor to appear before you today to testify on the Student
Counseling and Assistance Network Act of 1991. My name is
Selena Dong, and I am legislative director of the United States Stu-

dent Association, the l
ar

t and oldest national student organiza-

tion, representing moretrasn 4 million students across the country.

I am originally from California, and I am a June 1990 graduate of

the University of Washington, the Rose Bowl champions.
When we read Senator Kohl's bill, we were so excited that we

nearly faintedand I am not kiddingfor this bill includes so
much of what we have been saying for years: that Title IV student
aid programs are good programs that are simply not as well publi-

cized as they should be.
For example, a 1983 publication of USSA and the National Stu-

dent Education Fund reported that, "The inadequacy of current fi-

nancial aid information has been identified as the greatest impedi-
ment to postsecondary education access."

And in a press statement issued last October, USSA vice presi-

dent, Tajel Shah, was quoted as saying, "Just as the U.S. Govern-

ment pays billions of dollars in commercial time to ask young
people to 'be all you can bejoin the Army,' the Department of
Education needs to equally publicize the availability of Federal fi-

nancial aid."
Just on Monday, 10 students testified at a joint hearing held by

the Senate and House Subcommittees on postsecondary education

' The prepared statement of Ms Dung appears on page 125.
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on reauthorization of the Higher Education Act. These students
came from the city and the country, the middle-class suburbs and
the ghetto. They were white, African American, Asian American,
Latino, and Native American. And every single one of them testi-
fied that while they were growing up, they simply did not know
about all the different types of student aid available. Yet they
knew that they could join the Army and go to college. One woman
from Wisconsin testified that she Joined the Reserves right after
her parents told her that they could not afford to pay her way
through college.

Moreover, at the USSA conference this weekend, I asked 400 stu-
dents at a general assembly how many of them knew the words to
the song "Be All You Can Be." Everyone raised their hand. Every
sinOe one. Then I asked how many of them knew the Department
of Mucation's toll-frea information number on Federal financial
aid. No one raised their hand. No one. And we represent the more
privileged people in society because we are in college. For every
one of us, there are more youths out there who are not in college.
Clearly, we are not reaching the peoplelow-income and people of
color communitiesfor whom this information on student aid
could make such a difference in their lives.

A July 1990 report by the General Accounting Office confirmed
this. It concluded that 'both parents and students were generally
unaware and uncertain about the availability of [Federal] student
financial aid to help pay for college." It quoted a 1980 national
survey of high school students, which revealed that only 12 percent
of all high school sophomores knew that Pell Grants were avail-
able, and only 8 percent believed that Stafford Loans were avail-
able.

Moreover, Federal student aid, because of inadequate publicity, is
perpetuating the inequalities in our society because these numer-
ous studies showed that the wealthier and more educated families
were more aware of student aid than their less wealthy and less
educated counterparts.

Because of these reasons, S. 501 is of critical necessity, and it
would work because it takes a multifaceted approach. First, S. 501
would train and further enhance the effectiveness of high school
counselors who are crucial. One student from a low-income commu-
nity testified that he would have never known about scholarships
for collegeones that are now affording him the opportunity to go
to a prestigious private schoolhad his high school counselor not
gone out of her way to tell him about them. Likewise, another stu-
dent testified that his high school counselor, untrained in the com-
plexities of Federal student aid, gave him the wrong application
forms. Clearly, we must invest in high school counselors who are
critical components in our efforts to make education a reality to
all.

Second, S. 501 would enhance public access to information re-
sources by developing a comprehensive guide to college opportuni-
ties and financing that would be integrated with other relevant
data bases into the Student Counseling and Assistance Network.
This is crucial. One of the biggest barriers to the student aid
system is the complex and confusing nature of the student aid ap-
plication process in which students are expected to fill out different
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forms and pay different application fees for private, Federal, State,

and institutional aid. Such an unwieldy system makes it nearly im-

possible for students to know about all the different types of aid
available. S. 501 would alleviate this problem by creating a more
centralized and publicized way to know about all the different
types of student aid. Clearly this is necessary. And in response to

the demand for information on ways to pay for college and so on, a

new industry has developed in which students and parents pay pri-

vate consultants to find ways to finance college. Yet, only the
wealthy can afford this system. Clearly we need to do more.

Third, S. 501 would provide funding for an important recruit-

ment and advertising and publicity effort. The same GAO study
showed that, "[Slophomores who were aware of Pell Grants and
Stafford Loans in [the] 1980 [national survey] were more likely to

enroll in postsecondary schools in 1982." Moreover, this third
prong is an absolutely necessary component as a companion to the

bill's other elements, which emphasize early intervention. With 41

percent of undergraduates on our campuses today being 25 years or

older, we need to take a widespread campaign to ensure that all

students, including nontraditionally aged students, know about

ways to finance their higher education. We will have to retrain
large numbers of workers in the future; in fact, we will have to

educate every man, woman, and child in this country to meet the

needs of our workforce and to keep America competitive. And an

exclusive emphasis on early intervention would shortchange a
large portion of our adult human resources who are potential col-

lege students.
Lastly, we support the emphasis on reaching disadvantaged com-

munities. With the gap in college participation between poor and

non-poor and between minority and white youth climbing, we must

redouble our efforts to make education a true option for everyone.

USSA is proud to express our enthusiastic support for S. 501. We

believe that there 4s no better way to celebrate the 25th anniversa-

ry of the Higher Education Act and its Title IV aid programs than

to publicize them, and that there is no better way to invest in

America's future than to ensure that education is a known reality

for all.
Thank you.
Senator KOHL. Thank you. That is quite an endorsement, Selena.

I didn't write that speech, ladies and gentlemen. [Laughter.)
Senator KOHL. Ms. Moore, is one of the problems or is a basic

problem in our central cities that so many of our young people look

upon higher education as something to which they can never hope

to attain for financial reasons?
MS. MOORE. I certainly think that that is a problem. Selena

really pointed out something that was really importantearly
intervention. I think that many things in the environment rein-

force the notion that you cannot go to college; not only that there

is not the financial network and base there, but it is reinforced by

negative counseling. I can recall being told that since I was unable

to play football and did not have the physique to play football, I

most likely would not be able to go to college.
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Also, you don't see your neighbors, folk in your family going to
college, and it is just a number of things that militate against your
seriously pursuing a college education.

I think that an advertising campaign might, in fact, suggest to
those who were the brightest that perhaps there are opportunities
and that there is a financial network to which they have some
access and could escape from poverty.

I also think that it is extremely important to do it early. I think
that I was really far gone by the time the Upward Bound program
was authorized and they had identified me. I had a number of aca-
demic deficiencies by the time I was recruited into college, particu-
larly in the quantitative areas. I was terrified of writing a paper.
And I think that it took an extraordinary amount of effort on the
part of those professionals to bridge the academic deficiencies and
gaps that I had, in addition to which I had very low self-esteem and
very little confidence in my ability to do it. And I think that if you
were to haveI was very fortunate, and I am sure that we could
not duplicate that kind of effort across the country. But if you get
young people at a very early age, you can identify areas of deficien-
cies. 'You can work on those things at an early age and really pro-
vide a quality experience for them.

Senator KOHL Selena, did you want to say something?
Ms. DONG. If I may. Early intervention plays a crucial role in de-

veloping that self-esteem and sense that college is available. And
yet the TV ads that the Army manages to run so effectively, if they
were channeled toward staying in school, it would also help with
that. I mean, from day one you know that you can go and join the
Army, and it appeals to young men's sense of "I want to be
macho," you know? I mean, I almost joined the Army right after
seeing those ads. They are exciting

Senator COHEN. You would be a paratrooper, I am sure.
Ms. DONG. Yes, a paratrooper. Well, no, I probably couldn't make

the height requirement. And yet if we had the same kind of excit-
ing ads that say look at me, I am a basketball star, stay in school. I
mean, there are some efforts at that, but those TV ads wouldn't
just be reaching out to nontraditional students who are out there
maybe considering college. It would help from day one. Give us
that excitement.

I was talking to my intern from the great State of Kentucky who
was from a very poor rural area, and she said that when she was
growing up, education meant you were a geek. Going to the mili-
tary meant that it war.: an exciting option. We need to make college
just as exciting an option, and that is not happening right now.

Senator KOHL. Thank you.
Senator Cohen?
Senator COHEN. If I could just pick up, Representative Moore,

you told a very poignant story. There is a book that just came out,
and I won't try to pronounce the author's name, but it is called
"There Are No Children Here." It is a truly worthwhile reading ex-
perience because it captivates in the most emotional and moving
way the story of two young brothers growing up in the outskirts of
Chicago, right on the rim of Chicago in one of the ghettos, and the
lives that they have to lead. Not too much different, I suspect, than
your own.
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When you talked aboutand I was struck by thisyou talked
about Murphy's law. You had a number of obstacles to overcome,
and the first one you mentioned is that you had, what, seven or
eight brothers and sisters. That struck me. What a change in
times. Fifty years ago, seven or eight brothers and sisters, that was
a mark of some accomplishment. Today you saw itor at least
growing up, you saw it as an obstacle in the sense that you have
got to compete, for food, for clothing, for housing, and for educa-
tional opportunity.

That perhaps presentsit is so complex. It is not simply a
matter of creative advertising. That is part of it. I want to com-
mend the Chairman's bill. But that is only a small part, a very
small part. Until we deal with the issue, how do we help single-
parent households? We take a mother with seven or eight children
and expect that somehow she is going to be the unit or the leader
of that household, hold it together, and either work or be on wel-

fare, and raise those children, and overcome the obstacles of a
drug-infested neighborhood in which there is no safety.

Look at this morning's news. On the local news, they talked
about one of our schools in this area where they are now putting
up metal detectors at the high school level because there has been
so much violence there. So it is not only going to be an issue of can
we put more money into more creative advertising. We really have
to go back and see what we have to do in terms of rebuilding this
country across the board. Because it doesn't matter how much
money you put into advertising, you can attract a certain segment,
a certain percentage, and those who will have the native intelli-
gence and ability, and perhaps inner motivation, will make it some-
how. But it is a small percentage. The vast majority of those people
who are living in either those inner cities or rural areasyou men-
tioned in your written testimony the TRIO program, which has
been very, very helpful in my State, I must tell you. It has been a
very important program.

But I suggest we have got a lot more work to do than just this,
and, Ms. Dong, your suggestion about early intervention is not only
for education in terms of college opportunities. We have got to in-

tervene in a much more dramatic way across the board.
Racism has a lot to do with it. You have touched upon this, but

the fact is we still basically have a racist country, in many, many
ways. We have made a lot of improvements, but not nearly enough.
And when you pick up the morning news and see what happened
in L.A. or what happened in New 'York, there is no doubt in my
mind that there still is a strong undercurrent of racism, which,
whether intentional or unintentional, has succeeded in losing sev-
eral generations at least. Several generations at least.

So I don't havelet me ask you one question. That is a state-
ment.

Ms. MOORE. OK.
Senator COHEN. What do you recommend in the way of breaking

through? Let us talk about the inner city now. What is the best
medium? Is it MTV? You talked about negative ads versus positive
ads. I go through the airports frequently, and I see a guy standing
there, and he has got a pistol up his nose. And it says, "Go ahead.
Try your next coke," or something. It is a very powerful ad, very
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negative. What do we do in terms of dealing with these issues, not
only for college, but we are talking about advertising to the people
in the inner cities who see more of an opportunity in running
drugs than working at McDonald's, who see that they have status
symbols, whether it be Reeboks, where you have got a Milwaukee
Bucks player advertising a shoe, or a Magic Johnson or Air Jordan.

It is a question of values. How do we go about changing the
values, and what is the medium we use? What kind of creativity do
we need to start changing how people see themselves as well as
reaching for the opportunities, assuming the resources are there?

Ms. MOORE. Well, I would like to address all of your comments
and your question as well. One thing, obviously, we need to address
the more insidious problems of poverty, but we still must focus on
providing folk with the means of egress from poverty, which I be-
lieve is educational opportunity. To the extent that the natural
order will prevail when given an opportunity, we must continue to
do that and provide folk individually, one by one, an opportunity to
have an educational opportunity.

I think one of the more insidious problems is that people don't
recognize that they have college potential, that they don't know
that. So any sort of campaign ought to identify talents, interests
that folk can key into and identify with as being something that is
trainable. Children have no idea, when they sit around and doodle.
that they could perhaps go develop a career in commercial art.
They have no idea that those same skills might be used to be an
engineer. They have no idea that, you know, enjoying fooling
around with a few numbers is something that is educable.

And I think that obviously TV is a medium that even the most
poor have some access to, some limited access to. I didn't have TV,
but this is the 21st century. I think that television, billboards in
the inner city are very effective.

Last session, I was able to obtain State funding for a "Hang
Tough" campaign inserted into the State budget, and we used
radio, television, print media, and just deluged the community with
the message to hang tough against drugs. But instead of it just
being a negative don't do, don't do, don't do, we used kids doing
creative rapssomething that appeals to young people. We also
have one ad that I love where a young girl plays her violin and
suggests that this is a means of reducing stress.

So I think that if you use young kids, use examples of people who
have succeeded, perhaps people could tell their stories on televi-
sion: Yes, I was poor, I was born in the project, and so on and so
forth, but I was really good at this particular thing, and now I am
a doctor.

It is very important to provide role models, and also to have the
human resources to bring people in. You can't forget that. Because
in addition to thatyou just take the "Hang Tough" campaign
that I talked about earlier. In addition to that advertising cam-
paign, I also inserted into the budget a program called Wisconsin
Against Drug Environments, where you actually had community
organizers to go out and personally deliver the message, personally
provide information regarding the resources for treatment, and
other alternatives. So you have to do them both.
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Senator COHEN. I Will just mention quicklywe have one more
panel to go, and I would just make an observation. I mentioned in
my remarks that we have a company called Geiger Brothers in
Maine that has an Adopt-A-School program. What they do is
throughout the year, they take sixth graders, and they invite them
to a job shadowing day. They take them into the Geiger Brothers
plant, and they shadow the various business executives during the
course of the day or half a day to let them see what running a busi-
ness is like and what people can do. Do you think that that would
have some advantage if we did more of that, with businesses taking
a more active interest in the community to start adopting a school
and say come on in and see how we work here?

MS. MOORE. Well, I certainly think that it is in the best interest
of business to do that, because what business correctly claims is
that by the time young people come into their industries, they are
so undereducated that the business must expend a great fortune to
teach them to read and write, things that the public system should
have been doing. It is certainly in their best interests to make sure
that their labor force is well trained to get involved in education.

There are things that the school system perhaps cannot afford.
One of the things that is very disturbing to meand I have
brought my son with me todayis that

Senator COHEN. Come on up.
Ms. MOORE. Come on up because he can help with this. He wants

to be the President someday, after he runs against me.
Senator COHEN. Come right over here. They will give you a

microphone right there.
Ms. MOORE. He went to a Montessori school in Milwaukee, and I

would like for him to just describe the opportunity, or lack thereof,
to work on the computer. This is one of his interests. Can you tell
them about it?

Senator COHEN. Do you want to state your name for the record?
Mr. OMOKUNDE. My name is Sowande, and I really like comput-

ers. And when I was at the school, I got to work on the computer
for like maybe, let us say, 20 minutes every week. And I had major
stuff to do, and most people were just playing games, keyboard
games and stuff like that. I had to reports to write up, and I prob-
ably got bad grades only because I didn't have the computer to use.
There wasn't enough time to write it up.

We need more materials in school. There should be more comput-
ers per class because that won't work out because everybody will
be fighting over it and everyone will be upset.

Ms. Moom. I think private industry could provide this technolo-
gy for our young people. I feel that he is daily being further and
further disadvantaged by not having access to this technology that
is going to shape the next century. He is now a student at the
gifted and talented middle school, and he does not have regular
access to this technology.

Even if he were to, God forbid, grow up to be the manager of a
fast-food restaurant, he would have to know how to operate a com-
puterized cash register. And I feel that the business community
shi.iuld be involved in funding these kinds of initiatives. It is cer-
tainly in their best interest.
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Senator COHEN. Could I also ask this young man, I take it your
mother probably takes a pretty strong interest in your education as
well, doesn't she?

Mr. OMOKUNDE. Yes, she does.
Senator CAMIEN. Does she keep a pretty strong eye on you in

terms of watching your habits? While the other kids are kind of
playing around, you are studying?

Mr. OMOKUNDE. Yes.
Ms. MooaR. Tell him about the television policy.
Mr. OMOKUNDE. I got a very good grade this period, and I owe

some of it to my mother because she has been limiting TV. For
Monday through Thursday, no TV. And I don't think of it as a pun-
ishment, but just some help in school.

Ms. MOORE. I don't know if the media campaign will work on
him. He won't be watching television. [Laughter.]

Senator KOHL. Well, that is a great job. A great job, ladies.
Young man, it is good to have you here.

Mr. OMOKUNDE. Thank you.
Senator KOHL. You spoke very well.
Senator COHEN. And l hope you plan to run against Senator

Kohl the next time [Laughter.]
Senator KOHL. Or move to Maine.
Ms. MOORE. Thank you.
Ms. DONG. Thank you.
Senator KOHL. We have one more panel, and a very distin-

guished one at that.
Dr. Dallas Martin is one of our panelists. He has an extensive

resume. I won't go into it entirely. He currently serves as the presi-
dent of the National Association of Student Financial Aid Adminis-
trators here in Washington. He has been actively involved in vari-
ous student financial aid organizations and is well published on
issues relating to student aid. He is experienced in working with
the Federal Government on information dissemination projects,
and it is certainly an honor to have him with us today.

Gary Bass is the executive director of OMB Watch. During his
time at OMB Watch, Mr. Bass has assisted nonprofit organizations
in better understanding Federal rules affecting their organizations
and constituencies. He is also very familiar with the use of new
technologies which can be so useful in achieving public interest
goals.

Regina Manley is the national president of the National Associa-
tion of College Admission Counselors. She has been active in nu-
merous professional and community organizations related to educa-
tion, including facilitator of postsecondary guidance in the Chicago
Public Schools, and serves on the College Scholarship Service Divi-
sion Governance Committee of the Mid-West Region of the College
Board.

Nice to have you with us, folks. Dr. Martin?
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TESTIMONY OF A. DALLAS MARTIN, JR.,' PRESIDENT, NATIONAL

ASSOCIATION OF STUDENT FINANCIAL AID ADMINISTRATORS

Mr. MARTIN. Thank you, Senator Kohl. It is indeed a pleasure to
be with you and Senator Cohen today. It seems to me, as the pre-
eminent Committee of the Senate responsible for overseeing the
quality and distribution of the Government's information and eval-

uating the effectiveness of the activities of all these agencies, it is
certainly appropriate that you look at the kinds of informational
services that are currently being administered by the Department
of Education.

I think we have heard ample testimony today about the impor-
tant pressing needs of our society as we prepare for the 21st centu-
ry. In our opinion, there is perhaps no issue more important facing
our society today than that which will help to secure that we have
a broad, diverse, well-educated and well-trained workforce that can
support us. However, to achieve this goal necessitates that we pro-
vide opportunity for all of our citizens, and in particular the grow-
ing number of those who are being denied the chance to participate
fully in our society.

Equal educational opportunity for all is clearly at the foundation
of any solutions to the problems that we face, but to ensure that
this occurs requires that we develop effective early intervention
strategies and more effectively market the kinds of resources that
are available to people most in need.

Through our association, we have conducted a number of re-
search studies and investigations into the kinds of programs that
are available across this country, and we have found that there are
hundreds of viable projects that are already under way in commu-
nities that could certainly serve as models for broader scale efforts.
These projects provide intervention at crucial junctures. They build
confidence and give disadvantaged students the sense that postsec-
ondary education is possible and that it also has a payoff.

As we have looked at these various programs, there are a
number of key elements that seem to show why some programs are
more successful than are others. One of the things the research has
demonstrated is that the most critical element is the involvement
of parents and guardians. Two recent examinations help to support
this conclusion. One was a study conducted in Indiana. It showed

very clearly that if parents are involved and that if they have an
expectation for their children to do well and to stay in school, the
children will do well. And this was true of all students, even stu-

dents who are at-risk, low-income, and disadvantaged.
A second examination was done by the Pennsylvania Higher

Education Assistance Authority. They also have examined a lot of
the early awareness activities that have occurred in that Common-
wealth, and found that many of the on-going programs materials
that are available are unlikely to be well received, particularly by
junior high students. They note that while these students are per-
haps interested in current things, the kinds of topics in the materi-
als and the things that are focused on looking ahead at the long-
range picture are not high on their priority list. They said that

"The prepared statement of Mr. Martin appears on page 129
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most students are much more concerned with what is occurring in
their immediate future than what will occur down the road.

On the other hand, the parents had the maturity and the experi-
ence to understand the consequences of not preparing. They are
living perhaps in many cases without the kinds of things that they
would like to have. Therefore, if they are properly prepared and
have some help, they can be a very positive catalyst to reinforcing
the value of education upon their children.

As we begin to contemplate the role and importance of informa-
tion programs, then I think we also need to look at the kinds of
information that should be disseminated to students and parents at
various points in the educational system. That is why, Senator
Kohl, that we are certainly supportive of the initiatives that you
have sponsored in S. 501. We believe that allowing the Education
Department to contract with public and nonprofit entities to attain
the expertise in the advertisement of postsecondary educational re-
cruitment, to develop messages to be targeted in particular toward
low-income, disadvantaged, and minority students, and other at-
risk members of our society, is important.

We think that a campaign like this could literally reach thou-
sands of students across this country. The message should not only
be about the availabilny of student aid, but, more importantly, it
should stress other kinds of important everyday decisions, such as
staying in school and making the right decisions. We also think
that some of these messages should be designated to give parents
information as well.

It also seems to us that if you look at the basic program in your
bill, or the PAIR program that you have included, that both of
these are excellent ways that we can create 2-way communications
in order to widely disseminate comprehensive information to all re-
gions of the country.

There is much more I could say about the various programs, but
I think that most of that is outlined in the testimony and the docu-
ments that we have already provided to the Cimmittee.

Let me say in closing, Senator, that I would like to comment
briefly upon some of the comments that were made during your
first panel today. I think that Judge Canellos made the point well
about the activities of the Department of Education, and I think
you saw the difference between what he is dealing with and what
the Department of Army has is in large part the resources that are
available. The Department of Education, in fact, has done the ac-
tivities that they have described. The problem is that those activi-
ties have not been done on a regular basis, nor have they been

done systematically.
The one thing I want to say, while I think the Educational De-

partment has done a good job with the limited resources that are
available, we have observed that their efforts have been very
spotty. For an example, I was very pleased to hear Judge Canellos
say that the Department plans to republish the counselors' hand-
book. I have here a copy of the last handbook that they did. It is an
excellent document. It has a lot of good information in it that
would assist high school counselors. It was for the 1987-88 award
year, the last year that it was published.
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Now, if you were fortunate enough to be a student coming out of
a high school at that time and the counselor had this document to
assist you, I guess you probably had a good chance of getting finan-
cial aid. But if you graduated in between then and now well, good
luck. I think you observed that it is not perhaix; an unwillingness
on the Educational Department part, but it certainly shows an in-
consistency of effort.

I also noted in the testimony that Judge Cane llos made reference
to some of the training activities that the Department is doing, and
we are very pleased that the Department is offering training again
to assist financial aid administrators and others with these activi-

ties.
But the fact is we are not reaching the high school counselors.

The Department used to run special workshops for counselors. It is
true that if a counselor chooses to come to one of these current
workshops that are being offered by the Department of Education,
they can do so. But they are not advertised to these people. They
are advertised to postsecondary educational institutions. And I
would say to you that as the subcontractor performing the training
for Education Department, that these are really designed to assist
financial aid administrators with technical aspects of aid adminis-
tration, not with the kinds of information necessary for secondary
school counselors to impart to students in their communities.

The Education Department used to have that kind of an out-
reach program, and we ran it at that time for about $1.8 million a
year, and reached a lot of people. In fact, I would be happy to pro-
vide for the record a listing of the participation and number of
workshops that we did. I am saying that if there is a will and a
little more effort, Senator, we could certainly do a lot more. And
your bill certainly provides the outline to get us started in that di-
rection.

Thank you.
Senator KOHL. Thank you, Dr. Martin.
Regina Manley.

TESTIMONY OF REGINA E. MANLEY,' PRESIDENT, NATIONAL AS-

SOCIATION OF COLLEGE ADMISSION COUNSELORS, AND FACI-

LITATOR OF POSTSECONDARY GUIDANCE, CHICAGO PUBLIC
SCHOOLS, CHICAGO, ILLINOIS
Ms. MANLEY. Mr. Chairman, it is my pleasure to be here today

and to present testimony, and I will highlight sections of the writ-
ten testimony which you already have received.

I am very pleased to be here today to speak to the counseling
component embodied in the Student Counseling and Assistance
Network Act of 1991, better known as SCAN. The National Asso-
ciation of College Admission Counselors places the highest priority
on this legislation because of the many students and families who
will be helped by its provisions.

We are an association of more than 5,000 counselors working in
American education whose primary area of expertise is guiding
students through the difficult and sometimes confusing transition

' The prepared statement of Ms Manley appears on page 142.
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from high school to postsecondary education. Our members work at
both the secondary school and college levels and can be found in
the private, public, and parochial institutions.

There are three truisms about student need that I will cover in
my testimony today:

One, students need strong pre-college guidance and counseling
and college admission counseling programs to assist in the various
transitions they will face in their schooling experiences. These pro-
grams must begin early and be available throughout the education
continuum.

Two, students need better and more accessible information about
preparing for, choosing, and enrolling in postsecondary education.
This covers their high school curriculum, their options in choosing
a type of postsecondary education, and paying for that education.

Three, far too many students, especially minority and economi-
cally disadvantaged, remain underserved in American education.
The lack of service and information, coupled with other deficiencies
in the educational experience, translates into their being under-
represented at our colleges and universities.

Underlying these obvious needs are the frustrations suffered by
students, parents, and counselors alike as they formulate well-in-
formed, quality decisions about postsecondary education.

There is a need for early intervention. The members of our asso-
ciation believe that the Federal financial aid system can provide in-
centives to find a way out of the poverty/welfare cycle for young
Americans who are at risk because of family circumstances beyond
their control. We also think that working families of modest means
can _hope for a productive way of life for their children because of
the Wy of education programs that now exist.

NACAC, with a grant from the Edna McConnell Clark Founda-
tion, developed a program that we call "Parents and Counselors
Together," or PACT. 'This program, directed specifically at elemen-
tary and middle schools, provides information to parents and train-
ing for those who work with families and youthfrom counselors
and principals to playground supervisors and caseworkersabout
the possibilities of postsecondary education.

No matter how successful this or similar programs arl, however,
they can reach only a small fraction of those who need the support
of a program such as ours, or the many others that target specific
student and parent populations.

Most importantly, we must be able to alert families to the "price
tags" associated with each educational option, including the avail-
ability of grants, loans, and scholarships that exist to help those
who cannot afford postsecondary education on their own. Exempla-
iy programs in early intervention will do this. They will bring to
the inner city and to rural districts information that they need.
And SCAN will make these programs available nationwide.

Strengthening the counseling at the secondary level is also im-
portant. Following the early school years, students must have
access to improved pre-college guidance and counseling and college
admission counseling programs that assist students in the explora-
tion and decision-making process. At this stage, students need spe-
cific information about financial aid programs, how they work, who
is eligible, how to apply, and the time lines for notification.
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Many schools today do not place an emphasis on or provide an
adequate pre-college guidance and counseling program. We know
that most counselors want to make this a part of their offerings,
but they lack the time, the resources, and the formal training.

High school counselors serve between 250 to 700 students each.
There are many similarities between roles played between rural
and urban counselors. Many school counselors have to assume
duties that go far beyond what you might assume. In a typical day,
the high school counselor serves as the student enroller, the stu-
dent class programmer, the disciplinarian, the attendance cop, the
hall guard, the lunch room monitor, the substitute teacher, the
crisis intervenor, and even the school bus driver. In many rural
areas of America, the school counselor is the only mental health
professional in the community and often addresses a broader range
of individual and family issues in the school. Consequently, very
little time, if any, is left for precollege counseling.

It is axiomatic that the schools that provide the most limited
services and have the fewest resources are the ones that need them
the most. And so the cycle perpetuates itself. The underserved
become the most under-represented in high education, and some-
thing must be done to break this cycle. One of the provisions of
SCAN calls for identification of model, workable programs for
making information about them available to schools that wish to
include them in their own guidance activities. This service would
be invaluable.

In Illinois, for example, we have pilot schools that we targeted in
a rural area of our State, and they have been selected to try out
some early intervention initiatives. And what has developed from
this exercise can be useful and helpful to other communities in the
country, and the clearinghouse effort that SCAN addresses certain-
ly would do that. We have a number of matarials we have also de-
veloped in our State to try to meet the early intervention strate-
gies.

SCAN also calls for the training of school and college admission
counselors, first to provide new and improved counseling services
to students, and, second, to be knowledgeable about the provisions
of all existing financial aid programs. The second emphasis would
re-establish a vital service, and I don't need to talk about it this
morning. Dallas has already made reference to it. But counselors
are no longer trained in financial aid. They cannot get the re-
sources. In fact, in our area, I have asked repeatedly for services
that I used to have that would go out and train our counselors. I
can't even get the resources. To clate, I have not received a Federal
financial aid form for my students. The counselors are asking for
them, and we don't have it. The material is late. It is not timely,
and it is not available.

The proposed legislation will establish a comprehensive computer
data base system, containing financial aid sources, explanations of
the various programs, who is eligible, how to apply, and admission
information. This system would be available to schools, libraries,
youth centers and elsewhere. Counselors applaud this provision.

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, the members of the National Asso-
ciation of College Admission Counselors are committed to providing
quality counseling services to students moving through the school-
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to-college transition. We often hear the argument that not every-
one is suited to a college education, that such students need to
pursue a course of study that prepares them for the workplace.
This is undoubtedly true. College is not an achievable or appropri-
ate educational goal for all students. However, NACAC firmly be-
lieves that all students should be educated and guided in a manner
that includes postsecondary education as a viable option.

School counselors and college admission counselors need pro-
grams, tools, and training to reach our youth early enough to make
a difference in their lives. Students and parents deserve to have
the best, most accurate, and easily understood information about fi-
nancial aid programs that we can provide. The National Associa-
tion of College Admission Counselors believes that the various pro-
visions of SCAN go i. long way toward providing these services.
Clearly, American students will be the beneficiaries.

Thank you.
Senator Korn.. Thank you very much, Ms. Manley.
Gary Bass.

TESTIMONY OF GARY D. BASS, Ph.D., EXECUTIVE DIRECIVR.
OMB WATCH; ACCOMPANIED BY CHRISTINE TRIANO, PROGRAM
ASSOCIATE
Mr. BASS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. One nice thing about being

the cleanup hitter is I get to listen to everyone and think what has
been said and how to say it in a different way or add new informa-
tion. One of the things I was thinking is a story about a fellow who
went over to a building on Constitution Avenue to get some infor-
mation about financial aid. He walked in, and there were two
doors. One door said, "Lots of information"; the other said, "Very
little information." He went in the door that said "Lots of informa-
tion." There were two more doors. One said "Long Forms," and the
other said "Short Forms." He went in the door that said "Short
Forms." Two more doors, one said "Income above $15,000," the
other said "Income below $15,000." He walked in the door that said
"Income below $15,000," and found himself back on Constitution
Avenue. [Laughter.]

That is, in many respects, the feeling, after hearing the witnesses
today, that I have people testify about. We don't want the people,
in this case students, to end up back on Constitution Avenue. Your
bill is designed to ensure that that doesn't happen.

I also was impressed by the comments of Colonel Myers about
the ad campaign and also some of the discussion that you had with
him. I had a very different image of an ad campaign. It was what
goes with the ad campaign, which turns the TV experiences of Op-
eration Desert Storm into Domestic Storm. We need to have Wolf
Blitzer with his "source" inside the Department of Education re-
porting instantly on the latest financial aid that went out. And
then there is going to be a flash over into Detroit, and we are going
to have Charles Jenkon up on the building talking about how this
one student just got some support and went on to go to the Univer-
sity of Michigan or the University of Wisconsin. So I had a very

The prepared statement of Mr. Bass appears on page 158.

41



37

different image of the ad campaign, and one that really does re-

quire some very major structural ciiges in our society.
All that aside, my task here is to talk about a more nitty-gritty

component of structural change, and that is how can we make
better use of newer information technologies to ensure equal educa-
tional opportunity. How can we use these tools to advance some of

the ideas you were talking about in your bill, the Student Counsel-

ing and Assistance Network? And how can we ensure that finan-
cial aid as well as other information reaches people most in need?

I must say I was interested in the young man who talked about
his limited use of computers in his school. There is a flip side to his
concern, and that is I never even had computers in my high school.

The pod news is that he does have access to a computer. It is

mating the growth of use of computers in our public school
syeem and private school systems today. It is going to increase so
that there is greater access to computers, as he needed. It is a revo-

lution; it is here; and it is happening around us.
There are three kinds of technologies we could use in our en-

deavor to facilitate access to financial aid. One is the use of on-line

computer telecommunications. Computer telecommunications
means one computer can, in essence, talk to another computer. So

you could store information in a computer right here, and anyone
that has a computer can "talk" to it from wherever they are and

get the information.
The second approach is to use other kinds of electronic technol-

ogi:es, things like CD-ROMS (Compact DiscRead Only Memory).

We are all familiar with compact disc players for music where you
put in your CD and get digital sound. That technology is available

to distribute detailed information, such as financial aid informa-
tion, as well as even a picture of the application form, to the

public.
The third approach is one that may resonate more with you, and

certainly does with me, and that is the use of telephones. 'What we

could do is dial a number and punch specific numbers for selected
information. We have seen this done with airline companies where

you call a main number and are instructed to punch a button to

get information on flight arrivals, for example. 'You move down a

pathway and keep going down various pathways until you get to
the information you want. The Washington Post provides such a
service, called Post Haste. I use it all the time to find out sports
scores. I happen to look up more along the lines of, say, the Detroit

Pistons as opposed to the Milwaukee Bucks, but nonetheless I am

able to find out instantaneously, by pushing a telephone button,
the scores that just happened. Similarly, you could do that same
kind of thing with financial aid.

I must say one other point. I graduated from the University of

Michigan. In the newsletter that recently came out, the cover story

was labeled "The March of Technology Toward Oodles of Calcula-

tions in Almost No 'rime at All." A great story. I kept reading the
newsletter stories. The next story, big headlines, "Do You Have a

Question About Financial Aid?" And there is a huge picture of
people waiting in line to get into the financial aid office at Michi-

gan. By the way, that is the same line that I saw in 1972 and 1971

and in 1970. In fact, I think if you look, you might see me in the

4 2



38

back there. Nothing ha .. really changed with regard to using newer
technology for social purposes.

We cled the University of Wisconsin to see if they had any-
thing. They referred us to HELP, Higher Education Location Pro-
gram. We called it. What was it? They gave us a phone number of
the office for financial aid where you can go wait in line.

Let me introduce Christine Triano, who is our program associate
at OMB Watch and also does much of the work on information
access issues. She went to the Office of Management and Budget
and took a look at what kinds of comments parents were giving on
the financial aid forms. I think it would be instructive for her to
describe some of the letters.

Ms. TRIANO. I looked through these letters at the Office of Man-
agement and Budget to get an idea about what people are saying
once they found the forms, how did the process work for them. And
I came to two overwhelming conclusions after reading a !ot of very
long detailed missives and hardship stories.

The first one is thlt it is clear that the Department of Edwation
could take steps to make it easier to fill out their financial aid
forms. And flowing from that point, it seemed apparent that not
only could technology help improve the actual forms, but that it
could do much more. The type of network that SCAN would create
could go well beyond helping improve forms. It could help reach
people. It could help them understand the process, and it could
really help them maximize on what is available to them.

I would like to share a few of the comments contained in these
letters. A single mother in California wrote about her experience,
"I feel many Government funding programs are riddled with road-
blocks to discourage those who need the help most. I feel many stu-
dents do not fill out the paperwork because of the amount of infor-
mation not available to them."

Another mother in New York wrote, "What a nightmare. We
needed to go to an experienced accountant, and we still got it back
for change." And I couldn't help but think how many students who
really need financial aid cannot afford to go to an accountant.

Another man in New York wrote, "Am I correct in surmising
that people for whom English might well be a second language are
required to interpret your instructions which," he comments,
"could not have been more confusing had they tried."

I was led to think of the parents of financial aid applicants who
may have trouble getting aid for their children for this very
reason. With the technology that we are talking about today, we
could easily make the information available in any languages,
either over a computer network or on a telephone help line.

A school administrator in Illinois wrote to suggest that a glossa-
ry of terms, acronyms, abbreviations, and all the other jargon con-
tained in the forms be included with them. Should you have a data
base, a simple help key would allow you to highlight a term you
didn't understand and receive an instant detailed definition of it.

A woman in Michigan wrote that she didn't understand one acro-
nym, and spent 45 minutes on the phone trying to get through to
someone to tell her what it meant.

The suggestions go on. Maybe a mother in Wisconsin best articu-
lated the public demand for .SCAN by saying that, "I realize that it
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would be impossible to please everyone, but I cannot believe that
there is not a better way to have students apply for aid."

At this point, I would like to turn back to Gary to hear about the
steps that we need to take to achieve that better way,

Mr. BASS. In our written testimony, you will see 10 points. I
won't go through the 10 points, partly because I have always
learned you are only supposed to have 5 points because that way
you can count your points on one hand while pounding at the same
time with the other hand. But since I have 10 points, I won't go
through them.

Let me point out that it struck me in hearing the comment that
you have 200 to 700 students per counselor, it is almost impossible
to tailor-make information for each student. And the use of tech-
nology is not a replacement for the human resources that are es-
sential about guiding people that we heard. What it is is a tool to
supplement and aid, and that is the advantage that it can provide.

It is not a vehicle in and of itself that should replace the human
resources that we heard about it. I really want to stress that.

The last point I want to stress is, if the Department of Education
were to pursue such a unique approach that you talked about in
your bill, a lot of oversight will be needed, not only from Congress
but also from citizens. That integral involvement will be essential
to its success.

I will conclude with that, and thank you for the opportunity to
testify. The letters that Christine Triano referred to will be made
available to you.

Senator KOHL I would like to ask each of you, in terms of our
society, not looking at everyday events but looking at where we are
today, where we want to be 5 years, 10 years, 15 years, 20 years
from today, is there any more important priority than the one we
are talking about this morning, education, educational opportunity
information, the necessity to keep kids in school? Anybody want to
comment on that? I think what we are obviously missing some-
where in our society is a sense of priority, I believe. But I would
like your response and reaction to that.

Ms. MANLEY. Yes. Education is number one. We have to give
greater resources and a greater priority and a commitment to the
youth of America. If we don't, our country is going to be in serious
trouble. We need to focus on training for the professionals who are
in the field of education. We must focus on raising the level of ex-
pectation of our students and assuring that the classroom teachers
have high expectations for young people. We must make sure that
we are working with the student and the parent. We can work
with the student, but if we don't involve the parent, the parent
who is concerned with keeping a roof over the heads of their
family, with putting food on the table, is nutis concerned about
higher education, is concerned about what is going to happen to
that youngster when that youngster graduates. But the primary
concern is what? Taking care of the family immediately. We have
to work with that parent to help that parent understand that this
investment of time now is going to pay off later for the student as
well as for the family, and they all are going to be better off be-
cause of this effort.
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We must highlight, I think, the success of our students in the
high schools today. When you pick up a daily newspaper, what is
the focal point? It is usually negative. If there has been a shooting
or the gangs have done something, it is on the front page. Where
do you see that X number of students have won X number of com-
petitive scholarships, that have been enrolled in all these prestigi-
ous institutions, that have created some new projects, that have
done all these wonderful things? They never get the media's atten-
tion. They don't get the press that they should have. They are the
role models. And if we prioritize and do what we did with the
Army and all the wonderful thingsand I thought about that
when I watched all the media coverage of the Middle East crisis. I
think, gosh, where would education be today if we had that com-
mitment and we had that priority and some of those resources?

Mr. MARTIN. Senator, I think Colonel Myers summed it up very
well. He made the point that in order for the Army to be successful
and to accomplish what they have done, they have done that by
raising the skill level of the training of their people. And Senator
Cohen commented about his trip to the gulf and what he had seen
and observed. Well, that didn't happen accidentally. It took com-
mitment; it took resources; and we spent the money to do and
achieve a particular goal and objective. And let me say that if we
made the same kind of commitment to carrying that out for educa-
tion, we would get the same kind of result.

If you look at what are the outcomes that you get from an edu-
cated citizenry, you find that people earn more in their lifetimes so
that they are able to pay more taxes; you find that these same
people tend to live healthier lives so therefore health care costs
will go down; you find that these are the people that are more
likely to be involved and contribute back to their societies, which
means that they are giving to others and making a better quality
of life; you find that they are less likely to be unemployed, keeping
our economy strong; you find that they are more informed as
voters. You also find that they are less likely to get involved in
terms of drugs and alcohol and the other things. But these are very
positive outcomes that suggest that we ought to be spending money
on education.

I would say that if we don't spend this small amount of money
that is necessary now in the beginning, then as a society we will
end up paying for all of those other costs that we could have avoid-
ed many times over down the road. There is nothing more impor-
tant.

Mr. BAWL Mr. Chairman, the simple answer is yes, education is
the core of it. I flew back this morning. Yesterday I was in Detroit
and then last night in Pittsburgh swaking to community people
who are concerned, greatly concerned, about domestic issues.

It is very true that education is the heart and soul and the fabric
of what builds our society. By the same token, we need a vision for
domestic security in general. In the State of Michigan, for example.
the Governor just immediately cut general assistance by 17 per-
cent, and then proposes in his next year's budget an additional cut.
He is going to opt out of the Medicaid program for August and Sep-
tember. In Pittsburgh, youth programs are being cut by the Cover-
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nor. In Illinois, the Governor has a virtual elimination of all gener-

al assistance.
It is going on and on in each of the States. Until we can develop

the vision for a domestic agenda, a concerted one, then we will re-

double our efforts time and again on just one, and then have to do

it again on the other. It is going to require a commitment, a vision,

and money.
Senator KOHL Christine, did you want to say something?

Ms. TR1ANO. I would just like to add that I think you are abso-

lutely right, Senator. The most positive and declarative endorse-

ment I could think of for SCAN is that it simply makes sense,

makes so much sense.
Senator KOHL. Thank you. Well, I would like to tliank you all for

being with us today. You have been very helpful. Yuu have helped

the process along, and I appreciate very much your er dorsement of

our bill. We will need your help in getting it implemented.

Senator Rudman and Senator Kohl have questions that we will

insert into the record at this point)
Senator KOHL. Thank you all for coming, and I think it has been

a very good hearing.
[Whereupon, at 11:50 a.m., the Subcommittee was adjourned.]

' See pages 171 1$1;
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Mr. Chairman, I am pleased that you have taken the

initiative tu hold this hearing to assess the effectiveness ot

our methods at delivering
information about existing solaces of

financial aid fta prospectivo college studyntS.

The availability of financial aid for academie study is an

area of growing concern.
The funding that dUes exist ;WWI

not t,O made unavailable to prospective participants in higher

education merely for lack of adequate information. While the

Congress continues searching for an improved student financial

aid system, we must also develop the beat means by which we

inform eligible individuals of that which already exists. We

know that some students select their institution of learning

based on the aid which they believe is available. It is even

more unfortunate when the information upon which they base their

decision is incomplete. This scenario becomes more UntOTTUJIAIV

when the individual determines
that he or she cannot pursue the

higher education, which is ths right of all Americans, because

they incorrectly believg that aid which is actually available

dues not exist.

Proven methods of enlightening the public at similar

uppottunities currently tun in the print and electronic media. A

highly successful model uf such an information campaign ts the

Army's -Se All You Can Se- series of advertisements. Thousands

of AMVricel's youth have explored opportunities previously

unconsidered because of this campaign. They have Improved their

own lives and the lives of their families through their

experience. Unfortunately, many Americans believe that thy Armed

Services are their only opportunity to start anew, receive

advanced education and training, and better themselves. Simile,

campaigns should enlighten the public of all such opportunities

available to them, and there is no better place to begin than

with education.

4 7
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Mr. Chairman, I am convinced that not enough is being dunn
to inform the public of existing financial aid. While We search
for more funding for such programs, we must improve the means of
informing eligible individuals of ttis aid.

This hearing will enhance the process of finding the best
means of delivering the necessary information. I commend the
Chairman for his efforts in holding this hearing.

4 8
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UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF EDITCATION

THE SEt*RMARY

If you are planning to attend a college, university, trade, or proprietary
school you are among the more than 13.6 million citizens of the United
States contMoing their education beyond high school.

Our nat i,,n enrolls twice as many of its people in postsecondary study and
tr,iuon t. the Soviet Union, ten times as many as France, and fift.een times
thn t.1 in the United Kingdom.

Presicnnt Bush is committed to providing assistance for those who need help
in payiog their higher education costs. This coming year, our nation will
speno stimated $384 billion for education.

The Fed,-111.1overnment's contribution to student financial assistance will

result i it a commitment of $18.4 billion targeted to those who need help to
the cost of higher education and postsecondary training. Two of the

,od programs outlined in this publication are grantsoutright assistance pro-
vided by the American people through their taxes for the pursuit of higher
etio,..Ption in addition, there are loans, also made possible through the help

thi Anwric.ai taxpayer, which entail an obligation to repay when a student
aces school.

hen ytm ,ipoty for a loan to attend a college, university, trade, or proprie-
tary institution you make a commitment. Honoring that commitment will
strengthen these programs, which will allow others to have the same type of
assistanee that was available to you for the pursuit of higher education. You
also uphold the faith of working Americans who make these programs pos-
sible.

Financial assistance opens the door to higher education for many who could
not otherwise afford its cost. Do your share to support these programs by
repaying your loans after graduation. You owe it to those who will follow.

ViQtriminotion Prohibited. No person in the United States shall, on the
,. round I,' rave, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be
denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under, any program
or . 'y receiving Federal financial assistance, or be so treated on the basis
of sex in Acr most education programs or activities receiving Federal
assis:.;nee
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FINDING OUT ABOUT STUDENT AID

This Guide tells you about Federal student aid programs and how to

apply for them. But education or training after high school costs more

than ever, and you need to learn about as many sources of aid as you

can. The steps below will help.

Contact the financial aid administrator at each
school you're interested in. He or she can tell you

what aid programs are available there. and how much
the total cost of education* will be. If you're in high school, also

talk to your guidance counselor. He or she ean tell you about
financial aid in general and where to look for help.

Ask the State higher education agency in your home State

for information about State aidincluding aid from a program
jointly funded by individual States and the U.S. Department of
Education. Each State has its own name for this program, as well as

its own award levels, eligibility criteria, and application procedures.

(At the Federal level, this program is called the State
Student Incentive Grant Program.) For the address and
telephone nilmbor of your State agency, see your
financial aid administrator or call the toll-free number
on page 21.

Your State agency can also give you information about the Paul
Douglas Teacher Scholarship Program. These scholarships are
for outstanding high school graduates who want to pursue teaching

careers after they finish college. A Douglas seholarship provides up

to $5.000 a year to students who graduate from high school in the

top 10 percent of their class, and who meet other selection criteria
their State agency may establish. Generally, students are required

to ach two years for each year ofscholarship assistance they

receive.

*This (Thule mentions several terms or concepts that you will need to be
familiar with. Wherever these terms occur in the text, they will have an
asterisk (4') next to them. This means that the term will be defined in the
"Imporumt Terms" section, pages 43 to 50.
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The agency in your State responsible for public elementary and
secondary schools can give you information on the Robert C.

Byrd Honors Scholarship Program. Students who demonstrate

outstanding academic achievement and show promise of continued

excellence may receive $1,500 for their first year of postsecondary

education.

Your public library has information on State and private

sources of aid. Your financial need is usually considered, but

other factors may also be taken into account.

Many companies, as well as labor unions, have programs to

help pay the cost ofpostsecondary education for employees or

members (or for their children).

Check foundations, religious organizations, fraternities or

sororities, and town or city clubs. Include community

organizations and civic groups such as the American Legion, YMCA,

4-H Clubs, Kiwanis, Jaycees, Char+. r Commerce, and the Girl or

Boy Scouts.

Scholarships from the National Honor Society and National

Merit Scholarships are available to students with high grades

who qualify.

Don't overlook aid from organizations connected with your

field of interest (for example, the American Medical

Association or the American Bar Association). These organizations

are listed in the U.S. Department of Labor's Occupational Outlook

Handbook and can also be found in various directories of associations

available at your public library.

2

If you're a veteran, veterans benefits may be available. Check

with your local Veterans' Affairs office.

5 9
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CHOOSING A SCHOOL CAREFULLY

Education after high school costs you time, money, and effort. It's a
big investment, and you should carefully evaluate the school you're
considering. You ought to know what you'll be getting for your
money. When you enroll in school, you expect to learn certain
subjects, or maybe certain skills that will help you get a specific job.
Will you? A lot depends on you. To find out about a school, you need
to-

114> Check the school's accreditation. Ask for the names of the
school's accrediting and licensing organizations. You also have

the right to ask for a copy of the documents describing the
institution's accreditation or licensing. Accreditation means a private
educational agency or association has evaluated a school and found it
meets certain minimum requirements that agency has set. But don't
assume that if a school is accredited that's all you need to know. . .

11:Find out about the school's programs for yourself. A
school can be very good but still not meet your individual needs.

You have the right to ask a school about its programs, its faculty, and
its instructional, laboratory, and other physical facilities (including
what special facilities and services are available to the handicapped).
What is the size of most classes? Will you have enough contact with
your instructors? If you're attending a school that offers training
using equipment, make sure the classes are not SO large you never get
to use it. If a school advertises a certain kind of equipment, make
sure it actually has that equipment. Is it modern and what you'll
actually be using in your field later on?

Find out how many credits you need to graduate or complete the
coursework. Ask how many students finish. A high dropout rate
could mean students weren't satisfied with the education they were
receiving.

It's also a good idea to talk to recent graduates about the school's
courses, its professors or instructors, even its social life and living
facilities, if applicable. And remember, just because a school
participates in the U.S. Department of Education's student aid

3
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programs does NOT mean the Department has endorsed the quality

of the education the school offers. The Department does not
approve a school's curriculum, policies, or administrative practices,

except as they relate to how the school operates Federal student aid

programs. It's up to you to check out the school.

rkFind out about job placement rates. Many students are
ncerned about being able to get a job in their chosen field after

they leave school. What is the school's job placement rate? Check

with former graduates or prospective employers, not just the school.

What is the placement rate of your chosen profession in general? If

the school advertises its job placement rates, it must also publish the

most recent available data about employment statistics, graduation
statistics, and any other information necessary to back up its claims.

This information must be available at or before the time you apply for

admission to the school.

Does the school provide instruction on topics necessary for State or

professional certification ofgraduates? If a school says it will help

you find a job, what does this include? Will the school contact
potential employers and set up interviews? Will you receive
counseling on how to obtain and keep a job?

110LFind out about financial aid. You have the right to ask the

hool the following:

what financial assistance is available, including information on all

Federal, State, local, private, and institutional financial aid programs.

You also have the right to know how a school selects financial aid

recipients.

*what the procedures and deadlines are for submitting applications

for each available financial aid program.

how the school determines your financial need. This process
includes how costs for tuition and fees, room and board, travel, books

and supplies, and personal and miscellaneous expenses are

considered in your cost of education.* It also includes the resources

considered in calculating your need (such as parental contribution,

other financial aid, assets,* etc.). You also have the right to know

how much of your financial need, as determined by the school, has

been met and how and when you'll receive your aid.

*See "important Terms," pages 43 to 50.

4
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how the school determines each type and amount of assistance in
your financial aid package.* You also have the right to ask the
school to reconsider your aid package if you believe a mistake has
been made, or if your enrollment or financial circumstances have
changed.

how the school determines whether you're making satisfactory
academic progress,* and what happens if you're not. Whether you
continue to receive Federal financial aid depends, in part, on whether
you're making satisfactory progress.

what the interest rate is on any student loan you may receive, the
total amount you must repay, the length of time you have to repay,
when you must start repaying, and what cancellation or deferment
(postponement) provisions apply.

if you're offered a College Work-Study jrib (see page 26 for
information on this program)what kind of job it is, what houns you
must work, what your duties will be, what the rate of pay will be, and
how and when you'll be paid.

*who the school's financial aid pensonnel are, where they're located,
and how to contact them for information.

le>Understand your school's refund policy. You have the
right to know what your school's policy is. If something happens

and you never register for classes, or if you drop out of school within a
short time after you start, you may be able to get a part of your
educational expenses returned to you. But after a certain date, you
won't get any money back. Check with your school to find out what
expenses you may have to pay if you drop out Keep in mind that if
you receive Federal student aid from any of the programs mentioned
in the Guideother than College Work-Studysome or all of that aid
will be returned to those programs or to your lender.

If you have a Stafford Loan or a Supplemental Loan for Students
(SI'S), or if your parents have a PLUS loan for you (see pages 30 and
34 for information on these programs), the school must explain its
refund policy, in writing, to you and to all prospective students. The
school must also make its refund policy known to students who are
currently enrolled. The school must include examples of how its policy
applies and must explain the procedures you must follow to obtain a
refund. If the school changes its refund policy, it must make sure all
students are made aware of the new policy.

*See "Important Terms," pages 43 to 50.
5
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For specific information about the refund policy at your
school, contact your financial aid administrator.

IC>Check several sources to find out the answers to
questions you may have about a school. Talk to high school

counselors, local employers, and the State Department of Education

that has jurisdiction over the school. See if any complaints have been

filed about the school with the local Better Business Bureau,

Chamber of Commerce, or consumer pmtection division of the State

Attorney General's office. And contact these organizations if you

have a complaint about a school.

You're paying for an education. Make sure you get it.

6
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U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
STUDENT AID-

GENERAL INFORMATION

The U.S. Department of Education offers the following major student
financial aid programs:

are financial aid you don't have to pay back.

gives you the chance to work and earn money to
help pay for school.

are borrowed money that you must repay with
interest.

Undergraduates may receive all three types of
financial aid. Graduate students may apply for
loans or Work-Study, but not for Pell Grants or
SEOG.

Not all schools take part in all the programs. To find out
which ones are available at a school, contact the school's
financial aid administrator.

64
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STUDENT
ELIGIBILITY

REQUIREMENTS

Generally,
have financial

need (see page9)

Have ahigh school diploma,
a GED, orhave the

ability to benefit*

Be enrolled
as a regularstudent*

in an

eligible program*

Be enrolledat least half-timesexcept
for

the campus-based
programs

(see page 24)

Be a US. citizen oreligible non-citizen*

Make satisfactory
academic

progress*

Sign a statement
ofeducational

purpose/

certification
statement

on refunds anddefault*

Sign an Anti-Drug
AbuseAct Certification*

Sign a statement
ofupdated

information*

Sign a statement
ofregistration

status*

*See "Important Terms." pages 43 to 50

8
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NEED $$
Aid from most of the Federal student aid programs discussed in this
booklet--except for PLUS and SLS loans (see page 34)is
awarded on the basis of financial need. Of course, you must first meet
the eligibility criteria listed on the preceding page. (For the "campus-
based" programs, the amount of funds available at the school is also a
factor. See page 24.)

The information you report on an aid application (see "Applying,"
page 12) is wed in certain formulas that calculate your need and
eligibility.

Eligibility for the Pell Grant Program is determined by a formula
passed into law by Congress and depends on a number called the
"Pell Grant Index (PGI)."* If this number is low enough, you're
eligible for a Pell Grant. And the lower the number, the larger your
award will be. If your PG1* is higher than a certain number, you're
not eligthle. For more information on Pell Grants, see page 22.

There isn't a minimum or maximum number in determining
eligibility for the "campus-based" and Stafford Loan programs (see
pages 24 and 30 for information on these programs). Instead, your
financial need is determined by the following subtraction:

In other words, your financial aid administrator takes the cost of
education* at your school and subtracts the amount you and your
family are expected to pay toward that cost (the Family
Contribution [MI).* If there's anything left over, you're
considered to have financial need.
*See "Important Terms." pages 43 to 50.

9
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cosr EDUCATIOVyour educational expenses such as

tuition, fees, room, board, books, supplies, and other related expenses.

7-91M1LY
COVRIBUTION(FC1*the amount you and your family

are expected to pay toward your education. This amount is
determined by a standard formula somewhat different from that used

for the Pell Grant Program, although the PC* formula has also been

passed into law by Congress. (The formula is called the

"Congressional Methodology.") Factors such as taxable and non-

taxable income, assets* (such as savings), and benefits (for example,

unemployment or Social Security) are all considered in this

calculation, which determines your family's financial
strength. You can get a booklet describing the Fe° formula
in detail by writing to

*WM,

Federal Student Aid Information Center
Box 84
Washington. DC 20044

t.''' I

Note that although need is determined by formula, the financial aid

administrator can adjustup or downyour Family
Contribution (FC)* or your cost of education,* if he or
she believes your family's financial circumstances warrant
it. However, the aid administrator does not have to
make such an adjustment. For more information on
adjustments, see "Special Circumstances," page 18. or

contact your financial aid administrator.

*See -important Terms." pages 43 to 50.

10
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Certain questions on your student aid application will determine
whether you're considered dependent on your parents and must
report their income and assets as well as your own (and your spouse's,
if you're married), or whether you're independent and must report
only your own income and assets (and those of a spouse). Income and
asset information will be used in determining your eligibility for
Federal student aid, so answer the questions on your student
financial aid application carefully.

Students are classified as dependent or independent because Federal
student aid programs are based on the idea that students' parents
have the primary responsibility of paying for their children's
education. Students who have access to parental supportdependent
studentsshould not receive Federal funds at the expense of students
who don't have that accessindependent students.

If you claim to be an independent student, your school may ask you to
submit proof before you can receive any Federal student aid. If you
think you have unusual circumstances that would make
you independent even though you normally would be
considered dependent, talk to the financial aid
administrator at your school. The a:d administrator
can change your status to independent if he or she
thinks your circumstances warrant it. But remember,
the aid adminis:.rator won't automatically do this. That decision is
based on his or her judgment, and it's finalyou cannot appeal it to
the U.S. Department of Education.

11
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II> Forms

You can use any of the forms listed below to apply for Federal aid
including a Pell Grant. To consider you for aid from non-Federal
sources as well, your school may specify which of the forms listed
below you should complete. Your school will have the forrn you need.
The forms are

'Application for Federal Student Aid* (AFSA)
The U.S. Department of Education's form

"Application for Pennsylvania State Grant and
Federal Student Aid"

The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance
Agency's (PHEAA'S) form

"Application for Federal and State
Student Aid (AFSSA)"

CSX's form

*Singkfile Form'
United Student Aid Funds' (USAF's) form

*Family Financial Statement" (FFS)
The American College Testing (ACT) Program's form

*Financial Aid Form* (FAF)
The College Scholarship Service's (CSS's) form

If you want to apply for Federal aid only, all the forms are free. (You
will need to fill out only certain Federal "core" sections of the form.
Your application will tell you which sections those are.) Then
you must check a box to have your information forwarded to the
Federal processing center. The box is in the middle of the form.

If you want to apply for non-Federal aid as well, you will have to fill
out some additional information that all the forms except the AFSA

12
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collect. ACT and CSS charge a fee for processing that extra
information. So, while applying for Federal aid is always free, you
may have to pay a fee to apply for non-Federal aiddepending on
which form your school asks you to use.

11k--"W NOTE: For the Stafford Loan, PLUS, or SLS programs, there
are some additienal steps you must take to apply. (See pages 30-36
for information on these programs.)

READ THE
INSTRI7111ONS! . . .when you apply for financial aid. Most mistakes

are made because students do not read the
instructions on the application. Pay special
attention to any questions on dependency status
and income, since these areas are where most
mistakes are made.

)13"---' I NOTE: You may not have to answer every question on your
application, if the following conditions apply to you:

Your family's income is $15,000 or less, and
Each member of your family files either a 1990 IRS Form 1040A

or 1040E2, or won't file any 1990 U.S. Income Tax form.

The instructions with your application will ten you which items to
skip. However, your school may say that in order to be considered for
non-Federal aid (State aid, private aid, etc.), you must complete the
entire application. It's a good idea to check with your school to see if
that's what you need to do.

Apply as soon as possible after January I, 1991.
Send your application to the address given in your
application booklet. It will take approximately 4 Jan. I

weeks for your application to be processed, and you
may have to confirm or correct information and return
it for reprocessing. (See "Student Aid Report," page 15.1
Reprocessing takes another 2 to 3 weeks. Also, you may have
to prove the information you reported is correct (see page 15). You
need to complete each step in the process promptly, so that you don't
miss any deadlines (see "Deadlines," page 20). Missing a deadline
means you will lose out on student aid.

13
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If it's been more than 4 weeks since you applied and you haven't
heard anything, you can check the status of your application by

writing to

Federal Student Aid Information Center
P.O. Box 84
Washington, DC 20044

When you write, make sure you include in your letter your full name,
permanent address, Social Security Number, date of birth, and

signature.

Or, you can call the number for status checks given on page 21.

III:Rr NOTE: Aid from Federal programs is not guaranteed from one
year to the next. You must reapply every year. Also, if you change

schools, your aid doesn't automatically go with you. Check with your

new school to find out what steps you must take.

III) Records Needed
C li 1

1L
When you fill out an application, you should have certain records on

hand.

OThe 1990 U.S. Income Tax Return is the most
important one, since you must use specific numbers from
specific lines on the tax return to fill out your application.
You'll need to refer to

' your tax return,
* your parents' return (if you apply as a dependent student), and

*your spouse's return (if you're married and your spouse filed a

separate return).

Referring to the tax form will make it easier for you to complete your

application and get it through the processing system.

You may apply even if the tax return is not yet completed. However,

this means you'll have to estimate the financial information an your
application, and you may have to prove the accuracy of your estimate

before you're awarded aid. Also, you'll have to change later any

figures that prove to be incorrect.

14
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ClOther useful records to have on hand

W-2 forms and other records of income received in 1990

current bank statements and mortgage information

*records of benefits received from the Social Security Administration,
Department of Veterans' Affairs, and other agencies

You should save all records and all other materials used to
prepare your application because you'll need them later if either
the Department of Education or your school selects you for a process
called "verification? This means you'll have to prove that what
you reported on your application is correct. (Many schools
require al/ financial aid applicants to verify the information they
reported on their aid applications.) As part of the verification process,
you'll have to give your financial aid administrator certain
information or documents, such as the ones mentioned in this section.
So make sure you keep these documents, and make sure the
information you report is accurate! 477,1'

I( Student Aid Report tSAR

After you apply for Federal student aid, you'll receive a Student Aid
Report (SAR) in approximately 4 weeks. The SAR will contain the
information you gave on your application plus numbers that tell you
about your eligibility for Federal student aid:

a Pell Grant Index (PGI)* number, which
determines your Pell Grant eligibility, and a

!import
NOM NAM Ald Moreau,
pun

PC

s-Wommqpn Ihrowar7

worftrnoroMID 0J0dOLIrt

MIUM111110

COM111101111 MOINPIEVID171f// Family Contribution (FC)* number, used in
determinmg your eligibility for the campus-based
and Stafford Loan programs

Unlike the FC,* the PGI* is a fixed number
(below a certain number, you're eligible for a Pell

Grant; above a certain number, you're not eligible). This means your
SAR can tell you right away about your Pell Grant eligibility. That's
why the SAR is most often associated with Pell Grant eligibility, even
though it can be used in determining your eligibility for other Federal
student aid programs.
*See Important Terms," pages 43 to 50.
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IF YOUR SAR SAYS...
CiF3-17.TICIAY RECEIVE A PELL GRANDT

Your SAR will have 3 parts:

Part IInformation Summary

Contains instructions to review your SAR to
make sure it's correct, and will give you other
information about the results of your
application.

Part 2Information
Review Form

The part you use to change
any information on the SAR that's incorrect
REVIEW THIS PART CAREFULLY! If you
need to make changes, put the correct
information in the "The correct answer is"

column. Then, sign the Certification statement
on the back of Part 2 and return Part 2 only to
the address given on the back of Part 2. You'll
receive a new SAR in 2 to 3 weeks.

fitPirl.1192 %dont Ad Rawl
Pert 3 . Rwrommll Vawtsse

[lig Or MP.
,..........,;;;.; ..-..;.:,.....

401:12 Iropertwm

4111r Pm, PaOsvoissn RI9130 Formromr.rat

Part 3Pen Grant Payment Voucher

This part is for your school's use.

If all the information on your SAR is correct as it
is, submit all three parts of the SAR to your
financial aid administrator right away. Your aid
administrator will use the information on your
SAR to determine the amount of your Pell Grant.

(YOU'RE INELIGIBLE FOR A PELL GRANT)

Your SAR will have 2 partsParts I and 2 only.

Even if your SAR says you're not eligible for a Pell
Grant, contact your financial aid administrator. He or
she may use the Family Contribution (FC)* number
on the SAR in determining whether you're eligible for
other Federal student aid. If you are, your school will send you a

letter telling you the amount and kinds of financial aid you'll get.

*See 'Important Terms," pages 43 to 50.
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(YOUR ELIGIBILITY HAS NOT BEEN DETERIIIINEI

This means you did not correctly or completely fill out your student

aid application, and no PCP could be calculated. You'll receive a 2-

part SARParts 1 and 2 only.

Part 1, the Information Summary (see the previous page), will contain

comments asking you to confirm, correct, or add information

on . .

41, AM 42e Aid aspen

E

Part 2Information Request Form

REVIEW THIS PART CAREFULLY! After
you've made any necessary changes or
additions, sign the Certification statement on
the back of this part and return Part 2 only to
the address given on the back of Part 2. You'll
get a new SAR in 2 to 3 weeks.

If you have any trouble understanding
what you're supposed to do after you get your SAR or
how you're supposed to make corrections, your financial

aid administrator can help you and can answer any
questions you have.

To request a copy of your SAR or to correct your address for

the records, write to the agency where you sent your application or

write to the Federal Student Aid Information Center, P.O. Box 84,

Washington, DC 20044. When you write, make sure you include in

your letter your full name, permanent address, Social Security
Number, date of birth, and signature.

You can also request a copy of your SAR by calling the number for

duplicate requests given on page 21. However, you can correct your

address only by writing a letter.

*See Important Terms," pages 43 to 50,
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Although the process of determining a student's eligibility for Federal

student aid is generally the same for all applicants, there is some

flexibility.

For instance, when you apply, if you indicate on your student aid

application that you, your spouse, or either of your parents is a

"dislocated worker" or "displaced homemaker," special consideration

will be given your and/or their financial status when your application

is processed. (For definitions of 'dislocated worker" and "displaced

homemaker," see your financial aid application.) And, as noted on

page 13, certain applicants with incomes of$15,000 or less can skip

some of the questions on the application.

Some students may have special financial considerations that can't be

described adequately on an application. If you feel you

have special circumstances that might affect the amount

you and your family are expected to contribute toward

your education, see your financial aid administrator.
Remember, if the aid administrator believes it's
appropriate, he or she can change a student's dependency status from

dependent to independent (see page 11). And, for the campus-based

and Stafford Loan programs, the aid administrator may adjust your

cost of education* or your Family Contribution (FC)* if he or she

feels your circumstances warrant it. For example, if you believe the

amount you and your family are expected to contribute toward your

education is too high, you can ask your aid administrator to review

your case. But remember, the aid administrator does not have to

make any of these changesthere have to be very good reasons for

doing so. Also remember that the aid administrator's decision is

final and cannot be appealed to the U.S. Department of Education.

*See "Important Terms," pages 43 to 50.
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IL -LW NOTE: The Pell Grant Program does not allow for
individualized adjustments. However, there are certain special
conditions* that would make the family's fmancial circumstances
worse in 1991-92 than they were in 1990. If one of the conditions
listed below applies to you or your family, estimated 1991 income
information will be used to calculate your Pell Grant eligibility,
instead of 1990 income.

The conditions are-

°Death

°Separation or divorce

°Loss of a full-time job

°Loss of nontaxable income or benefits such as Social Security,
child support, Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC or
ADC), welfare, unemployment benefits, etc.

If you think you meet one of the special conditions,*
see your financial aid administrator. If you qualify, the
aid administrator will explain what steps to take so
that estimated 1991 income will be used.

*See Important Terms," pages 43 to 50.
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DEADLINEs

MAY1,1992
Your student aid application must be received by
t,his date. The application you fill out will contain
the address where your application must be sent.
THERE ARE NO EXCEPTIONS TO THIS
DEADLINE.

Apply as soon after January 1, 1991, as you
can. Schools often set deadlines early in the
calendar year that students must meet in order
to receive certain types of funds, including those
from the campus-based programs (see pages 24-29
for information on these programs).

JUNE 30, 1992, or your last day of
enrollment in 1991-92, whichever comes first:
This is the deadline for submitting your MR to
your school's financial aid office.

Be sure you know your last day of enrollment
in 1991-92--it may L.: earlier than June 30. The
earlier you can submit your SAR, the better, but
you must turn it, in by the deadline.

NOTE: If you're selected for verification (see page 15),

additional deadlines apply to you. Your financial aid administrator
will tell you what they are.

islimmizdf
1111i11110Ril
amipseirimi

199
JUNE

.111.111.111111

111.111.11111.
1.1111.1..M.1
1112.17.111.111.1
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TOONE NL1MERS

You may have questions about your application, your SAR, or other
Federal student aid matters, and you need an answer right away. If
so, you may call one of the numbers below at the Federal Student
Aid Information Center between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 530
p.m. (Eastern Standard Time), Monday through Friday:

el (800) 333-1NFOif calling before May 1, 1991
1 (800) 4 FED AIDif calling on or after May 1, 1991

The Information Center provides the following services at one of the
toll-free numbers listed above:

*Helping you file an application or correct a SAR
*Checking on whether a school takes part in Federal student aid
programs
*Explaining student eligibility requirements
*Explaining the process of determining financial aid awards
*Mailing publications

gar1 (301) 722-9200
You must call this number at the Information Center if you

want to find out if your application has been processed, or if you want
a copy of your Student Aid Report (SAR). Please note that you will
have to pay for this call. The Center cannot accept collect calls.

gar1 (301) 369-0518
If you are hearing-impaired, you may call this TDD number at

the Information Center for help with any Federal student aid
-..stions you may have. This number is not toll-free, and the Center

cannot accept collect calls.

If you have reason to suspect any fraud, waste, or abuse involving
Federal student aid funds, you may call the following toll-free
number:

ge1 (800) MIS-USED
This number is the hotline to the U.S. Department of

Education's Inspector General's office. You may remain anonymous,
if you wish.

21

73



73

FELL

GRANTS, WORK-STL
AN D LOANS

GRANTS

What is a Pell Grant?

A Pell Grant is an award to help undergraduates pay for their

education after high school. For the Pell Grant Program, an
undergraduate is one who has not earned a bachelor's or first
professional degree. (A professional degree would include a degree in

such fields as pharmacy or dentistry, for example.)

Eligibility for those who receive a Pell Grant for the first

time is usually limited to 5 to 6 years of undergraduate
study. For more information, see your financial aid

administrator.

For many students, Pell Grants provide a "foundation" of financial

aid, to which aid from other Federal and non-Federal sources may be

added. Unlike loans, grants don't have to be paid back.

How do I qualify?

You must be attending school at least half-time.*

To determine if you're eligible, the Department ofEducation uses a

standard formula, passed into law by Congress, to evaluate the

information you report on your student aid application. The formula

produces a Pell Grant Index (PGI)* number. Your Student Aid

Report (see page 153 contains this number and will tell you whether

you're eligible.

*See important Terms," pages 43 to 50.
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The formula used to determine your Pell Grant Index (PG0*
is too long to be included here. However, you can get a
booklet that describes it in detail by writing to

Federal Student Aid Information Center
Box 84
Washington, DC 20044

How much money can I get?

The maximum award for the 1991-92 academic year is $2,400. How
much you actually get will depend not only on your Pell Grant
Index (PGI)' number, but on the cost of education* at your school,
whether you're a full-time or part-time student, and whether you
attend school for a full academic year. or less than that.

When should I apply?

The sooner, the better. Your 1991-92 application must be
received at the address given on your application no
later than May 1, 1992. THERE ARE NO
EXCEPTIONS TO THIS DEADLINE.

How will I be r...lia4?

You must submit all 3 parts of your Student Aid Report
(SAR) to your school by the deadline noted on page 20. Your school
will then credit your award to your account, pay you directly, or use a
combination of these methods.

The school must tell you in writing how and when you'll be paid and
how much your award will be. You should acknowledge the school's
notification in writing, for the school's records. Schools must pay at
least once per term (semester, trimester, or quarter). Schools that do
not use formally defined, traditional terms must pay at least twice per
academic year.

*See "important Terms." pages 43 to 50.
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Supplemental Educational
Opportunity Grants (SEOG)

College Work-Study (CWS)

Perkins Loans

The three programs you'll read ab,3ut in this section are
called "campus-based" programs because they're
administered by the financial aid administrator at each
participating school. Your financial aid package*
may contain aid from one or more of these programs.

Even though each program is differentSEOG offers grants, CWS
offers jobs, and Perkins provides loansthey have these
characteristics in common:

['You can go to school less than half-time* and still be able to

receive aid.

U How much aid you receive from the campus-based programs
depends on your financial need (see page 91, the amount of other aid
you'll receive, and the availability of funds at your school. Unlike the

Pell Grant Program, which provides funds to every eligible student,
each school participating in any of the campus-based programs
receives a certain amount of funds for each program. When that
money is gone, there are no more awards from that program for that
year.

['There's no one deadline for applying as there is for the Pell Grant
Programeach school sets its own. But most deadlines are quite
early in each calendar year. Be sure to check with the financial aid
administrator at your school to find out what its deadlines are.
You'll probably miss out on receiving aid from the campus-
based programs if you don't apply early!

*See Important Terms," pages 43 to 50.
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SEOG

What is an SEOG?

A Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant (SEOG) is for
undergraduates with exceptional financial need (with priority given to
Pell Grant recipients), and it doesn't have to be paid back.

How much can I get?

You can get up to $4,000 a year, depending on the restrictions noted
on the preceding page.

What's the difference between an SEOG and a Pell Grant?

The Department of Education guarantees that each participating
school will receive enough money to pay the Pell Grants of its eligible
students. As noted on the preceding page, there's no guarantee every
eligible student will be able to receive an SEOG.

How will I be paid?

Your school will credit your SEOG to your account, pay you directly,
or use a combination of these methods. Schools must pay students at
least once per term (semester, trimester, or quarter). schools that do
not use traditional terms must pay at least twice dur the academic
year. (There's one exception: If the total SEOG aid y.,a receive is
ON or less, the school may pay you just once during the academic
year, if it chooses.)
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What is College Work-Study?

\

The College Work-Study (CWS) Program provides jobs for

undergraduate and graduate students who need financial aid. CWS

gives you a chance to earn money to help pay your educational

expenses.

How much can I make?

Your pay will be at least the current Federal minimum wage, but it

may also be related to the type of work you do ,ind the skills required.

Your total CWS award depends on the restrictions noted nn page 24.

How will I be paid?

If you're an undergraduate, you'll be paid by the hour. If you're a

graduate student, you may be paid by the hour or you may receive a

salary. No CWS student may be paid by commission or fee. Your
school must pay you at least once a month.

Are College Work-study jobs on campus or off campus?

Both. If you work on campus, you'll usually work for your school. If

you work off campus, your job will usually involve work that is in the

public interest, and your employer will usually be a private or public

non-profit organization, or a local, State, or Federal agency. However,

some schoes may have agreen.ents with private sector employers for

CWS jobs. These jobs must be related to your course of study.

Can I work as many hours as I want?

No. Your school sets your work schedule. In arranging a job and

assigning work hours, your financial aid administrator will take into

account your class schedule, your health, and your academic progTess.

And remember, the amount you earn can't exceed your total CWS

award.
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PERKINSLOANS

What is a Perkins Loan?

A Perkins Loan is a 1 m-interest (5 percent) loan to help you pay for
your education after high school. These loans are for both
undergraduate and graduate students and are made
through a school's financial aid office. Your school is
your lender. You must repay this loan.

How much can I get?

Depending on the restrictions noted on page 24, you may borrow up
to-
01$4,500 if you're enrolled in a vocational program, or if you have
completed less than 2 years of a program leading to a bachelor's
degree.

U$9,000 if you're an undergraduate student who has already
completed 2 years of study toward a bachelor's degree and has
achieved thira-year status. (This total includes any amount you
borrowed under Perkins [or under the National Direct Student Loan
Program, its former name] for your first 2 years of study.)

1:11$18,000 for graduate or professional study. (This total includes
any amount you borrowed under Perkina/NDSL for your
undergraduate study.)

1.1111111.11M.,

How will I be paid?

After you sign a promissory note* agreeing to repay the
loan, your school will either pay you directly or credit your
account. You'll receive the loan in at least two payments
during the academic year. (There's one exception: If the
total Perkins Loan you receive is $500 or less, the school
may pay you just once during the academic year, if it
chooses.)

*See "Important Terms," pages -.3 to 50.

8 4
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When do I pay back this loan?

You have a certain period of time before you have to begin repayment,

called a "grace period." Ifyou're attending at least half-
time,* you have a grace period of 9 months after you
graduate, leave school, or drop below half-time.* If
you're a less-than-half-time* student, your grace
period may be different. Check with your financial aid

administrator.

Otquher 1, 1980 If you borrowed under the old National
Direct Student Loan (NDSL) Program

11 months 6 months on or after October 1, 1980, your grace
10, period is 6 months. If you borrowed

before October 1, 1980, your grace
period is 9 months.

At the end of your grace period, you must begin repaying your loan.

You may be allowed up to 10 years to repay.

How much will I have to pay each month?

The amount of each payment depends on the size of' your debt and on

the length of your repayment period. Usually, you must pay at least

$30 per month. In special casesfor example, if you're unemployed

or ill for a long period of timeyour school may allow you to make

payments that are less than $30 per month or may extend your

repayment period.

The following chart shows typical monthly payments and total

interest charges for three different 5 percent loans over a 10-year

period.

'1104$1 Lan Numbly of Monthly

AWOL Zia21111 JUJUS/

WO
**000

MOO

Total Interest
21M121--

Total
Assisi

ISO $ 47.78 $ 1,227.80 $ 8,727.80

120 95.48 2,455.20 11,485.20

120 190.92 4,910.40 22,910.40

*See "Important Terms: pages 43 to 50.
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Can I defer (postpone) repayment of my Perkins Loan after I
leave school?

Under certain conditions, yesas long as you're not in default.*
However, deferments aren't automatic. You have to apply for one
through your school, using a deferment request form that you must
get from your school.

NOTE: Even though you may have applied for a deferment,
you still must continue to make payments until your deferment is
processed. If you don't, you may end up in default.*

A summary of deferments available to Perkins Loan
borrowers is on pages 41 and 42. For more detail,
contact your financial aid administrator.

Are there ever any cases where repayment of a Perkins Loan
can be cancelled?

Yes, a fcw. For example, your loan will be cancelled if you die or
become totally and permanently disabled. Your loan can be cancelled
if you're a teacher (under certain circumstances), or if
you're a Head Start or a Peace Corps or VISTA volunteer.
For more information, read your promissory note or
contact your financial aid administrator.

If you have any questions about the terms of your Perkins Loan,
repayment obligations, deferment, or cancellation, check with the

school that made you the loan. Remember, only that
school can grant deferment or canc-Hation, or make
decisions concerning your Joan.

'Sec 'important Terms: pages 13 to 50.

29

6'



sT
FORD

81

42J
What is a Stafford Loan?

Stafford Loans are low-interest loans made to students attending

school at least half-time.* Loans are made by a lender
such as a bank, credit union, or savings and loan
association. Sometimes a school acts as a lender. These

S
loans are insured by the guarantee agency* in each

tate and reinsured by the Federal Government. You

must repay this loan.

For new borrowers* who receive loans for periods of enrollment

beginning on or alter July 1, 1988, the interest rate is generally 8

percent for the first 4 years of repayment and 10 percent after that.

For new borrowers* who took out a loan between July 1, 1987, and

June 30, 1988, the interest rate is 8 percent.

Students who are not new borrowers* should check their
promissory note* for the interest rate.

How much can I borrow?

Depending on your financial need (see page 9), you may
borrow up to

'Stole

U $9,625 a year, if you're a first- or second-year undergraduate

studmot..

13 WOO a year, if you have completed 2 years of study and have

achieved thud-year statue.

$7,500 a year, if you're a graduate student.

The total debt you can have outstanding as an undregraduata is

917,250. This includes any amount you may have borrowed under

the Guaranteed Student Loan (GSL) Programthe fonner name for

the Stetted Loan Program. The total debt for graduate or

professional study is $54,750, including any Stafibrd Loans and

081:a made at the underkraduate level.

*See "Important Terms," pages 43 to 50.
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NOTE: You can't borrow more than the cost of education*
at your school, minus your Fe* and any other financial aid you
receive.

How do I apply?

You can get an application from a lender, a school, or your
State guarantee agency.* After you fill out your part of
the application, the school you plan to attend must
complete its part, certifying your enrollment, your cost of
education,* your academic standing, any other financial aid you'll
receive, and your financial need.

NOTE: Before you can receive a Stafford Loan, your school
must first determine your eligibility for a Pell Grant, if you're an
undergraduate and your school participates in the Pell Grant
Program. If you're eligible, the amount of your Pell Grant will be
considered in determining your financial aid package,* so that you
won't be overawarded.

When the school's portion of the application is completed,
you or your school subrn:ts it to the lender you've chosen.
If the lender agrees to make the loan and gets the

approval of the guarantee agency,* the lender will send
the loan amount to your school.

When should I apply?

Since not every lender participates in the Stafford Loan Program, you
should begin looking for one as soon as you're accepted by your school.
Give yourself as much time as possible to complete the application
process.

How will I be paid?

Your lender sends your loan proceeds to your school, Your loan
proceeds will be made payable either to you or to both you and your
school.

For loans made on or after January 1, 1990, for periods of enrollment
beginning on or after that date, your school must issue your loan
proceeds to you in two or more payments.

*See "Important Terms," pages 43 to 50.
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How can I find out who the lenders are in my State?

Contact your State guarantee agency.* It's the best source of

information on the Stafford Loan Program in your State. To find out

your State guarantee agency's* address and phone number
and to fmd out more information about borrowing, call the
Federal Student Aid Information Center (toll-free):
1 (800) 333-INFO, if calling before May I, 1991; 1 (800)
4 FED AID, if' calling on or after May 1, 1991.

Is there any charge for making a Stafford Loan?

Yes, there is an "origination fee" of 5 percent, which win be deducted

proportionately from each loan disbursement made to you. The

money is passed on to the Federal Government to help reduce the
Government's cost of subsidizing these low-interest loans.

Your lender may also charge you an insurance premium of up to 3

percent of the loan principal. This premium must be deducted

proportionately from each disbursement.

When do I pay back this loan?

After you graduate, leave school, or drop below half-time,* you have

a certain period of time before you have to begin repayment, called a

"grace period." The length of this period depends on when you took

out your loan, but it is usually 6 to 12 months. Check your
promissory note* or ask your lender what your grace period is.

When you graduate, leave school, or drop below half-time,* you must

notify your lender.

How much will I have to pay each month?

The amount of each payment depends on the size of your debt and on

the length of your repayment period. Usually, you'll have to pay at

least $50 per month or $600 per year. You should ask your lender

what your monthly payments will be before you take out the loan, so

you'll know what to expect.

The chart on the next page shows estimated monthly payments and

total interest charges for 8 percent/10 percent loans of varying

amounts, with typical repayment periods.

*See "Important Terms," pages 43 to 50.
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TYPICAL REPAYMENT PLANS

Total
indebtedness

Number of
Payments

Monthly
Pament

Interest Total
,Repaid.

$ 2,600 64 80.00 $ 614.60 $ 3,214.60
4,000 119 50.00 1,972.48 5,972.48
7,500 120 93.52 3,722.07 11,222.07

10,000 120 124.68 4,961.77 14,961.77
15,000 120 187.01 7,441.17 22,441.17

Some: National Council of Higher Education Loan Program, Inc. maim% 1989
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Can I defer (postpone) repayment of my Stafford Loan after I
leave school?

Yes, under certain conditions, and as long as your loan is not in
default.* A summary of Stafford Loan deferments is on pages 41 and
42. However, deferments are not automatic. If you believe you
qualify, submit a written request to your lender.

!VW NOTE: Even though you may have applied for a deferment,
you still must continue to make payments until your deferment is
processed. If you don't, you may end up in default.*

For more detail about deferment and repayment of
Stafford Lol ns, contact your financial aid administrator,
your lender, or the guarantee agency* in your State.

Are there ever any cases where repayment of a Stafford Loan
can be cancelled?

Only if you become totally and permanently disabled, or if you die.
However, if you serve as an enlisted person in certain selected
specialties of the U.S. Army, the Army Reserves, the Army National
Guard, or the Air National Guard, the Department of Defense will, as
an enlistment incentive, repay a portion of your Stafford Loan. If you
think you may qualify, contact your recruiting officer.

If you have any questions about the terms of your Stafford
Loan, repayment obligations, deferment, or cancellation,
check with your lender. Remember, only your lender can
grant deferment or cancellation, or make decisions
concerning your loan.

*See "Important Terms," pages 43 to 50.
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PLUS/SLS

g)

k4.11./ J
What are PLUS and SLS loans?

PLUS loans are for parents who want to borrow to help pay for their

children's education; Supplemental Loans for Students

(SLS) are for student borrowers. Both loans provide

Loans, are made by a lender such as a bank, crit union,additional funds for educational expenses and, like Stafford
ed

or savings and loan association.

Prt rf
%.1.11

_La

PLUS and SLS loans have variable interest rates. These

rates are set each June. For the 1990-91 award year, the

interest rate was 11.49 percent. The interest rate for each

loan is shown on the promissory note,* signed by the

borrower when the loan is made.

Who can get a loan, and how much can they borrow?

ambles pereuts to borrow up to 14000 Per Year, to a total

a$20,000, fbr oath childwho is enrolled et least halftime* and is a

Ospoteditmt student. Wee pap 11 in. a discussion of dependem7

statusi

am**. sis. Indust* students and independent undergraduates

wbo are mirolled in a rowanswhom length is a full academie year

'Mow banuw up to $4;000 per maiden* year, to a total of $20,000.

Tbittemount is in*Mho latheStafford Loan limits. (In

easeltional tircuentansea, the financial aid administrator may

authorise dependent andergrohtstes to apply tbr an ELS.

Irintiser undagradoates muulled in a program of less than a full

anitismie year haveManna animal knowing limits S2V BLS:

41400 is the Ili* ihr ewe enrolled in a program that is at least

2/3 °fan academie yearbut less than a full academic year. ammillo.

*See 'Important Terms," pages 43 to 50.
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-41,500 is the limit for those enrolled in a program that is less than
213 but at least 113 of an academic year. (SLS loans are not made to
first-year undergraduates enrolled in a program that is less than 1/3
of an academic year.)

How does a PLUS or SLS borrower apply?

The same way as for a Stafford Loan (see page 31), Unlike Stafford
Loan borrowers, however, PLUS and SLS borrowers do not have to
show need. However, like all borrowers, they may have to undergo a
credit analysis.

Note to SLS borrowers: Before you can receive an SLS, your
school must determine your eligibility for a Stafford Loan and for a
Pell Grant (if you're an undergraduate and your school participates in
the Pell Grant Program). If you're eligible for aid from either or both
of those programs, the amount you're eligible for may affect the
amount you can borrow under SLS: Under SLSas under the
Stafford Loan Programyou can't borrow more than the cost of
education* at your school minus any other financial aid you receive.

How will I be paid?

If your parent s) takes out a PLUS loan for you, the lender
sends the full amount of the loan proceeds in the form of a
check directly to your parents).

If you take out an SLS, the lender sends the loan proceeds
to your school. Your loan proceeds will be made payable
either to you or to both you anc; your school.

For loans made on or after January 1, 1990, for periods of enrollment
beginning on or after that date, your school must issue your loan
proceeds to you in two or more payments. If you're a first-year
undergraduate student, you cannot receive your first pa -Tnent until
30 days after the first day of your program of study.

Is there any charge for making a PLUS or an SLS?

Your lender may charge an insurance premium of up to 3 percent of
the loan principal. This premium must be deducted proportionately
from each loan disbursement made to you. There is no origination fee
foe these loans,

*See "important Terms." pages 43 t9 50.
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When do my parents or I have to begin repaying these loans?

PLUS and SLS borrowers generally must begin repaying both

principal and interest within 60 days after the last loan

disbursement. However, if a deferment applies (including a

deferment for being in school), borrowers do not begin repaying any

principal until the deferment ends.

111r-71 NOTE: Deferments do not apply to interest, although the

lender may let the interest accumulate until the deferment ends.

What are the deferments?

SLS borrowers get the same deferments as Stafford Loan borrowers

except that, as mentioned above, under SLS the deferments apply

only to loan principal. PLUS deferments are much more limited and

also apply only to principal. A summary of SLS and PLUS

deferments is on pages 41 and 42. For more details about

specific repayment and deferment conditions, contact

your financial aid administrator, your lender, or the

guarantee agency* in your State.

-s-s'v' NOTE: Unlike Stafford Loans (see page 32), there are no

grace periods for PLUS and SLS loans.

Are there any cancellation provisions?

They're the same as for Stafford Loansonly for death or permanent

and total disability after the loan is taken out.

*See "Important Terms: pages 43 to 50.
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BORROWER RESPONSIBILITIEs.
BORROWER RIGHTS

Responsibilities

When you take out any student loan, you have certain responsibilities
you must live up to. Here are a few of them:

['When you sign a promissory note,* you are agreeing to repay
according to the terms of the note. This note is a kgally binding
document. This commitment to repay means that, except in cases of
cancellation (see pages 29, 33, and 36), you will have to pay back
the loaneven if you don't complete your education, aren't able to
get a job after you complete the program, or you're dissatisfied with,
or don't receive, the educational or other services you purchased from
your school. Think about what this obligation means before
you take out a loan. If you don't pay back your loan on time or
according to the terms in your promissory note,* you may go into
default.* If you do, your school, lender, or guarantee agency* can
require you to repay immediately the entire amount you owe,
including all interest, collection, and late payment charges. They can
sue you to collect that amount, and they can ask the Federal
Government for help in collecting from you.

UYou must make payments on your loan even if you don't
receive a bill. Billing statements (or coupon books) are sent as a
convenience to the borrower, but not receiving them doesn't relieve
you of your obligation to make payments.

U You must notify your lender if you graduate, withdraw from
school, or drop below half-time* status; change your name, address,
or Social Security Number; or transfer to another school.

U Before you leave school, you must attend an exit interview.*

*See -Important Terms: pages 43 to 50.
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Rights

You have certain rights as a borrower. Listed below are some of

them.

lj You have the right to a grace period before your repayment period

begins, if your loan provides for one (see pages 28, 32. and 36). The

grace period begins when you leave school or drop below half-time*
status. The exact length of your grace period is shown on your

promissory note.*

0 You must be given a loan repayment schedule, which lets you know

when your first payment is due, and the number. frequency, and

amount of all payments.

You must be given a list of deferment conditions and the conditions

under which the Department of Defense will repay your loan.

1

Before your school gives you your first loan disbursement, your
school/lender must give you the following information about your

oan:

The full amount of the loan, the interest rate, and when you must

:tart repaying.

D The effect borrowing will have on your eligibility for other types of

financial aid.

0 A complete list of any charges you must pay 4loan fees), and

information on how those charges are collected.

The yearly and total amounts you can borrow, and the maximum

and minimum repayment periods.

0 A current description of loans you owe your scbool and/or lender,

an estimate of what your total debt will be. and what your monthly
payments will be.

0 An explanation of default* and its consequences.

D An explanation of options for prepaying your loan at any time
without penalty, for refinancing your loan, and thr taking advantage

of loan consolidation.*
*See "Important Terms." pages 43 to 50.

38

(I Cy )t.,



re repayment
1You-

90

CIThe amount of your total debt (principal and interest), what your
interest rate is, and the total interest charges on your loan.

13The name of your lender, where to send your payments, and where
to write if you have questions about your loan.

1:3 What fees you should expect during the repayment period.

Ea About prepayment, refinancing, and consolidation options.

heare
some specific rights and information you'rti entitled to if

youl.:ave a Stafford Loan or an SLS:

Before your school gives you your first loan disbursement, the school
must counsel you about your loan. This includes emphasizing the
serieusness of the repayment obligation you're assuming, de-cribing
in forceful terms the likely consequences of default,* and
emphasizing that you must repay even if you drop out, can't find
employment after you've finished school, or don't like the quality of
education you received. In addition, the school must make sure that
someone with expertise in all the Federal student aid programs is
available shortly after this initial counseling session to answer any
questions you may have about those programs.

Your school must also counsel you again shortly before you leave
school or drop below half-time* status. In this session, the exit
interview,* your -chool must again cover the topics it covered in the
initial session. In addition, rur school must

give you general information on the average indebtedness of those
who have received Stafford Loans or SLS loans at the school.

tell you what your average expected monthly repayment is, based on
that average indebtedn,s-s.

review available repayment options t for example, loan
consolidation* or refinancing).

give you debt management advice that the school feels would help
you in making your payments.

Set' Imp-rtant Terms: pages 43 to 50.
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How much debt can I afford? The
charts on pages 28 and 33 give
examples of monthly payments for
specific loan amounts. If you plan to
apply for student loans each year
you're in school, try to estimate how
much your monthly payments will be
when you leave school. The amount
you'll have to repay will add up fast! If
you need more information on
debt management, contact
your financial aid
administrator, your
lender, or the guarantee
agency* in your State.

What if my plans change? A change in career goals, loss of a job, or

some other unexpected change in your school or work situation mild
make loan repayment more difficult than you expected. Deferment

may help in some cases (for example, if you want to return to school

or decide to enter the Armed Forces). but the extended repayment
period will be a long-term financial obligation.

If you're willing but unable to meet your repayment schedule because

of unusual circumstances, and you have a Perkins Loan tor National

Direct Student Loan INDSLb. you may request a hardship deferment.

If you have a Stafford Loan tor Guaranteed Student Loan IGSLD.
PLUS. or SLS, you may request tiobearance if you're willing but

unable to meet your repayment schedule and you're not eligible for a

deferment. "Forbearance" means permitting payments to he stopped

temporarily, allowing a longer time for making payments. or making

smaller payments than were previously scheduled. Your lender does

not have to grant forbearance. however.

Loan consolidation* or refinancing might also he of help to you if

you have multiple loans and if you qualify. Your lender can provide

more information about consolidation and refinancing options. If you

have a Stafford Loan or SLS tor if your parents have a PLUS for youl

and you need to borrow again, try applying to the lender who made

you for your parents) the first loan. This will make future loan
refinancing easier. To find out more, contact your lender.

*See -Important Terms." pages 43 to Fa
40

9 7



44.

DEFERMENT SUMMARY: PERKINS LOANS, STAFFORD LOANS, AND PLUS/SLS

Eh-ferment Condition Perkins Stafford pais' Fag
Study at a postsecondary school At least

half-time*
Fun-time or
heilklme* 2

Full-time or
half-time 2

Fun-time or
half-time*

Study at a school operated hi the Federal
Government

.

NO Full-time only Full-time only Full-time only

Study in an eligible graduate fellowship
program, or .n a rehabilitation training
program for the disabled

NO YES

.

YES

. ,

YES

Volunteer in Peace Corps, ACTION
Programs, or comparable fidl-time
volunteer work for a tax-exempt
organization

.

Up to 3 years
each

..

Up to 3 years
each

NO 4

.

Up to 3 years
each

Active duty member of U.S. Armed
F'orces, service in the Commissioned Corps
of U.S. Public Health Service, or active
duty member of National Oceanic apd
Atmospheric Administration Corps

I Tp to 3 years
total

Up to 3 years
total

.

MO

,

Up to 3 years
total

Temporarily totally disabled, or canl
work because you're caring ibr a
temporarily totally disabled spouse or
other dependent

Up to 3 years
("Other dePerkpendent"
applies to ins/mans only, not to

_NDSL's)

up to 3 years Up to 3 years

r.'
-

Up to 3 years

l'AN111(HeS Afe et piairird on the Ilex! imp:.
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DEFERMENT SUMMARY: PERKINS LOANS, STAFFORD LOANS, AND PLUS/SLS
it 'ON I 111 i))

tN7

Deferment Condition Perkins Stafford PLUS' STS1

Full-time teacher in a public or non-profit
private primary or secondary school that
the U.S. Department of Education has
determined is in a teacher shortage area

NO

Up to 2 yeare
-

Up to 3 years 8

4-----..---------,
up to 2 years

NO

NOI

Up to 3 years°

Up to 2 years
Eligible internalsip dehronnt

Unemployment
At school's
discretion' Up to 2 years

,

Up to 2 years Up to 2 years

Mother of prothool sip up eltikbon, wbo is
going to wackier bask to tettek) at a oda"
no more than $1.00 ovw the minimum wary

OP te 1 raw / Up to 1 year ° NO

-,

Up to 1 jeer

Parental leave defernlent* Up to 6 months 7
-
Up to 6 months NO

-
___

Up to 6 months

During a period of hardship to th e
bsnowar. aa determined by the ached °

.
YES (Wm applies
to NDSLV

NO, but see °For
, temente," p. 40

NO, but see Voir.
bearantet7 p. 40

for thp current
aid administrator

that date.
See your

i

,

NO, but sae
beminep. 40

A

period of earn lment.
for 14

borrowers* who have obtained a loan
for half-time* study. See your financial

1963, but YES for all loans made before
Corps determents are slightly different.

Direct/Defense Student Loans iNDSL's
continues to accumulate.

'Deferments are for principal only.
2Half.time* enrollment is allowed only for new
'Only new borrowers* are eligible for deferment
more information.
. for all loans made on or after August 15.
'National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
administrator.
°For new borrowers* only.
'Applies to Perkins Loans only. not to National
sPrincipal and interest may be deferred, hut interest
*See -Important Terms:pages 43 to 50.

--
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IMPORTANT TERMS

Ability to Benefit: Applies to students who do not have a high
school diploma, or its equivalent, or a GED (General Education
Development Certificate). These students can still receive Federal
student aid if they take a test measuring their ability to
benefit from the education offered. The test must be
administered independently and must be approved by
the U.S. Department of Education. Students should
check with their financial aid administrator for more
information.

Anti-Drug Abuse Act Certification: To receive a Pell Grant, you
must sign a statement certifying that you will not make, distribute,
dispense, possess, or use illegal drugs during the period covered by
the Grant. In addition, you are also certifying that if you are
convicted of a drug-related offense committed during that period, you
will report the conviction in writing to the U.S. Department of
Education. Your Student Aid Report (SAR) will contain this
certification statement although, in some cases, your school may ask
you to sign instead a separate statement it has prepared.

11.,_W' NOTE: Your eligibility for any of the programs covered in this
Guide may he suspended or terminated by a court as part of a
conviction for possessing or distributing illegal drugs.

Assets: Savings and checking accounts, the value of a business,
stocks, bonds, money market funds, mutual funds, real estate, trust
funds, etc. Cars are not considered assets, nor are possessions such
as stamp collections or musical instruments.

Citizen/Eligible Non-Citizen: You must be one of the following to
receive Federal student aid:

U.S. citizen
U.S. national (includes natives of American Samoa or Swa n's
Island)
U.S. permanent resident who has an 1-151, 1-551, or 1-551C (Alien
Registration Receipt Card)

43
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If you're not in one of these categories, you must have an Anival-
Departure Record (1-94) from the U.S. Immigration and
Naturalization Service (INS) showing one of the following
designations:

"Refugee"
"Asylum Granted"

0"Indefinite Parole" and/or 'Humanitarian Parole"

R
"Cuban-Haitian Entrant, Status Pending"
"Conditional Entrant" (valid only if issued before April I, 1980)

O Other eligible non-citizen with a Temporary Resident Card
(1-688)

Also, you're eligible for Federal student aid if you have a suspension
of deportation case pending before Congress.

If you're in the U.S. on an Fl or F2 student visa only, or on a JI or J2
exchange visitor visa only, you cannot get Federal student aid. Also,
persons with G series visas (pertaining to international organizations)
are not eligible for Federal student aid.

NOTE: Only citizens and non-citizen nationals can receive a
Stafford Loan. PLUS, or SLS for study at a foreign institution.

Permanent residents of the Trust Territory of the Pacific (Palau) may
be eligible for all the student aid programs mentioned in this booklet.
Citizens of the Federated States of Micronesia and the Marshall
Islands are eligible for Pell Grants, Supplemental
Educational Opportunity Grants (SEOG's), or College
Work-Study only. All of these citizens should check with
their financial aid administrators for more information.

Cost of Education tor Cost of Attendance): The total amount it
will cost a student to go to schoolusually expressed as a yearly
figure. The cost of education covers tuition and fees; on-campus room
and board tor a housing and food allowance for off-campus students):
and allowances for books, supplies, transportation, child care,
costs related to a handicap, and miscellaneous expenses.
Talk to the financial aid administrator at the school
you're planning to attend if you have any unusual
expenses that may affect your cost of education or your
ability to pay that cost,

44
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Default: Failure to repay a student loan according to the terms
agreed to when you signed a promissory note.* Default also means
failure to submit requests for deferment or cancellation on a timely
basis. If you default on a student loan, your school, lender, State, and
the Federal Government all can take action to recover the money,
including notifying national credit bureaus of your default. This may
affect your future credit rating for a long time. For example, you may
find it very difficult to borrow from a bank to buy a car or
a house. Also, you may be liable for expenses incurred in
collecting the loan. If you decide to return to school,
you're not entitled to receive additional Federal aid or a
deferment of your loan repayments. Finally, the Internal
Revenue Service may withhold your income tax refund.

The amount of your refund will be
applied toward the amount you Owe

VAR LOA%
APPilt I ION

Eligible Program: A course of study that leads to a degree or
certificate at a school that takes part in one or more of the student aid
programs described in this booklet. To get a Pell Grant, SEM,
Perkins Loan, or a College Work-Study job, you must be enrolled in
an eligible prog-ram. The same is true for a Staflbrd Loan. PLUS. or
SLS, with two exceptions:

--If a school has told you that you must take certam coursework to
qualifY for admission into one of its eligible programs. you can get a
Stafford Loan or an SLS tor your parentlsl can get a PLUS for you
for up to 12 consecutive months while you're completing that
coursework You must he enrolled at least half-time,* trici you
must meet the usual student aid ehgibility requirements.

--If you're enrolled at least half-time* in a program to obtain a
professional credential or certification that is required for
employment as an elementary or secondary school teacher in a
particular State. you can get a Stafford Loan or an SLS tor your
parentlsl can get a PLUS for you) while you're enrolled in the
program.

Exit Interview: A counseling session you must attend before you
leave your school, if you have any of the loans described in this
booklet. At this session, your school will give you inkrmat ion on the
average amount borrowers owe, the amount of your monthh,
repayment, and information about deferment, refinalwing. and loan
consolidation options.
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Family Contribution (FC): An amount that indicates how much of

your family's financial resources should be available to help pay for

school. This amount, determined by a formula called the
Congressional Methodology, is used in determining your eligibility for

aid from the Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant SEOG),

College Work-Study (CWS), Perkins Loan, and Stafford
Loan programs. If you have any unusual expenses that
may affect your Family Contribution, make sure you
notify your financial aid administrator.

Financial Aid Package: The total amount of financial aid a student

receives. Federal and non-Federal aid such as loans, grants, or work-

study are combined in a "package" to help meet the student's need,

Using available -esources to give each student the best possible

package of aid is one of the major responsibilities of a school's

financial aid administrator.

Guarantee Agency: The organization that administers the Stafford

Loan, PLUS, and SLS programs in your State. The Federal

Government sets loan limits and interest rates, hut each State is free

to set its own additional limitations, within Federal guidelines. This

agency is the best source of information on Stafford Loans, PLUS

loans, and SLS loans in your State. To find out the name, address,

and telephone number of the agency in your State, as well

as informatim about borrowing, call the Federal Student
Aid Information Center at 1 800) 333-IWO, if calling
before May 1, 1991; 1 1800)4 FED AID. if calbng on or
after May 1, 1991.

Half-Time: At schools measuring progress by credit hours and

academic terms semesters, trimesters, or quarters), "half-time"

means at least 6 semester hours or quarter hours per term. At

schools measuring progress by credit hours but not using academic

terms, "half-time" means at least 12 semester hours or 18 quarter

hours per year. At sehools measuring progress by clock hours, "half-

time" means at least 12 hours per week. Note that schools may

choose to set higher minimums than these. Also, Stafford Loan,

PLUS, and SLS requirements may be slightly different.

You must be attending school at least half-time to be eligible *a

receive a Pell Grant, Stafford Loan, a PLUS, or an SLS. Half-time

enrollment is not a requirement to receive aid from the Supplemental

Educational Opportunity Grant, College Work-Study, and Perkins

Loan programs.
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Internship Deferment: A period during which loan payments can
be deferred (postponed) if a borrower is participating in a program
required to begin professional practice or service. An internship
deferment also includes participation in an internship or residency
program leading to a degree or certificate awarded by an institution of
higher education, hospital, or health care facility offering
postgraduate training. (Note to Perkins Loan borrowers: This
second aspect of an internship deferment applies only if your period of
enrollment in school began on or after July 1, 1987, and you had no
outstanding I unpaid! National Direct/Defense Student Loan I NDSLI
on that date.) If you're in an eligible internship program, you may
defer repayment of your Perkins Loan/NDSL, Stafford Loan, or SLS
for up to 2 years.

Loan Consolidation: A plan that allows certain eligible lenders to
pay off your existing student loans and to create one new loan. You're
eligible for loan consolidation if you have loans totalling at least
$5,000. You must be in repayment (or have entered ur grace
period) before your loans can he consolidated. You cannot be more
than 90 days delinquent on any loan being consolidated. The interest
rate on the consolidated loan will be 9 percent or more, depending on
the inter.._.st rates of the loans consolidated. The repayment period
will be from 10 to 25 years. depending on the amount to be repaid.
Except for PLUS loans, the student loans described in this booklet are
eligible for consolidation.

New Borrower: A term that applies to the Stafford Loan, PLUS, or
SLS programs. You're a -new borrower" under these programs if you
had no outstanding t unpaid) Stafford Loans, PLUS. SIS. or
consolidation loans on the date you signed your promissory note, and
if your loan was either disbursed on or after July 1, 1987 or was for a
period of enrollment that began on or after July 1, 1987. Once you
qualify as a new borrower, the loan conditions that apply to "new
borrowers" automatically apply to any future StalThrd Loans, PLUS
loans, or SLS loans you may receive.

Parental Leave Deferment: A period of up to 6 months when loan
payments can be postponed if a borrower is pregnant, or if a borrower
is taking care of a newborn or newly adopted child. The borrower
must be unemployed and not attending school. To get this deferment.
you must apply within 6 months after you leave school or drop below
half.time* status.

Pell Grant Index (PGI): The number that appears on your Student
Aid Report (SAR), telling you about your Pell Grant eligibility. The
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PGI is calculated by a standard formula that uses the financial
information you reported when you applied for Federal student aid.

Promissory Note: The legal document you sign when you
get a student loan. It lists the conditions under which
you're burrowing and the terms under which you agree to

pay back the loan. It's very important to READ AND

SAVE this document because you'll need to refer to it later
when you begin repaying your loan.

Regular Student: One who is enrolled in an institution to obtain a
degree or certificate. Generally, to receive aid from the programs
discussed in this hookkt, you must be a regular student. (For the
Stafford. PIA fti, and SI.S progrIlms, there are two exceptions to this
requirement. See the definition ofeligible program.*)

Satisfactory Academic Progress: To be 1.4igible to receive Federal

student aid, you must be maintaining satisfactory academic progress
toward a degree or certificate. You must meet your school's written

standard of satisfactory progress. Check with your school to find out

what its standard is.

If you received Federal student aid for the first time on or after

July 1, 1987 and you're enrolled in a program that's longer than 2
years, the f011owing definition of satisfactory progress also applies to

you: You must be maintaining a "r" average by the end of your
second academic year of study, or have an academic standing
consistent with your institution's graduation requirements. You must

cmitinue to maintain satisfactory aeademic progress for the rest of

your course of study.

Special Conditions: Several specific circumstances that require
expected 1991 income --instead of 1990 income- -to be used to

calculate a student's Pell Grant eligibility. These conditions
accommodate certain situations where a family's financial
circumstances would be worse in 1991 than in 1990. In these cases,

using 1991 income would more accurately reflect the finnily's
financial status.

The conditions, listed in the chart on the next page, differ somewhat.

depending on whether you're a dependent or independent student.
(See the discussion of dependency status on page 11.) Expected 1991
income will be used in your Pell Grant eligibility
calculation only if one of these special conditions
applies to you. For compkte details on what you
should do if you think you meet one of these conditions,

see your financial aid adnnnistratiir.
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SPECIAL

CONIMTION
DEPENDENT

STUDENT
INDEPENDENT

STUDENT

LOSS OF
EMPLOYMENT

1 A parent who earned money in 1990 has
lost his or her job for at least 10 weeks in
1991.

1 A parent who earned money in 1990 has
not been able to earn money in his or her
usual way for at least 10 weeks in 1991.
This must have been because of a disability
or a natural disaster that happened in 1990
or 1991.

1 You worked full-time (at least 35 hours a week) for
at least 30 weeks in 1990, but you aren't working
full-time now.

1 Your spouse earned money in 1990, but has lost his
or her job for at least 10 weeks in 1991.

1 You (or your spousetearned money in 1990 but have
not been able to earn money in the usual way for at
least 10 weeks in 1991. This must have been because
of a disability or a natural disaster that happened in
1990 or 1991.

LOSS OF NON-
TAXABLE
INCOME OR
BENEFITS

1 A parent who received unemployment
compensation or some untaxed income or
benefit in 1990 has completely lost that
income or benefit for at least 10 weeks in
1991. The untaxed income or benefit must
be from a pubhc or private agency. from a
company, or from a person because of a
court order.

7 You for your spouse) received unemployment
compensation or some untaxed income or benefit in
1990 but have completely lost that income or benefit
for at least 10 weeks in 1991. The untaxed income or
benefit must he from a public or private agency, from
a company. or from a person because of a court order.

SEPARATION
OR DIVORCE

1 Your parents have separated or gotten
divorced after you've applied for Federal
student aid.

1 You and your spouse have separated or gotten
divorced after you ve applied for Federal student aid.

DEATH
1 A parent, who received income in 1990.
has died after you ve applied for Federal
student aid.

1 Your spouse. who received income in 1990, has died
after you ve applied for Federal student aid.
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Statement of Educational Purpose/Certification Statement on
Refunds and Default: You must sign this statement in order to

receive Federal student aid. By signing it, you're stating that you do

not owe a refund on a Pell Grant or SEOG, that you're not in default

on a Perkins Loan, Stafford Loan, or SLS, and that the amount you've
borrowed under those loan programs doesn't exceed the allowable
limits. You're also agreeing to use your student aid only for

education-related expenses. Part I of the 1991-92 Student Aid Report

(BAR) contains such a statement. You must sign either this one or a

similar one prepared by your school.

IL-4r NOTE: If your parent wants to borrow a PLUS loan for you,
neither you nor your parent can owe a refund or be in default. Your

parent will also have to sign a statement of educational purpose/

certification statement on refunds and default that your school will

prepare.

Statement of Registration Status: If you're required to register

with the Selective Service, you must sign a statement indicating you

have done so before you can receive any Federal student aid. This
requirement applies to males who were born on or after January 1,

1960, are at least 18, are citizens* or eligible non-citizens,* and

are not currently on active duty in the Armed Forces. (Citizens of the

Federated States of Micronesia, the Marshall Islands, or the Trust

Territory of the Pacific Palau) are exempt from registering.)

Part 1 of the 1991-92 Student Aid Report contains a statement of

registration status. You must sign either that one or a similar one

prepared by your school. (Some schools require all students to sign a

statement, indicating that the student either has registered with the

Selective Service or is not required to do so.)

Statement of Updated Information: You must sign a statement

certifying that certain Student Aid Report (SARI items are correct at

the time you submit your SAR to your school. If information for any of

those items changes after you submit your application, you must
update the information so that it's correct on the date you sign your

SAW Otherwise, you won't be able to receive Federal student aid.

Read the Statement of Updated Information on the back of Part 1 of

your SAR for the information that must be updated.

NOTE: The only exception to the requirement to update is

when changes occur because your marital status changes. In that

case, you cannot update.
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$7ArEMENT OF
DIRECTOR OF ADvERTISING AND PUBLIC AFFAIRS

U.S. ARMY REcRuirING COMMAND

mr, Chairman and members of the Commitee

It Is a pleasure to appear before this commIttee and share
Insights witn the members concerning the Army,$ NBe All You can
Be" camowign.

Army recruiting on today's scale began in 1971, as the
Department of Defense Prepareo for the task of replacing a Pertly
ronsCriptec Army with an all-volunteer force. rhO change was
implemented oy the Nixon administration following recommendations
of a Presidential commission headed by former Secretary of
Defense themgs Dates. Tne last drzetee reported to auty in Ju;
2973

7ne cc,r-try 14bC hewer before maintalneC a force of the
present sire through vo.lunteerlsm, but the Gates commission
indidat&o ir was fees1D/,., orcviding certain conOltions were met:
a competitive wage for soldiers. other financial incentives fnr

nare-tc-*111 swi/ls, anc an eApancrec and modernized recruiting
pf!nrt

The:e were Initial aLguriel, of success as tt)r Li. . Arl,y

Fro:rJ!ting remmahe 1,:conclIshed very high recrultfng
missiors In 1974 and 1475; however, circumstanceS conSoired
S011.st continued success: recr,,Iting and adyertising birOpets
were cut in Fiscal rear 1976; tne vlat Nam Era ;,r. Rill was
alloweo to expire; arO tne nation emerged from 8 recession,
By 1979 both duantitat!ve and qualitative goals were peing
misse0, and Army rni.0,f of Stiff EOwarC C. Meyer Plis telling
fangress that tne nae a "hollow Army."

Tr5e Are4 tpsbonot-c by shifting resources into recruiting ane
a0vertlsing, Oro the Congress authorized additional incentives.
These included eventually a large entitlement, now called the
Montgomery G.T. Bill and Army College Fund, to support post-
service education, end a Federal Loan Repayment Program for those
who enlist after college. major General Maxwell Thurmen waS
assigned as USAREC Commanding General. Under his leadership,
initiatives which Jntroduced sales force automation end Other
state-of-tne-art marketing practices transformed Army recruiting.
The "Be All You Can 8e*" aovertising campaign was first aired in

.lanuary 1981 after almost a year of development.

113
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The result-1.10 tha^9, wes
compared by 42pih Achembaum,

writing In 110aErK. to the miller NIQPI UN story PS 1 WO
esantle of n Instance "...In 10110) a troubled established

proouct has Dee' turned around consequence of Marketing.

Jet along dvertislh;.° Nomerical recruiting missioms have boon

mtt OvefY Year SI"Ce 1979, but the real ihdiCes of imoroegsgmt

ar Qualitative: 55 oercent of 1980 enliStatti were high school

graduates comosred to 95 Percent In 199O. Average Armed Service

quollrioell0" Test scores rose Irt a similar
tosmion over tma same

interval.

Tne ouollfst!,e shJft hes trthslateb into both savings no

Improve:1' perfc:Ta-ce, the 'better because high sch0c1 graduates

complete el: tours oe service at much migmer rates them hOh...

grocruat:C.
Orl:#-tcr ihoi.iouole ore easter ee train *AO they

perform better, particw:a:Iy in team situations. AWIL rates.

violent orl-es, oh0 :±ther types of social catnoIopy ell olummetw

Oetmee" 19e: a': :=cay,
ef0roing more time for the tough,

reaLis:lc trai-ih; tnet cic"ucei s4,ch excellent results In

DDP7a!l0n 5!'r-.

r:.n1 the 17-21

year-:sl7 11;e :r:Lc fs-es most mi:itory enlietees, the

4r-, "scrce cf :,..sl-essv is c,,;f 1.3? milliun. rr!:3

:s ar:',41!' at :y
tne lorgo r4eloor omo ore

t:
teca4.se ce incomplete erivcatic"

tes: :-e collece

attenceec. a": 4::e8 c, 5er1no.

;?.:T.r; vv.*. r vrpe:tment C'

:eee'se rec,!:e:- :'e
fi.e etch, this oz,olt with the 4r.y

:a-ing Jtc,t t. Ze7:P': !^,9! olgae. LOwee regAismemts

exoectec 1- r.1,.re years i.Toly a less formidable extraction rate:

noever, :me reoIoh .111 or :ffsrt someirNit by a yearly

oe:Iire I- tne size ' t'e e;e ::ohor; that :LI./ opItInue until

199t On: "0! re.erse Itsele ;ate in the oeesoe.

Ad!tlomb.:,, stan/arCs, whic" limit tne size cf t,Ito

oo. m,as' te ftsa4ned.

active t:qy recriti% Is accomplished by 0 force of 4,90:

ehlisteC recr-l:ets C'Istr.!DoteC wOrlawItle, rne total riscel Year

1991 c.7.st *!;; n $526,1m,
ecoroximately 7.5 percent of w"IC" is

devoteo to ad.e::Ising emo bub:Irity OlOgrems.

BEST COPY AVAILABLE
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"'ME FIRST MN -EARS

The military services are autnOr1100 to advertise because

recrultirs cannot Possibly reach the 20 miliion young people of

prime enlistment age unaided. AdvertiSing gives military

recruiters a One 4rMy recruiters art fortunate in being

helped by one of tne best campaigns in advertising hiStOry.

"Be All You Cam 8e" Is almost ten yeers 010 end Still going
Strong, sometriro that cam be said about only a hehOful of lover-

tieing slogans. mowvrer. trlis "magic" cOmPaign was preceded bY

Army advertising vnIch 010 acnieve Some Success and film which we

learned ImportaYt lessons.

"Tloey'S Army wants to Join You," the first campaign concept
of the All vol.p-teer rorce eta, was designed to ovoroome strong

negative imades associsteo witm A:my service; to change the pre-

valent minds,: tmat cne joinvo the ot'.ar military Services but

was dretec int- the Army; am0 to make young pedole aware of

greatly incresse: oak WIC other econOmic incentives. It succeeded

agale'st :mese dt!ectives eno comttibuteo to early All Volunteer

Flfce Ald:Cesst Put ItS Permissive tone was widely

vis:imec c, ser.1.-Q soldiers and retirees. It Wes di3cOntinwed

In 191,

rre cv"oal;- oc-crot, rebresented by the signature

1I"e ";cl' r-0 :C:Ito e Army." Projected many of

tPe sa.T, 1- A -ore acceotable form. Additiomelly,

!*7P SOMPellt in five,: of tne

trAc1l ":::n tme Peddle" evolved t,..rd.do

se,eral om,;ses wo, reC;teZel by a Sl'ort Liver, ranoai;t1

Neaf21-e: ",is is :-e 4:1y." Cer'PaIn CO1CeOt veS Pearl

ffECf: r^.e A:Pry nod become remote to a

,ev y:-1g cecc1e; 010 lt attempted to remedy that

ty i'c ol,t:ereo, ad formets. Its appearance

ccIncIre: w1t recrwIri.o 'sflures, and It was nct oar:eirao

:c Pe 6.)::esit t'e L:MY" elvertisin; veS aired wmile

ceveloc-e-!41 7:- :nt "Be 2; You Can Be" camosign was pro-

nnoNCIno.

BE A..L vriu -4*. 4r

rre fle AI: :e- 6e" comoelqn originated from a zero-
oast:, re.few cr the situation a"Certeke1 1", January 1900, a

review vnIC" c,'"1,*.ateC 11 Creative
recommenostioms oreselteo to

trle -'nertment tme 22.Ty or 16 Jur,* 1980. restinp ano osoduc.

tic- 0' tme al:r:vec ;.reative rc1repts proceeded crwritr; the

ulc srld ffrst *Ps lted in January 1902.
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ImItIal "Br C:1 VV..; COM Se" mos capitelited on the Army'S

new Pee'mtie.0. t5 covA`otse4 the "*Allie 4,1 doe" irufo, thot

research hied reveille; as a major barrier to serim.s consideration

of army servICP I^ :Omni/T:181 SOvert1slm2 terms. It aimed for

1.1 imprOYCY Orono im4oe and trockir; studies showed that it

ouoccodco. ts'e eem.0o10^ *es reoltalme0 vitoi throve

COtif,woas rayiep a-C siistmpri of overtisiho trostments rests

stratedic oclitrtiy*1 as oe have learned more bout enlistment

mptivaticr sra 'Eire &Morey to cheding CitavmStanceS. Different

04se5 cf carcai;r heve beer characterized by chanoeS in VIE

laSt 11ne--dricine:14 "Derase we 'WC yOu in the Armf"--o? tne

"Be All raw Car fie" S"1,

m:r0
0105S^; 1e. "yew can do it in tne Army,"

waS le,tr00..:ec 2951, wit, e0vertS511 StrOng.:Y ASOM;t1m9 the

orT,
r'frr5 $4, to $2.5,2D0 for post-service

elucatic : 'c5A it%" Zi,a;.!?Y. TnIs wivsjailophilin-141,..5 by

"f.fmb y:-: '^ c^e Arry," eter research revesled the the

0e$: Drr..sze:!s ore ;cal oriented end lock at Armv Service as a

mee-s t: s :7^;e: ter, e-Z. Acs 'tetwre0 yo.mg scldiers sPeakiong

i" tne fIrs! ^:* v'elr 4rny experience relareo to

the:: t'e

71"e 50-i
was mintalec as t^e 4rmy

8.:."!7JPr ', Did: tre ices wos evcressac

!'"e !`;'i!,re :ine '''et an erne on

817!
.Trt slTi2er rar,tert :r por:IPT

. ' . 11.,:;!CIDIOrS

ei:res5: .L:-, zrtis'fa T," cancelo", "1:' was Intrcouce:

in

_a "r 'a-. 7r7;.t!. 0 ;e:c..31"; ewer fror SarT
"1-.7 !-wEr-7:

abrah:SDeS elf sermin;. lt was

1.4:0-rte: 0.
r:rctr:h khlrh 4,notletee tmet lecluAter

47""y ere ?' !:3's'tf skl:13 firC ;O:c w:rm

h aD.:!S i^::
::.;:ls- orv'crce, 4 mey StCy, OnV TN' CI:sr

!- 'ArT, Avva,!!;115-
6c.'ettlS:':, 445 8 Swreer Of ,M010y8TS ccr-

rec Di !^1, :c--!::ee r:r fcc-rmic Development. This researc"

olo not tre:!'1:;;:y st.wey :0:0:or:, owt its FSPIdSmcis revee140'

"Z'SibP" f?1?,?., o.dalities--ocod work habits end

InterpersAo;
r40,1/ volued by today's employers.

ro.w hq' rir-A!A cr r; '0-0v remnipier, Cy t°NO miumPact
tc t-e Arrw Qesear:h 4nStlf,,:e

c" tne military eiDeriv,:e amo hos

obtained SIN'S:a' reS.:S5.

1

BEST COPY AVAILABLE



108

AlfacrioNs F.0

Altnougn t^e evolution of Army advertising is 0 wetter of
chntinuing dio.:ng.e Detwiler+ tne Army and its contraCt dvertising
agency, Youno quDicam, Pit fOrmel DroCSS of creating new
sovertisimo for 1991 began wIth direction provided to the gency
in Februery 195C. lig was esweo flrSt tO xemine the xisting
dvertising p002 fcr sufflciency, applying Specific orttorla.
Second, tney *ere asked to examime impiirations of expected
changes In tne Army mission. size end Structure as those changes
mignt pear on tn way tne Army presents itself to the public.
Third, t"ey were charged with ringing ways to extend and amplify
the successful -Army Advantages" thrust. And. VI/V.:1y they were
encouragec to see- imncvetive ono non_treditionel methods of
marketing tc suoolement meSS.mardIa advertising.

Ir ree.1,; cool, Yea was asked first to consider
how wel: 1: acc-esses earn of several decision stages PrOemtive
rhiisteeS ;r trciç as rney become swore of Army opportunities,
Cevelo 9 erfc:s irterest, rrive at a decision to sign an
er'llStme^t ::-!rett, Oho VW' IIve tAet serious decision.
:cncern!n; t- :st:e:, rel-ifcrci.,g or enlistment decislom is a
letter t:', :Tpc;tar,re netaJse young Deople May "contract" as

a= a Yth: or'cse trle!T retzrting Oates. Over thet intervi;
1"'ey :0' Ot.:-A S.ib:eCt to :-e "o.rve: remorse" fit"'121ar to
se::ers c'

*os .52!tC fo5or: ": CIPS:;^ oonte':
s6vreS5'al rry recruitee-t

!-Tr_f!,p-es, to 0-par,e t'')e attentron of Oh eesi.:y
e_o:e-oe; e,r.,:e!fty, to oolnect with the wants

a 'o 'reCS -; ze:k.e *aye 2w oersonal ln,o;vement in
t-e ;Ps :f 4"' e=:':r, t: ":1C oi,r recriditer,
!-'preste: #: 8 c' -orr*itment; ant/ reass,ra^re,
-- des: 0!!. -:_,er re- osP "

2iY2 :Fvf

Tiwr re:3--e-zIa'!cns emaroeo from tne review of tnp
atIvert,151rO orc;:em. oerr`e: to ocr)SlIerettOrt of Army service
^SO Teres;e0 :tre:f 1" t,,e form of a strong Objection to the
regi'mohtistao, ma^i researof, res17:7-oents felt was characteriStic
of se:im;. wa-i Solo;erS, nowever, offered a different
Perspective f- 4;e^cy ce:so,e; eS they visited Army instellations,

orrspect:.e !Nat swrc:ts am .',nOlvid.Jally cnallenging portrayal
cf n Army exzerle,re w-lch yoahO Soldiers are given two:.
tv'ftlel ,?v"!!. 1";15 was tri-Slitt: Into televiSIO"

1 1 7
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storlocarcs wtio' featt,re yo,.n; soldiers, one a Ranger he the

ot*Ier a eva1r) oes11-; with heavy persona: responsibility

(hiring the conc:t of training exercises.

4 seco-C recommends:Ion
resulting from the review addreSS00

the mir8C to turrter reinforce the decision to ohltSt. It tack

the form o 8 c.ster that e.soreSseS the nduring pride gainec

through servize to couttry, a sort of "uncle Sam Wants rout, for

tne .199U's.

4 variety cf ocoortunitles to xtend the "Army Abwehtbges"

itiea were ifiettifito anr 0*D:cited. A television scenario

employlhg otA:k outs of so101ers in action OisplOYS a variety of

reasons why toCes er,ClOyers went to hire people with the skills

ano 4ttrit7L.ps A.rpilymn Armi garrfrok. 41roonrr tor rhfs

CemeS frot, t'e Sufvet Cr eloyeeS recently Comoleted Dy MumeRc.

1' ecic7ess!'g t-e '4rm) 40venteges" idea to the high srhool

stuve-ts w., re::._.-t our 2ergest. Source of ootehtiel recruits.

the vea:er se:e::;.ity tnat comes with smaller Army manpower

meeds enao.;e5 s :: new& common ret.se with educators in urpino

s!oehts t: ;ste s".0 Oue2Ify. 4 trial high SemObl "Stay if'

ity:101h; ::sterS. oub:ic Service nnouncements

and otter !!!!Ans n.n.All tele
o.tromoly wc:1 recoi.ed by high

szhool It tte and the concept was expander

!'e veer. ac nalLy, promo-

riots: -e'rrla:t Ol:ecter !tr.
ocmm,..tity will prOrire

reasr ro 's .
Itts: !'ecr.iter" and also to See* ot,t

e': a:; 6:---1' In $::1,:ng the ',46,1),

:^4* tur harlot.

:n t's tter r: Zai 6 4br8nO Image" suita:;e

f:r a otat;2-; 4. .

c"e1-; worlc, a sf,ort videCtSbe !Or

0.8 :y recii'.-; ot--a-teri a": rtte: Army spowespersmms ih

'ic ore5t--te':o-5 was pr,or.ce:. /t 'focuses on tnt APPmfInft"

s:2^;er it e. i'e rItt-siors of 4rmy serrice: as a key

ele'lltr of terl--a. Ie'e-se 8:3C 8 ''PlimS 10 SCV val.:, to tPls

recl!4: p r-8 wOrk?arrp,

'ne me. 01-:It.lo-s to the ArTy eovertising 0001 amplify e^c

exte-c ar-11'. r: eroress prospective enlistees and illsO the

v:ts w.c The, will, further, promote the tre':

tower: 8 CD'vt:;:n interest tf the Artl. educators *he business

peop:e in a-tivitle* that lncrove tne Productive capabilities of

the latiot's yo pe;:ole as er ImoOrtent 0y-proouct of notion*:

I s
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Statement Before the Senate Subcommittee on

Government Information and Regulation

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

It is a pleasure to appear before you today to talk about the

Department of Education's dissemination of information related to

Federal, State, and other programs of student financial

assistance. We support a wide variety of activities designed to

inform high school and college students, their parents, and high

school and college counselors, about the student assistance

programs under Title VI of the Higher Education Act. These

activities range from targeting and distributing publications for

students to more than 40,000 secondary schools and other

community, State, and private organizations each year, to funding

training programs and specific educational access programs that

target low-income, often first-generation students for

recruitment and placement, with the necessary financial

assistance, in a postsecondary institution. Let me share with

you some of the particulars of our efforts.

For the current fiscal year, the Congress has appropriated more

than $12 billion for the Title IV student assistance programs.

In order for students and parents to benefit from the

1 20
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availability of these funds, they must first know that they are

there to aid eligible students. Therefore, we publish a Student

guidg 141th about 50 pages of information describing the major

Federal programs and terminology, student rights and

responsibtlities, and loan default avoidance. We distribute 9

r'i1in coples of the agide to high schools, colleges, libraries,

community agencies, and individual students and parents. While

we distribute this publication to the more than 20,000 high

schools, we also send it to an additional 20,000 community

organizations including adult education centers where the non-

traditional students who make up more and more of the

postsecondary population are served. We also design a colorful

poster announcing the availability of Federal student financial

assistance which is distributed to many of these same

organizations.

We also involve the counselors in high schools and TRIO projects,

in Urban League and rural service center organizations in our

efforts to disseminate information about the financial aid

programs. This fail we plan to publish the Counselor!_i panalogk,

a resource for guidance personnel who must answer student

questions about the Federal student assistance programs. These

counselors also assist students and parents in completing

application forms for these programs. We expect to rail more

than 40,000 copies of the CouncLelorls Hondkm& to student service

personnel. In conjunction with the audent Guide, the Handb9.11A

provides these college, secondary school, and communIty
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counselors with key information they need to carry out their

critical role in publicising these programs to millions of high

school and college students who need this information.

To the extent that out resources permit, we also tailor our

publications to the needs of specific segments of the student

population in this country. Thus, we print and distribute the

Application for Federal Student Aid (AFSA), which is a free form

students may use to apply for Federal student assistance. We

print 13 million AFSAs,
including 1.3 million copies in Spanish.

We also print and distribute 50,000 copies of a Student Aid Fact

Peet in Spanish; the Eut Wieet contains the key information

found in the tudent Guick. We are also developing a new

publication for students in middle school and the early high

school grades that will emphasize how careful academic and

financial planning can put college within reach of all quailfied

students. Finally, we distribute 20,000 copies of anothei

publication. Floiller Edgcational Opportunities for_ Minorities arid

women, to many of the same groups mentioned earlier. Thir;

publication describes public and private sources of studeet.

assistance which are of special interest to its audience.

In addition to these publicaric,ns, we also have operated a

Federal Student Aid Information Center for more than 10 ytais.

This Center consists of a staff of highly trained and

knowledgeable ryecialists who operate a bank of toll-free

telephone lines to respond to general questions about student

122
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assistance from 1;tudents, parents, and school and college

counselors. These counselors also help with more specific

requests for assistance in completing application forms,

verifying the status of a student's application, or forwarding

opie: of publications. To make certain that the Center's

services are widely publicized, we print and distribute a

hrochure describing it to more than 40,000 individuals and

u;ganiaations in our network of high school, college, and State,

local, c.nd community service agencies. During 1990, this center

rcf;p0, 7ed to more than I million telephone inquiries and more

tsar 200,000 written requests for information. We are very

rlearPfi with the quality of service the Center provides and the

uset.; function it performs.

I have iescribed some of the major publications we develop and

J4strIrJtr throughout the nation each year using an information

kl:seTI:..ition network that we are continually refining and

expanuing. In an effort to make certain that we do not

inadvertently omit any group or individual needing these

Iribliclrion:: And information, we also coordinate our

dissemination efforts with other Federal and State dissemination

activities. We make copies of our publications available to the

Consumer Information Center operated by the General Services

Administration; we publicize our publications to educational

a5sociations such as the National Scholarship Service for Negro

St1-,zs And the professional associations representing high

rcnk.ol 3nd college guidance counselors and college financial aid

1 '. 3
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officers. We also make our staff available to provide

information to the many columnists who write articles for

students and parents seeking information about Federal student

financial assistance. Through the media, we reach a still larger

audience and further ensure that vital information is received by

the public.

Tha Department also funds access and retention programs that have

as their objective the identification, recruitment, preparation,

and admission to postsecondary education of low-income, first

generation college students. The largest of these programs are

the TRIO programs. Two of these programs, Talent Search and

Upward Bound, work with students and adults who are not yet

enrolled in college and provide them with counseling regarding

college admissions and financial assistance. We currently tunl

more than 170 Talent Search programs that work with students and

adults to prepare them for entry into postsecondary education.

For the first time, fifty-eight of these programs have been

approved to serve seventh and eighth graders, and to work wi'lh

them to ensure that these students stay in school long enough to

benefit from the programs of student financial assistance

available for college. Beginning later this year, all Talent

Search projects will be required to provide seventh and eighth

grade students, and their parents, this counseling and financial

Aid information. In this fiscal year, these Talent Search

programs will reach more than 245,000 students with collene

admissions counseling and student aid information.
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The second of the TRIO programs that serves as an access program

frr seccndary students is Upward Bound. Currently, there are more

than 37,000 students participating in more than 500 Upward Bound

programs throughout the nation. Upward Bound counselors work

with tenth, eleventh, and twelfth graders to improve their

academic skills and, ultimately, to enroll them in postsecondary

education. Upward Bound projects are required to provide

Information about student financial assistance and college

adm:..s.ns to their students. These programs have played a

siorificant role in disseminating information about available

sour,7.3 of financial aid to low-income, disadvantaged, and

mino- r,f. students.

Other dlscretionary grant programs in the Department also

efforts to disseminate information about financial aid to

at.idents and parents. The Fund for the Improvement of

Posrecondary Education (FIPSE) has supported a number of

individual projects over the years that work with low-income and

diachantaued -students to place them in college with adequate

financlal as.4istance. A recent FIPSE grant supports a six week

sumpwr camp during which IDth and llth graders will attend

workshops addressing college admissions and financial aid for

high qchool students interested in teaching careers. One of the

,smaller TRIO programs, Educational Opportunity Centers, provides

college and financial aid counseling services to their clients as

We also fund a number of access programs targeted to

-I 5



117

graduate study; these programs provide information about, student

aid to needy undergraduates whose ability to pursue a graduate

degree hinges on the availability of Federal and other sources of

student financial assistance.

We recognize our responsibility to publicize and disseminate

information about the Federal student financial assistance

programs to the constituents who need this information. Through

a program of (1) publications, (2) information centers relying on

toll-free phone banks, and (3) outreach and recruitment

activities, we believe we perform this vital service well. We

are proud of the quality of our publications, our informatinn

center, and our outreach programs. In tandem with these efforts

to disseminate information about available sources of Federal

student aid, we continue our effort to make the need analysis and

aid application system as simple as possible for students

applying for Federal financial assistance. We are also

continuing to conduct training workshops for college financial

aid counselors; high school counselors may attend these free

workshops to acquaint themselves with the Federal student aid

delivery system, its applications and requirements. Taken

together, these activities constitute a significant and

successful national effort to publicize to the nation's parents

and students the important sources of student aid.

I will be happy to respond to any questions you may have about

our efforts.
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To my great Senator Herb Kohl, the
distinguished Chairman of

the Subcommittee on Government Information and Regulation, and

all of the distinguished members of the SUbcommittee, I greet you

on behalf of all the citizens of the State of Wisconsin, and

particularly those from the seventh assembly district.

I am Gwendolynne
Moore and in the Wisconsin Assembly

represent the north and west sides of
Milwaukee, the state's

largest city. During my years in office, I have listened to

hours of testimony on various
subjects and yet I am truly awed

and very honored to be here before this Subcommittee of the

United States Senate today to discuss S 501 as well as the

broader issue of information as it relates to access to

postsecondary
education and student financial assistance.

A front page article in Tuesday's New York Timaa speaks to

the recent economic recovery in Milwaukee together with the

profound devastation
in the city's poor black neighborhoods, many

of which are included in my district.
Quoting Dr. James H.

Johnson, director of the Center for the Study of Urban Poverty at

the University of California at Los Angeles, the article notes

"Milwaukee is a classic case of how a restructured economy has

diminished the employment
opportunities for blacks and for black

males in particular."

The human tragedy
fostered by the unacceptably high levels

of unemployment
among the 47,500 individuals in my assembly

1
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district is indeed profound. More than half of all black

Milwaukeans are on some form of public assistance. The city has

one of the highest black unemployment rates in the country: 20.1

percent, which is more than five times the rate for white

residents.

The Tian' correspondent, like most commentators, finds the

immediate explanation for the current condition of so many black

Milwaukee residents in the changing economy:

Milwaukee pulled itself out of a serious
slumg in the early 1980's and staved off
the current recession by making its old
manufacturing plants more efficient and
expanding services like hotels and retailers.

But the strategy has had an unintended
but equally profound secondary effect. It has
devastated the city's poor black neighborhoods,
whose residents thrived in the high-wage union
jobs of the city's manufacturing heyday and
are now adrift on a rising tide of unemployment,
crime and despair.

And, like the problem, there is some consensus on the

solution: young blacks and older black workers must develop the

skills to compete in the current economy. They must be prepared

to compete for and be successful in jobs, the overwhelming

majority of which will require some level of postsecondary

education.

S 501 provides a variety of mechanisms which will benefit my

constituency. I am particularly supportive of the advertising

campaign authorized under Section 6. We must tell our young

people early and we must tell them often that they ought to

aspire to great things and education provides an avenue to

realize their aspirations. We must constantly emphasize the

2
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possibilities open to them and our confidence in their ability to

achieve those possibilities.

The training made possible under Section 4 of the bill is,

in my view, also one of its particular strengths. This

compilation of information and training for teachers, parents,

counselors, recreation workers, neighborhood center workers is

critical. We must empower all in authority interacting with our

youth and young adults to provide those young people simple,

accurate information about college opportunities.

I would be remiss if I left the members of the Subcommittee

today with the impression that I believed information, in and of

itself, would measurably affect conditions in my district. My

own experience, as a member of the lower socioeconomic class,

convinces me that to make an information campaign regarding

college opportunity truly effective, that campaign must be

delivered by exceptional, knowledgeable, caring human beings.

I grew up the eighth of nine children in a family headed by

a single female. I was raised on welfare and government issued

food. I endured overcrowding in dilapidated housing, received

inadequate health care and was, I believe, miseducated and

provided unequal educational opportunities. As a child, I'd been

the victim of sexual assault and, perhaps as a result of a

combination of these factors, I proceeded through adolescence

with a severe case of low self-esteem.

Much in my immediate environment reinforced my belief that I

was destined to "become nothing". I was told by a Milwaukee

3
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Public School counselor, for example, that I was not college

material--and I believed him. During my last year in high

school, I became pregnant and simply stopped going to school.

(As you may know, today Milwaukee has one of the highest teen

pregnancy rate of any city in the country.)

Fortunately, in my junior year in high school, I was

recruited by an Upward Bound program, one of the TRIO programs

authorized under the Special Programs for Students from

Disadvantaged Backgrounds Subpart of the Higher Education Act of

1965. An Upward Bound counselor, Mr. Theodore Nxumalo, himself

an exiled medical student from South Africa, intervened and

prevented me from becoming a high school dropout by picking me up

at 6:30 a.m. each morning, eating breakfast and lunch with me,

and depositing me at the University of Wisconsin's library. Here

I read and studied to prepare myself for the final exams

necessary to complete the requirements for high school

graduation.

Also during my Upward Bound enrollment, I met Dr. Arnold

Mitchem, then Director of the Educational Opportunity Program at

Marquette University in Milwaukee. Our initial meeting was at a

community-based organization where Dr Mitcham distributed

descriptive pamphlets of the program he directed together with

applications for admission to Marquette and described the

opportunities available to me at that University.

while I was attentive and expressed my desire to attend

college via a brief discussion with Dr. Mitcham, I did not

4
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follow-up on the opportunity. Over the course of the next three

months, as I moved from residence to residence as many inner city

dwellers do, Dr. Mitcham literally tracked me down using the

North Division High School student network to deliver the message

that there was a place for me at Marquette and he wanted me to

enroll at the University.

As a result of that intervention, I applied to and was

admitted to Marquexte Universitybut I brought a lot of social

baggage with me. I was peer, single parent who had low self-

esteem, very rudimentary study skills, and was academically

deficient--particularly in quantitative areas. In addition, I

promptly withdrew from each course which required me to write a

term paper.

The Educational Opportunity Program at Marquette, funded in

part by another TRIO program, Student Support Services, provided

me with academic, personal and financial support--the big three.

Without them I would not have been able to succeed. Although I

was literate, the pamphlets, applications and letters had

virtually no impact on my ultimate enrollment and success in

college. It was the presence and commitment on the part of

individuals which made the difference.

Demographic changes occurring in Wisconsin and throughout

the country make investment in the education of low-income and

minority youth, and the re-training of unskilled and under-

employed adults a pressing priority. It is my conviction,

Senator Kohl and Members of the Subcommittee, that the nation's
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future economic well-being, indeed its long-term security, rest

upon our will to continue to intervene in the 'social ordering"

which denies our country the fullest opportunity to harvest many

of the best and brightest of our human resources.

"Natural ordering" dictates that "cream rises to the top"

and that without interference, graduation from college will be

the natural result for the majority of our most talented. I can

tell you, conversely, that social ordering, as defined by private

rights, kinship, racial conventions and color privileges, is the

crucible of social disadvantage, and that social ordering can and

often does devour whatever natural talent or intelligence a human

being or society may possess.

Continuing governmental intervention--sophisticated messages

delivered through all of the media, adequate financial

assistance, personal intervention from knowledgeable individuals

with skills to adapt to the cultures indigenous to low-income

areas--all of these will be needed to adequately redeem many of

the brightest in my district, and districts like mine in every

state in the nation, from the clutches of mediocrity or

destruction. Our relative positicn in the international economy,

I am convinced, depends in large part on our continued

willingness to make that investment.

6

133



125

Testimony preser.ted to the
Subcommittee on Government Information and Regulatic.i

of the Senate Governmental Affains Committer

Minh 21, 1411

Selena Donl)
Legistative Dimctor

United States Student Association

134

44-999 - 92 5



126

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, it is an honor to appear before you
today to testify on the "Student Counseling and Assistance Network Act of 1991" (S.
501). My name is Selena Dong and I am the Legislative Director of the United States
Student Association, the largest and oldest national student organization, representing
mare than 4 million students. I am originally from California, and am a lune 1990
graduate of the Univezeity of Washington in Seattle, Washington.

When we read Senator Kohl's bill, we were so genuinely excited that we nearly
feinted. For this bill includes so much of what we have been saying for years: that
Title IV student aid programs ere good pmpems that are simply not as well-publicized
as they should be.

A 1983 publication of USSA and the National Student Education Fund reported that
'The inadequacy of cunent financial aid information has been identified as the
greatest impediment to ponsecondaty education access. Studies conducted by several
education associations have fnnnd that individuals most needing financial aid
information low-income persons - are less likely to receive it.'

And in en prees statement issued last October. USSA vice presidein, Tale! Shah, was
quoted as saying "lust as the U S. government pays billions of dollars in commerrial
time to ask young people to 'he ell that you can be - join the Army: the Deportment of
Education needs to equally publicize the availability of federal financial aid so that
people will know ALL their options.'

And just on Monday. ten students testified at a 'oint hearing held by the Senate
Sulxonnnittee on Education, Arts and KAMM Mies, and the House Subcommittee on
Postsecondary Education on Reauthorization of the Higher Education Act These
students came from the city end the country, and the middle-clars suburns and the
ghetto. They are White, African-American, Asian-American, Latino and Native
American. And every_ single one of them testified that while they were gmwing up
they simply were NOT told of the different tym. of financial assistance available for
college. Yet, all of them know that they could join the anny...and go to college. One
woman from Wisconsin testified that she joined the reserves right after her parents
told her that they could not affoni to pay her way through college Another student,
a Native American from Arizona, spoke of seeing countless ads on military assistance
for college but never seeing one ad on financial aidt

Moreover, at a general assembly at the USSA cdnterence this weekend, I asked the 400
studentc attending the conference how many of them knew the words to the eon& "Be
All the You Can Be.- Evetyone raised their hand. No joke. Then I asked how many
of them knew the Detainment of Education's toll-free information number on federal
financial aid, Virtually no one raised his or her hand. No one. And we represent the
more privileged people in our tociety, because we are in college! For every one of us,
there were more youth not enrolled in college We are not reaching the people low-
Income and people of color communitiec - for whom Jr t !sir:nation on student aid
could make such a difference in their lives
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A July 1990 report by the General Accouniing Office entitled 'Higher Education: Gaps

in Parente end Students' Knowledtr of School Costs and Fedenil Aid' revealed, in
the words of the former Secretary of Education, that 'both students and parents were

rnem1ly unaware and uncertain about the availability of ffederall student financial
aid to help pay for college.' This report which looked at 74 studies on parental end
etudent ewaremess of college costs and stueent aid. quoted a 1983 national rurvey of

high school students. which revealed that only 12% of all high school sophomores
knew that Pell Grants were evailabli. in their schools, and only 8% believed that

Stafford Loans were aveilable.

Moreover, Wend student aid - because of inadequate publicity &s exacerbatin_g the

education and income inequalities in our society, instead of arnahonting them. These
stwiits showed parents who had attended college or had other children in college

knew more about rtudent aid than those without these experiences: wealthier and
mow eductted parents were more knowledgeable about student aid than their less
wealthy and educated counterparts; and th se with children in private schools knew

more aWut student aid those with children in city or rural schorsIs,

Because of these reasons. S. SDI is of nitkal necessity. and it would work because it

takes a multifaceted approach 10 the pmblem of inadequate information

dissemination, First, by developing intonnation and counseling seivices, 5. 501

would further enhance the effectiveness of high echool counselors, who at7 criticel.

One student from a low-income community testified thet he would have never
known about scholarships for college - ones that are affording him the opportunity to

attend a prestigoul private school had his high school counselor not gone out of her

way to tell him about them. Likewise, the Native American student testified that his

hip school counselor. untrained in the complexities of federal student aid, geve him

the wrong application forms. Investing in high school counselors, who are critical
components in our efforts to make college a reality to 811 people, would be a

worthwhile.

Second, S. 501 would enhance public access to information resources by developing a

comprehensive guide on college opportunities and financing that would be integrated
with other relevant data haves, and creating the Student Counseling and Assistance
Network, This is crucial. one of the biggest bariters to the student aid system is the

complex and confusing nature of the application proms, in which students are
expected to fill out different applications and pay separate applisetion fees tot private,
institutional, state, and federal sid, Such an onwieldy ;yawn makes it difficult for
students to find out and apply tor all the different types of aid available, 5, 501 would

alleviate this pmblem by providing a more centralized and publicized way to find out

about student aid. In lesponse to the demand fox infonnation on ways to pay for

college, a new industry has developed in which students and parents pay consultants
for information on college admissions end financial aid However, only the
wealthier can afford this service! The education system should be providing this

information and to everyone
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One gumption we have is that high achool and college atudents be explicitly included

in thie gection's proposed Task Force on Public Access since they ale the tergeted
population, and would have important insights and rewurres.

Third, S. 581 would provide funding for an important recruitment and ublicity effort.

Again, this is of critical importance, The GAO study also showed that iSlophomores
who MTV aware of Pell Grants and Stafford Loons in Mel 1W (national survey) were

more likely to enroll in progIsacondary schools in 1982." Early awareness of the reality

of miler does make a difference in students' motivation and ability to puteue a

postsecondary educttion. Momover, this third prong is an aboalutety cmcial

companion to the hill's other elements. which emphasize early intervention. With
41% of the undergraduates on our campuses being age 25 and olden a widows:212
publidly campaign is necessary to ensure that nontraditionally aged students

know about financing their college educations, We will have to :strain large numbers

of workers in the future; in fact, WE will have to educate every man, women and child

to meet the needs of our workforce end to keep Ameika competitive. An exclusive

emphuis on early intervention would sliorichange a large portion of our humen
mowers and potential college students.

Lastly, we support the emphasis on mching low-income, people of color, and other
disadvantaged communities. With the gap in college participation between poor and

nonpoor youth, and between minority end White youth climbing, we must redouble

our efforts to make education a true option for everyone. USA is proud to express
our enthusiastic support WS. 50L We belh.ve that there is no better way to celebrate

the 25th birthday of the Higher Education Act and its Title IV student aid p
than to puhlicize them, and that there is no better way to invest in Americe7Crels
than ensuring that education is a know:, reality for all.
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee, allow me to thank you for inviting the

National Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators to appear before you to

discuss what this nation can do to improve the informational systems that, in turn, enable

citizens to understand that access to postseconeary education is within their mach provided

that they pursue it correctly.

As the preeminent comminee msponsible for overseeing the quality and distribution of our

gmernment's information, and evaluating the effectiveness of the activities of all agencies

and departments it is most fining that you have chosen to review the types of informational

seiviees that are currently being administered by the Education Depanment and others to

inform citizens how they can apply for the $19.5 billion in Federal student aid that is

cummtly available.

As all of you know, the Federal student aid programs were enaeted over twenty-five years

ago to help insure that no qualified citizen would be denied the opportunity to pursue a

postsecondary education for lack of adequate financial resources. By any evaluation, the

investment that the nation has made in the education of its citizens has proved to be a

tremendous success. However, over the past several years a number of circumstances have

arisen. which, in rum. have inhibited many in our society from pursuing a postsecondary

education. Unfortunately. these barriers have most frequently been erected in the paths of

those citizens in our society who are poor. disadvantaged, and disproportionately minority.

As a result, unless we begin to seriously address these problems and increase Ltic education

and training of all of our citizens, then many social scientists tear that America will lose its

large, diverse, and highly productive middle class.

On top of these factors is the reality that America is undergoing nutssive changes in its

economic stmcture and struggling to deal with the realities of a new, highly compenUve
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global marketplace. Foreign competition is very keen, and unless we can maintain a highly

skilled, productive work force, then all of us are in danger of placing at risk the high

standard economic quality of life that sepanites the United States from most of the other

counthes of the world.

In our opinion, there is peibaps no more important issue facing America today than that

which will 141p secure a broad, diverse, well educated and well trained work force that can

support us well into the twenty-first century. However, to achieve this goal necessitates that

we provide opponunity for all of our citizens, in patticular. the growing numbers of those

who are being denied the chance to participate fully in our society.

Equal educational opportunity for all is clearly at the foundation of any solution to these

problems. But to insure that this occurs nNuires that we develop effective early

intervention strategies and more effectively market the stiident aid programs to those who

are most in need. Therefore, allow me to provide you with some background on where we

are and share with you some suggestions on what can be done.

In the spring of 1987. the American Council on Education and the Education Commission

of the States formed the Commission on Minority Participation in Education and American

Life. With former Presidents Gerald R. Ford and Jimmy Carter serving as honorary co-

chairs, the thirty-seven member Commission issued its report in 1988 entitled "One-Thini

of A Nation." In the introduction, it noted: "Amenca is moviag backwardnot forward--

in its effort to achieve the full participation of minority citizens in the life and prosperity of

the nation." It goes on to state: "In education, employment, income, health, longevity, and

other basic measures of individual and social well-being, gaps persistand in some cases

are widening between members of minonty groups and the majority population."

1 4



132

3

"If we allow these disparities to continue, the United States inevitably will suffer a

compromised quality of life and a lower standani of living. Social conflict will intensify.

Our ability to compete in world markets will decline, and our domestic economy will falter,

our national security will be endangered. In brief. we will find ourselves unable to fulfdl

the promise of the American dream." The Commission's report underscomi the advances

made by minority groups in the past, but noted that momentum of earlier pmgress had

actually suffered reversals in the last several years.

Twenty years ago, educational intervemions targeted to the disadvantaged helped bring

minoritiesexcluded for two centuries from the mainstream of American lifeinto schools

and onto many of the nation's campuses. Over this period, an array of new programs.

many of them supported by the federal government, helped lo increase minority high school

graduation rates and college enrollments.

Since I975, however, progress has stagnated. While high school graduation rates for

minorities have continued to climb slightly. college enrollments have not. Data from the

U.S. Bureau of the Census show the percentage of black high school graduates 24 years old

or younger who were enrolled in or had completed one or more years of college rose from

39 percent to 48 percent between 1971) and 1975. Over the same period of time, the

corresponding rate for whites remained steady at 53 percent. Between 1975 and 1985, the

college participauon rate for blacks declined to 44 percent, while the rate for whites

increased to 55 percent. Lower attendance for Hispanic youth also declined from 51

percent to 47 percent between 1975 and 1985, and the participation rate for Native

Americans remains the lowest of any minority group in the nation.
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At a time when the United States faces increased competition from abroad, and

demographic thallenges at home, we must ensure that our growing minority youth

population will succeed in the classroom, and will have access to good jobs at decent

wages. Dr. John Porter, Superintendent of the Detroit Public Schools, and former President

of Eastern Michigan University, noted in a speech two years ago that we must guarantee "a

certainty of opportunity" for each member of the high school class graduating in 2001 if

we hop: to meet this challenge. To this end, the National Association of Student Financial

Aid Administiators (NASFAA) has assisted in the development of several model early

awareness programs, published a compendium of 85 such projects, and has produced and

tested information materials for junior high school students and their parents.

In addition, the Association, in cooperation with the American Council on Education.

sponspied an Invitational Symposium on Early Awareness of Postsecondary Education in

Washington, D.C.. November 16-17, 1988. This symposium brought together 43

representatives from nearly 30 educational organizations, and included national education

leaden, directors of minority affairs, testing specialists, financial aid administrators.

philanthropists, counselors, and government officials, to contemplate the national agenda for

early awareness programs, and to explore the nate that each organization should play in the

larger collaborative contexi

The outcomes of that symposium were published in a report that was released in July, 1989

entitled Certainty of Opportimiiy. which, in turn, has been distributed widely to legislators,

government officials, and educators. The recommendations in that report are two years old,

but they are stilt germane to the challenge before us. Tbey provide the key elements

necessmy to develop successful intervention progrmus.
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Our report also recognized that coordinating a broad national effort targeting at-risk students

would require strong leadership from the White House and the Congress, initiatives from the

states, and support at tlx grass roots level. In essence, we believe that it will require the

kind of volunteer effort that President Bush called for in his inaugural address, and that

First Lady Barbara Bush has prompted in hcr campaign for national literary. Realizing the

value of pannerships and collaborations, our symposium participants formulated a number of

strategies and recommmiations that we believe should be followed by all of the panics

involved in the process.

h is also important to note that the symposium paniciparus made a clear disiinetion between

general information dissemination efforts and early awareness and intervention programs.

These latter programs are defined as broadly-based efforts to introduce students in the late

elementary and early secondary grades to the increased opponunities available to those who

persist through high school and enmll in a pogsecondary education program. Such ellorts

primarily locus on students outside the tradition college bound group who are considered to

he at-risk of massing out on the benefits of successfully completing an edueauonal

experience beyond high school. Regaarch has demonstrated that more often than not these

students are members of minority groups.

Our research has shosvn there an: hundreds of valuable projects already underway al

communities that could serve as models for broader scale elforts. These projects provide

intervention at enteral junctures. build confidence. and give disadvantaged students a sense

that postsecondary education is possible and will have a payoll. Successful programs

respond and adapt to situations particular to their locale, They change as resources change,

and accept that while there is no single model or blueprint that can work in every situation,

the success of programs depends largely on factora such as financial support, lueal
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enthusium, leadership, and dissemination of research.

While there are many key elements tor any successful intervention pmgram, including

beginning the task as early as possible, research MS demonstrated that the most ciatical

element is Involvement of parents and guantians. More than any other intervention.

students benefit firm home environments conducive to learning. Experience has shown that

if parents or guardians are concerned, committed, and assertive, they can effectively guide

children toward a postsecondary education and encourage them to succeed in their

educational endeavors.

Two recent examinations help to support this conclusion. The first, a study conducted by

Donald Hessler and other based ppm experiences in Indiana, showed that if parents

establish and reinforce an expectation for their children to do wed in school and to

encourage them to pursue higher education, the children will do well and am more likely to

pursue this course of action. The Indiana study showed that with at-risk students, this type

of family involvement was the strongest pirdictor of whether or not such students would

subsenuemly moll in higher education.

A second examination. part of the research that has been done by Jerry Davis and the

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Authonty (PHEAA), has noted that many early

awareness activities are "unlikely to be well-received by a significant portion of junior high

school studems." His findings note that this is panieularly true for those students who do

not consider themselves to be postsecondary education bound. Most junior hijth or

intermediate school students simply do not focus upon the information that emphasizes the

longer tenn values to bc gained by obtaining a good education. Most of these students are

more concerned with what is occurring in their "immediate" world rather than thinking

14.1
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about their future. Parents or guardians, on the other hand, have the maturity and the

experience to understand the consequences of preparing or not preparing for the future. If

they become a positive catalyst in reinforcing the value of education to their children,

parents or guardians can clearly be the most effective party in helping to ensure success for

them.

Therefore, as we begin to contemplate the role and importance of information programs and

the amount and kind of information that should be disseminated to students and parents at

various points in the educational process. I believe that we mug begin modifying some of

our approaches. We must place more emphasis upon gening parents and guardians

involved, and take a more utive role to encourage their children at an early age to do well

in school and to understand the importance of obtaining a good edueation. We must

provide parents and guardians with the infonnauon, knowledge, and tools that will enable

them to become more effectively involved in their children's education. In developing these

approaches, we must remember and reeognize that many of these parents and guardians do

not have positive memories of school, and many, indeed, have dropped out themselves.

Some may not understand the value of education, and therefore, may need to be convinced

that keeping their children in school will yield positive results for the student, the family,

and the community.

If this is the audience that we are trying to reach, then we may have mom success in

interacting with them through churches, community organizations and agencies. employers or

places of work, or the local media, rather than through the local school system. In essence,

educators and counselors must go to where parents are, and at times when it is easy and

convenient for those whom we are trying to reach. l-urther, such approaches cannot be

done through a single contact, but must be ongoing and include regular efforts that will
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help to reinforce and supplement the responsibihties that we are assigning to these people to

help their children.

I would now like to discuss what I perceive to be the kinds of information that will be

most useful to students and parents to assist them in making positive educational choices,

'Mem is growing evidence to show that most of the infonnauon which is currently available

is beneficial to those families whose students are committed to the oallege-bound track.

However, much of this information is too detailed and more comprehensive than that which

is needed to first provide the impetus to families to make the initial decision to place a

high phority on education.

For exaniple, trying to calk with a parent about why their son or daughter must perform

well on a sundardized test or have above average grades to be admitted to a college or

university may be meaningless if neither parent nor anyone from the family has completed

high school. The discussion must begin where the family is and within the context ol the

values they hold. If the family does not perceive that suceessfully completing high sehool

is imponant. they clearly will not perceive, in any real sense, the value of even the

possibility that their child could pursue postsecondary education. Students and panmts also

need to understand how they will be able to pay for postsecondary education, and,

therefore, information about available student aid programs is extremely important.

For this reaam, NASFAA was extremely disappointed with the Department ot iducation's

decision last year nor to publish and disseminate The Student GLIttir, Nkhich we believe is a

valuable tool for those families who have made the commitment to pursue postsecondary

education, but who may not have the financial means to totally pay for it. During the
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1990-91 award year, tor the first time since its inception, ED failed to print and dissemmate

The Suuktit Guide. ht.stead. they utilired a scaled-down. unattractive "Fact Sheet" to

describe the financiat aid that is available from the U.S. Depanment of Education. The

lack of adequate resources in its printing budget was cited by ED as the reason for this

departun; from disseminating an anractive. highly used public document, to resortng to a

make-shift. mimeographed. inferior document. While much of the information contained in

the 1990-92 "Fact Sheet" was similar to that previously included in The Student Guide. its

layout and graphic presentation was far inferior to past ED publications. While the savings

to the Department were approximately $2.4 million, the product substituted was of limited

value, and clearly conveyed an "uncanng bureaucratic" personation to the reader. While 1

am pleased to say that this year the Department has again lound the resources to print and

disseminate a more attractive and expanded student guide, this example helps to illustrate

that encouraging participation and providing quality infomiation to prospccuve and needy

students has not always been on top of the Deparunent's priority list. However, tor these

lamdies oe at-risk students, The Student Guide, or any other such tool is really meaningless

until they have been convinced and are at a point at which postsecondary educational

attendance appears to be a possibility.

This is why we are excited and supportive ol the 1...id of program that Senator Kohl has

included in S.501, which would enable the Education lkpartment to contract with public

and non-protit entities to develop and advertise postsec.indary educational recruitment

messages targeted towards low income. disadvantaged. nononty and other at-risk students.

Such a campaign. it properly condukted, would reach thousands ol at-nsk students and their

parents or guardians. The message would not only let young people know that their

government provides financial aid to assist deserving students in obtaining a postsecondary

education, hut Ilwy alw could stress the importance ol staying in school, taking the nght

147



139

10

course, and making the right everyday decisions. Some of the messages could also be

directed towards parents and guanlians, thus helping them know how to be supponive, and

guide children in the proper directions,

While a pmgram like the Higher Education Recruitment Effort (HERE) proposed in S.501

should serve as an ongoMg toundation ot a national markeung campaign, we should not

overtook the involvement of other enterprises in our society. Corpomuons and businmes

could be encouraged to undertake programs and media campaigns that would complimme

the messages coming out of the Education Department's HERE program. Similarly, civic

organizations, commuruty groups, and educational entitles themselves should also be working

towards sponsoring and conducting local complimenury infomiational nnervennon programs

which would assist local citizens. To support these efforts, the services outlined under Title

11 of S..501 entitled 'Public Access to Information Resources (PAIR)' could be used These

services would ensure that we have an ongoing, readily accessible, two-way eorninurucauon

link to widely dissemmate comprehensive information hi all regions 01 the country, as wdl

as to collect feedback and establish a national depository of what is occurring. and how

it is working.

In this way, the Department could assist in helpuig io ensure better dissemination about

successful early awareness/mtervenuon programs. and to suppon collaborative Mons in the

higher educatitm community. One example of Ito kind of project is the ellon NASFAA

has undertaken ao develop and maintain a compendium of ongoing early intervention

programs. Through the PAIR program, efforts such as NASFAA's or others could be

enhanced and expanded to ensure a more extensive compilation ol uselul materials. and thc

dissemmaLon of those materials to interested panics.
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By budding upon existing programs and fostering other partnerships and collaborative

elfons, the Federal Government can provide the impetus to broaden the participation and

available rewurees that are needed to successfully address the needs of at-risk youth.

While not directly reletencxd in S.501, there is another appropri,:te role for the federal

govenunent. which is evaluation. There are at least two difficult challenges in evaluating

early awareness programs, First, we nerd longitudinal studies to follow students over an

eight to ten year period to determine if intervention efforts have been successful. Thc

results, however, from such evaluauons are not going to be completely apparent in a few

months or next year, but we sull need to keep moving and building on what we learn in

the process.

The second evaluation ptoblem is defining "success." Some might define it as a given

number or proportion ot targeted students who persist through a postsecondary program.

Others kel that high school graduation rates are good indicators. II the goal is for high

school students to make an informed choice at the nght time, the proper measurement

technique is far from obvious. Therefore. we believe that an evaluation model should be

developed that will connect early awareness efforts with the goals we can all agree upon.

Personnel tarn the Education Department, and in parti ular, fnmi the National Center For

Education Statistics (NCES) should work cooperatively with others in the education

community to develop an ettective evaluation model and an ongoing tracking system. If

folded in NCES, the data and ongoing evaluation could he monitored more easily. without

great expenditure.

There is certainly much more I ould say about the role that various ongoing intervention

programs have played in fostering educational awanmess and attainment or about other key
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elements or the structure that we believe is necessary to foster successful early educational

intervention pmgrams. However, most of these initiatives, perhaps more appropriately,

should Ix discussed and expanded later this year when Congress undertakes the

Reauthorization of the Higher Education Act. For now, we do believe that several of the

initiaUves contained in S.501 would go a long way in refocusing and reigniting the Federal

Government's efforts, particularly those within the Education Department, to insure that all

citizens are infomied that access to postsecondary education is not outside ;heir reach.

Again, thank you for inviting us to appear before you to discuss this important topic.

NASFAA looks forwanf to assisting you in these efforts, and stands ready to provide you

with any assistance that you need.
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Mr. Chairman, I am rtegina Manley, President of the National Association

of College Admission Counselors and Facilitator of Citywide Counseling

Programs for the Ctty of Chicago Public Schools.

am very pleased to be here today to speak to the counseling

components embodied tn the Student Counseling and Assistance Network

Act of 1991 or SC'AN. The National Association of College Admission

Counselors places; the highest priority on this legislation because of the

many students and families who will be helped by its provisions.

We are an association of more than 5,000 counselors working in

American education whose primary area of expertise is guiding students

through the difficult and sometimes confusing transition from high school

to postsecondary education. Our members work at both the secondary

school and college levels and can be found in public, private, and

parochial institutions.

There ore three truisms about student need that I will cover in my

testimony today:

1. Students need strong precollege guidance and counseling and

college admission counseling programs to assist in the various transitions

they will face in their schooling experiences. These programs must begin

early and b., available throughout the education continuum.

2. Students need better and more accessible information about

preparing for, choosing, and enrolling in postsecondary education. This

covers their high school curriculum, their options in choosing a type of

postsecondary education, and paying for that education.
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3. Far too many students, especially minority and economically

disadvantaged, remain underserved in American education. The lack of

service and Information, coupled with other deficiencies in the

educational experience, translates into their being underrepresented at

our colleges and universities.

Underlying these obvious needs are the frustrations suffered by

students, parents and counselors alike as they try to formulate

well-informed, quality decisions about postsecondary education.

Need for Early Intervention Programs

The members of our association believe that the federal

financial aid system can provide Incentives to (lad a way out of the

poverty/welfare cycle for young Americans who are at-risk because of

family circutn,4tances beyond their control. We also think that working

.dest means can hope for a productive way of life for their

children, because of the body of education programs that now exist. The

key to this success lies with early intervention plans that possess the

following components:

1. A plan of action that outlines how educators, parents and other

Interested individuals and organizations can best utilize various

community resources to develop a support system that will mentor, train,

and motivate able students for whom postsecondary education is a

reasonable and achievable option.

2. A plan whereby middle and Junior high school counselors are

trained in a number of areas including the following:

a. assisting students In the development of effective study skills;
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b. guiding students through appropriate secondary school planning,

including the selection of a challenging high school curriculum;

C. assisting students and parents in understanding the techniques

and strategies of educational exploration and decision making in the

college admission process;

d. assisting parents in developing an understanding of the cost of

postsecondary education, financial planning, and the financial aid

application process; and

e. awakening students and their families to the range of

postsecondary options from which they can choose. These include

vocational and technical training, certificate and degree programs from

community and junior colleges, full four-year college and university

degree programs, rmd professional or graduate school.

NACAC, with a grant from the Edna McConnell Clark Foundation,

developed a program that we call "Parents and Counselors Together" or

PACT. This program, directed specifically at elementary and middle

schools provides information to parents, and training for those who work

with families and youthfrom counselors and principals to playground

supervisors and case workers--about the possibilities of postsecondary

education.

No matter how successful tills or similar programs are, however, they

can reach only a small fraction of those who need the support of a

program such as ours, or the many others that target specific student and

parent populations.

3
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Most importantly, we must be able to alert families to the "price

tags' associated with each educational option, including the availability

of grants, loans, and scholarships that exist to help those who cannot

afford postsecondary education on their own. Exemplary early intervention

plans suitable for communities that range from large Inner city school

systems to rural districts do exist today. SCAN would make these

programs available nationwide.

Strengthening Counseling at the Secondary_School Level

Following the early school years, students must have access tO

improved precollege guidance and counseling and college admission

counseling programs that assist students in the exploration and

decision-making process. At this stage, students need specific

information about financial aid programs, how they work, who is eligible,

how to apply, and the timelines for notification.

Many schools today do not place an emphasis on or provide an

adequate precollege guidance and counseling program. We know that most

counselors want to make this a part of their offerings, but they lack

time, resources, and formal training. While these services are Important

for all students In all schools, regardless of economic status, it is

axiomatic, however, that the schools that provide the most limited

services and have the fewest resources are the ones that need them the

most. And so, the cycle perpetuates itself: the underserved become the

most underrepresented In higher education. Something must be done to

break this cycle.

4
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One of the provisions of the Student Counseling and Assistance

Network Act calls for identification of model, workable programs and

making information about them available to schools that wish to include

them in their own guidance activities. This service would be

invaluable.

For example: counselors in my state of Illinois have access to some

models and tools. Within the last two years the Illinois Student

Assistance Commission and the State Board of Higher Education formed a

Joint commission to study early intervention and early financial planning

for postsecondary education. Pilot schools in rural areas of the state

have been selected to test an early intervention initiative. While this

small effort is an exception and no.t the rule, it is not nearly enough.

What is developed in this exercise, however, can be added to a body of

information that might be useful elsewhere if it were disseminated by the

clearinghouse effort described above.

SCAN also calls for the training of school and college admission

counselors: first, to provide new and improved counseling services to

students, and second, to be knowledgeable about the provisions of all

existing financial aid programs. The second emphasis would reestablish a

vital service.

In the 1970s, when the federal student financial aid programs were

first implemented, special training, sponsored by the Education

Department, was made available to financial aid administrators,

counselors, and business officers. Today, counselors no longer receive

this training.

5
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MOM high school and college admission counselors are often the

first persons to whom students and families turn with financial aid

questions, we cannot understand why they have been eliminated. The

intensive training of financial aid administrators is obviously a

necessity. But, a more generalized training of school and college

admission counselors is also imperative.

The need for such training is best exemplified by a yearly event that

was just held in Illinois. Counselors and financial aid specialists

answered calls to a financial aid hotline. Over 1,900 callers from across

the state called in the period of one week. This was an increase of 62

percent over last year's calls. Students, parents, grandparents, and

lenders called on an average of one per minute.

Questions ranged from specific line items on application forms to

places to look for scholarships, and from investment questions to how the

financial aid process works. Counselors should have the kind of

information that allows them to answer such questions or to direct

parents and students to appropriate sources of information. SCAN

provides for this type of training.

Improved and Accessible Information

As they consider their options, students have the right to

accessible, quality information about postsecondary education. But, given

recent trends and events, this information is becoming more difficult to

acquire.

For example: until last year, the Education Department published a

comprehensive and much-used handbook about federal student financial

6
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aid, titled The Student Guide: financial Aid from the U.S. Department

of Education. This excellent publication was reduced from 82 pages to

under 20 pages last year because of budget cutbacks at the department.

Rather than eliminating guidance resources, NACAC believes that the

federal government should develop better quality, more complete resources

and disseminate them to a wider audience. Such tools must include, but

not be limited to, traditional print materials such as the Guide. They

should encompass videotapes, audiotapes, software Information programs,

and others that employ contemporary technology for their dissemination.

The Student Counseling and Assistance Network Act will address this

concern.

The proposed legislation will establish a comprehensive computer data

base system, containing financial aid sources, explanations of the various

programs, who is eligible, how to apply, and admission Information. This

system would be available to schools, libraries, youth centers and

elsewhere. Counselors applaud this provision.

Such a system would also go far to eliminate an undesirable

side-effect of the lack of information for students. Over the past few

years an industry has grown that collects and sells information about

financial aid. Usually, it is a compilation of publicly available data

that is free for the asking. What is sold often is out-of-date and

usually Incomplete. Yet, businesses are thriving because parents are

desperate for this kind of centralized information source and they are

willing to spend scarce money to get it. The situation is ripe for fraud

and abuse.

7

1 5 (,)



151

Conclusion

In conclusion Mr. Chairman, the members of the National Association

of College Admission Counselors ars committed to providing quality

counseling services to students moving through the school to college

transition. We often hear the argument that not everyone is suited to a

college education; that such students need to pursue a course of study

that prepares them for the workplace. This is undoubtedly true. College

is not an achievable or appropriate educational goal for all students.

However, NACAC firmly believes that all students sheuld be educated and

guided In a manner that includes postsecondary education as a viable

option.

School counselors and college admission counselors need the

progr ems, tools, and training to reach our youth early enough to make a

difference in their lives. Students and parents deserve to have the best,

most accurate, and easily understood information about financial aid

programs that we can provide. The National Association of College

Admission Counselors believes that the various provisions of the Student

Counseling and Assistance Network Act goes a long way toward providing

these services. Clearly, American students will be the beneficiaries.

8
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NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COLLEGE ADMISSION COUNSELORS

STATEMENT ON THE COUNSELING DIMENSION

OF THE ADMISSION PROCESS

AT THE COLLEGE/UNIVERSITY LEVEL

The Noticing Association of College Admission Counselors
has long ken anathnesse of she counseling dimension of the
college adtanesion process. The assocution was founded m
1937 to esmNish a code of ethics that would guide colleges
and =Mau= in dicir relationships with studenu and sec
codary school =melon and, coneornimitly. to pmenote the
Woe= of students osm those of instituncns.

As the door to higher adman= opened wider and mum
numbers of students were encouraged to seek adm ission. *ere

developed a med to help students oderstand diffeeences
among the variety of instrunions and the way of educmionel
prewar:is availithk to Mem. II 1150 became necomary to
dawn.= she quality of guidons' seorsidary schoal prepara-
tion arid to direct them to programs of study thai would enable
them to continue to grow both personally and academ wally

Because tithe increased ilivosity of the Amerman system
of postsecondary education. the need coeunues today for
helpful guidance Weans: students in making decisions to best
meet the ir individual needs among the full range of
postsecondary choices. ln addition, the aniof higher education
today and de heighiCIVA cancan regarding farmhes'
So pay for it place a high dernand cm the need for =wan,
timely financial aid and planning sof amnion Such guidance
and courochng must came hem both the secondary school
counselor and college admission counsekv.

While the valltiorts1 college-going population remained
stable in recou ran and the predictions of dramatically
declining numbers =abed largely wireahred. we are now
beginning to evermore real demographic shifts in the
popilation that may have a spit-cam inflict= on college
and university enrollment m the coming yens. increased
recruitment efforts, the introduction or marketing concepts
and the trend toward enrollment management have led to the
peareption. real cle imagined. that monument and marketing

techniques are taking die place of counieling. lt has been
suggested that while =amusing the imams= fit between
student and muitution was once consideted impullsak what
counts mom today is ming any mesas psesibk at num
starkents ID mem emollment and moment Miss.

NACAC mush firm in its pone= dan 00019111146 has
horn and COMM= to be an essential, if nm the =inessential.
ingredient in die college admission process. The denims.
mem dim= moon= aod the assurance thumb sr en
will he helped to reahm hiaftroticational potential osi ty
strengthen and perpetuate the arong deniocracywe sow,-
uuoythe democracy that, in Ulm. encontsges and support,
our diverse educational system.

NACAC beeves that precollege guide= and counseling
a a de ve Momenta, process dm begins early to the educational
experience and continues through secondary school and on
mu college. College admission counselon stand with school
counselors at the juncture between eecondary and
postsecondary =mama sad together they play a pivotal role
in helping to ease students transition from one level to the
neat . Wealsolemw,e intim dignity and worths": every human
being and in their right to devekp te their full pometial.
Counseling individual students about pultareendary pleas
and Miring the school to college transition is a furatamental
aspect of the admission proves s a institutions of higher
learning.

The College Admission
Counseling Initiative

Die foundation for counseling students fa college admission
is the emphasis on meeting students' needs, This perspecuve
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assumes the availability of individual and gram counseling

aimedin helping aliskials withstood thenpeneald aptitudes,
abdisies. intense, and values in relation to the offortnp of a

partioshr allege or univenity. Awn:grim counseling in-

termissions can own during college day/night programs.

college fen, interrew sessions. campus tows. and studou/

Mon information sessions on campus.
Instiittoons that promote a onsuselms perspectivepnwide

announce Maid* sidmnsion staff includes Mined pmfession-

ids with 'clawing courisding andrelated skills, tut Om is

a willingness to assume msponsibility for ail institutional
personnel who may become involved in the FM= of
counseling students tor admission (e.g. alumni, coaches,

faculty. and students on campus). Further,effective linkages

with secondary schools, community egencies,other camps
student services offices, sod the college facuhy *redeveloped

and lead to open cariminacation. undernanding. and coop-

eratico. Suchpiognmisarealsochowterizedbythe folbwiar

A clewly defined immaterial mission, inducting written

godsend objectives of the admissico pogrom, linden twee-

aeon component that seeks to understand what * being dot*

and serves as a basis for major mathoional decisions.
Availability of dem. axiom information about the

institution including adnussion requirements, ',taxational

programs, nuts. and roam lid issisaince that wall enable

students to reach sound decisions.
Emphasise:7n equity And accessibility and acommitment

to the needs of lindentpresented =dem& This assumes the

presence of positne attitudes that wawa student develop-

ment regardless of nice. Ma, or disability and support the

nehmen of role models Among the staff and faculty who

inflect these chancieristics.
Delivery at se, ,ers according to ethical pincuces

developed by NACAC and other similareducator, groups.
Referral of students to other instituumis when it is

determined that swans needs an be hater met elsewhere.

Emphasis an student mention, including the existence
adomate acialmsuc and other merlon services to ensure the

success of admitted students.
A supportive administration and campus environment

that pronoses student growth ond development
NACAC encourages all collegiate inUMIXV3S ID rev tew

dew admission programs horn this perspective, The entire

process est:fedi:wed on the abilityof pmfessiooals to relate in

arid respond in student needs. This s done in collaborsoon

with oder counselors and educators who share these beliefs

and place the highest value on student development and the

realization of indent potential.

FolocliftenalAntarftrOortamicketratfon Iporraci F &RIM Eturtfrett

Erita1S110 DaTiCtX Nowa' Aisocieber. of Cativo &Omura,
COWMAN'S. RAP 430 r000 Owens; Road Noisricrui v.4 22214

ran 636 2221

Appeared by the Rinaldo. Board, °ember NW

'4-999 - 92 - 6

flMAIMMIEN=A1=

About NACAC

Representing 3.000comselorsandimatutions.NACAChnnp
together secondary school cninselors, and college adothesion

~Mors and officers. as well as other professionals who

work directly with students as they make decisions ate
choices about college. Since its founding in I937. NACAC

has recognised thin nest choice in the saline silinisaina
mucus requires infatuation andcommunientinis Ow mem.

ben believe in the dignity, worth, and the potential Moll and

work to develop counseling pronnms and services which

eliminate bin on toy pounds in the college admission and

financial aid preemies.
The associasion's -Stasernens of Principles ofGood Piac-

ie dw foondation foe member asivity. This

Statement which is revienednunsally. anilines manyaspect;

of each counselor's fundamental responsibility: to be aware of

and concerned with *messed policies dun have an impact co

the lives of smdsus as they make ownsidons through school

to promote ores and infonneddecisinn making ohm adm is.

son Ind financial ssalsIDice aim s te knowkdgeable and
effective manse:Ion who ere an internal pan 0/ providing
successful transitions for the students they serve .

Au of the programs mid strefeems at NACAC are dedicated

to these objecinm. We %Vial= the nprothinity mama with
mdividuals imd organizations who slum our concerns If as
atisictives are met we will have taken athematic step *award

expanding educational options for *II students in this nation

11;6

itstionsi Awocittas ot Calip
AdortottoolDt.wasten
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Testiimm

Cary D. Bass, Ph.D.
Executive Director

OMB Watch

before the
Suheumnuttee on Government Information and Regulation

concerning

Improsing Access to Student Financial Aid

March 21, 19441

Good morning. My mune is Gary Bass and am ewcutwe director of OMB Watch..,
nonprofit research. educational. and advocacy organtrahon that monitors Evecutive Branch
activities that affect nonprofit. public interest, and community groups, As the name implies,
the White House Office of Management and Budget (OMB) is OMB Watch's main to, us
At the same time. we pursue activities beyond OMB's purview to encourage broad pub!
participation in government dension,making and promote a more open and arcountabk
government.

A mnjor component of our work is devoted to advancing ;a flicks and programs
crease public access to government information We have ciincentrated on four arc4,

Monitoring and influencmg federal legislation and regulatums to encourage .dt rm-
alive ckssemination principles. It is noteworthy that as vim hold this hearing on im-
proving access to student financial aid. the Office of Management and Budget is
taking public comment on a government-wide policy (Circular A- OW that will in
fluence whether agencies can disseminate information and it so, how it should by
done, OMR Watch hopes the new OMB policy will replace the stro,:t
thrust of the past decade and in doing so will make it easier for the Department ii
ltiucation to disseminate information ahout student finavial aid

We are also working on other pliblic access initiatives, partieularl ti mukt: inc
Federal Resacter. out government daily digest, available in electronic format, nos
intended to facilitate greater public ins olvemem in governowth deii,147nma,krn.

.167
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Following agenvy implementation of right-to-know principles. We have worked

closely with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency in its implementation Of the

only federal law to mandate public access through "computer telecommunications

and other means." The Taxies Release Inventoty. pan of a 19146 Common

Know law, basset a precendent for the role of government in providing information

to the public;

Eimerimenting with different approaches to using newer information technologies to

provide public access to government information. In collaboration with Unison In-

stitut; we run a computer service called RTK NET (the Right-to-Know Computer

Network) which provides four services (1) Alternative methods for people with dif-

fering levels of computer skills to search databases which link previously disparate

sources of information (such as the Toxics Release Inventory with water permit data

and health data); (2) Electronic mail; (3) Electronic conferencing: and (4) ACcetts tn

news and information, including action alerts about hula issues_

Developing policy alternatives for improved access to and management of govern-

ment information resources. For example. see our article "Finding Government hi-

formation: The Federal Information locator System (FIGS)." appearing in this

month's issue of Government Information Quanwiy (Vol. S. No. I, N90.

We appreciate the opportunity to apply our expertise on public access to the issue of st

dent financial aid. and applaud your initiative in championing this important initiative

THF CHALLENGE

The goal of postsecondary financial aid is to promote equal educational opportunity.

Most often this is defined as meaning that limited financial resources should niit dens aspir-

ing students aeoess to some kind of postsecondary education or some choice among

postsecondary institutions charging different levels of tuition and fees

There arc two types of "access" and "choice' problems:

5 Are students from families with lower incomes obtaining financial aid?

finw du students with limited financial resources find out about what school to .it

tend and their options for financial are

Who's Getting Financial Aid?

A quick look at federal data shows that generally a greater percentage tif iower-incomc

students receive financial than those from upper income families. Fur example. more than

litre of students from families with incomes below S17,(0) received financial aid in the Fall

of 1986. Only 33% of students with family incomes above $50.0011 received financial aid

(see Table I on next page).

lf;S
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Table
Percentage of Students

Fall

I
Receiving Financial Aid
1988

Source of Aid

F Income Total Federal Stats
Mediu-
dorsal

0 - S11.000 86% 80% 42% 28%
SI IMO - 317,000 82 73 41 30

S17.0(0 - 530,000 68 55 30 29

3S0.00) - $50,000 55 38 16 28

Oa t-. .11 U

Source; Saud co data from the 1987 National Fostsecondety Student OtId
Study

Greater analysis of federal data has raised some concern about whether the limited
amounts ot financial aid is reaching those most in need or is delivered in a way that fosters
inequities. Regardless of the arguments about improving the targeting of aid, there ts disap-
pointing news about lower-income atUdents participating in postsecondary opportunities.

More than half of high school graduates from families with earnings greater than
550,000 go on to postsectmdary education. Yet only one-quarter of high school graduates
from families with earnings under SI 1,009 go on to postsecondary education. While mans
tailors may account foi ;hese statistics (such as academic achievement, occupational goak,
.md cultural values), it dors point out the need to encourage greater government involve-
ment in order to pursue our goal of equal educational oppotunity for all students.

Table 2
Percentage of Students Attending

Postsecondary Institutions
(FA 1611)

, Income

11

H "W11221122152112 s5

Swge Canirmloordi BODO 011101 saiØ.iiI Aklird Cosi of
Postsimondety Educate, Anwar" 1421 C30 catPialons bawd

etril trem Ms October 1146 CPS
Noe Thom Mougsten oriehxle studionti arrow 117 peacmeary

pro571 venom. Mown comparabie Os* ara 17171 narlstir
me CPS

Students Attending Postsecondary SchoolS
Fall 1984

ll 1. .

,
M. .

I . I
,n
I

"uric
Fanuly Income

1 See, tor example, 'Student Aid and me Cost of Pata secondary Edocation congressional Budget
Office. January. 1991

.169
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One way to do so is to make information about financial aid more readily available. In

general. student financial aid ia big business. Accordinifto The College Board, k wet" the past

twenty years, Financial aid has nearly doubled in inflation-adjusted dollars. They estimate
that $27.2 billion was spent on financial aid during the 1989-90 academic year - with thc
federal government giving out 73% of such aid (see Table 3). For the first time since the
massive Reagan budget cuts nearly ten years ago, the real value of financial aid is expected

to decline - led by a 3% cut in federal financial aid.

Tab% 3
Pastaircandary Financial Aid

(In =km ot Combust 19$0 Donley)

ACIKIIIMIC
Year Total Fedora! State Inetttudonal

1970-71 14,243 10,492 737 3,914

1971-72 16,123 12,038 810 3275
197243 18,100 13,859 913 3,329
1973-74 18,358 14,177 969 3.212
1974-75 20,915 16,915 1.010 2990
1975-76 23.642 11,342 1,095 3,206
1976-77 22,555 lb,047 1.2134 3224
1977-78 22.351 17,849 1.341 3,161

1978-79 21,496 17 054 1.314 3.038
1979-80 23,148 14,871 1,259 3,01 7

1980-81 24,665 19,569 1,147 2.95(1

1981-82 23,879 19,705 1.213 2,961

1982-83 21,347 16,911 1,270 3,165

1483-84 22.104 17,248 1,347 3,509

1984-85 23,007 17,745 1,434 3,778

1985-86 23.799 18,118 1,494 4388
1986-87 24.171 17,777 1.597 4,744

1987-843 26,555 19,876 1,610 5.069
1988-89 27.375 20,425 1.618 5,332
19.44-413' 17 21P 14 SO 1 747 i iol

Source: Trends in Stud0 n t Aid, The College Boatel. August, 1990
* Estimated

A-
,

Concluslons

These data ,suggest that

Financial aid is reaching lower-incomc students.

Fewer student from middle- and lower-income families attend postsecondary

170
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III institutions than those from higher income families; and

Competition for financial aid will increase unless Congress increases its share of fund-
ing.

Policy recommendations stemming from these conclusions are:

1 We need to expand our efform to encourage students from lower- and middle-income
families to attend postsecondary institutions; and

2 Congress should increase spending for financial aid,

How Do Students Find Out About Financial Ald?

Unfortunately, finding out about student aid is not ahvays easy. There are some private
services that help students find financial aidfor a fee. But most high schrxil students can
not afford such servicesfor lower-income students the problem is even greater.

Students often rely on guidance counselors in high school and college. But high school
counselors are faced with the same need for up-to-date and accurate information to pass on
to students. Furthermore, with the growth in sources of financial aid and the number ot
postsectmdaty institutions, it is nearly impossible for counselors to keep all the inform:Awn
at their fingertips.

And all of us who have received financial aid remember the long lines and red tape in.
volved in learning about and obtaining aid through college campuses. This has not changed
significantly.

recently received a newspaper from my alma mater. The University of Mkhigan, that
had .1 cover story about "the march of technology" ihrough use of computers. The second
story in the newspaper was entitled, "Do you have a question about fmancial aid?" and Lb.-

play ed a nearly half-page picture of students waiting in line outside the Office of Financial
Aid,

In the first story, the author quotes a favorite children's hook, The "anion,: ThIltn 01:
would like to move this pile from here to there,' he explained, pointing to an

enormous mound of fine sand, 'but I'm afraid that all I have is this tiny tweezers.' And he
gave them to Milo, who immediately began transporting one grain at a ttme." Well, we hose
twen using tiny tweezers to handle the problem (If how to improve access to int', mat in
about financial aid.

How Computers Can Help

The overriding message of all these facts and figures is that there is greater pi iss4bi1ity it
reaching people through the use of newer information technologies than ever before And
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Table 4
Microcomputers for Student Instruction

In Elementary & Secondary Schools

Year

Public Salmis Pante Schools

'Dement wets Moos

Students
per mlero

Percent
with

micros
Students
pr microTotal

Senior
tagh

1981 18.2% 42.7% NA NA NA

1984 85.1 94.6 635 53.0% 56.2

1985 922 97.4 455 70.3 41.6

1986 954 98.7 36.5 77.1 33.7

1987 96.4 99.0 30.8 78.7 28.8

97.1 99_1 _26.9 821 233

Saunas: Woke Data Ratrievat $nalton. CT.
Aterocompuntra k7 Sellouts, 7888.

87. and unpubashad date

these possibilities arc only going to increase.

Pages

Computers have become quite common in elementary and secondary schools. In 1981.

only 18'7o of all public schools had computers.
In 1988, however, 97% of ail public schools

had at least one microcomputer for student instruction (roughly one-quarter of them have

15 or more computers). And 99% of all high schools had computers in 1988. Whereas in

1984, there was one computer per til students, in 1988 there was one computer for every 2"

students. The expectation is that this ratio will continue to improve as the cost of computers

decline and more schools budget for them.

Not only do schools have computers, hut there has been a rapid increase in the number

of educational facilities that have communications capabilities. Communications capabihty

allows someone operating a computer to "talk" with another computer that may contain a

data base, such as listings of financial aid sources. Between 1984 and 1989 the percentage of

facilities that had computer communications
capabilties quadrupled. In 1984, 7.4r7. of all

educational facilities had computer communication links: in 1989. 28.3% of all facilities had

such links.'

in addition. most local libraries now have computers. Many of these libraries have corn

mu nications links tied to their computers Some are even usingCD-ROM players

machines like stereo comp= disc players that hook up to your computer and can read vast

amounts of information.

Source Galina, Group, Inc Stormont CT, kinpvblighod data from COMTEC oats base
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HARNESSING NEWER
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES

OMB Warch rosnmonv

To date existing efforts involved in disseminating financial aid information consistof fee-
hased private services, school guidance counselors, and the long-lines and red tape found at
college financial aid offices. Considering the importance of this information, unit the sheer
magnitude of the number of students in need of it, it is remarkable that there is no com-
prehensive resource of financial aid information.

1

2

In answer to this situation, we recommend three approaches:

An online computer minims. Students, parents, counselors, and other interested parties
could search by type of aid, school, cost, Of other cnteria to find out about availability
of financial aid and bow ta obtain it. The service could provide users *with The necessary
forms for filing applications, timetables for such applications, and the names ot in-
dividuals to contact for more information. Other services dealing with exchanging and
maintaining information about early intervention dissemination programs could also he
provided. Additionally. the Department of Education couki begin to catahig postsecon
dary information resources and place such information on the system. Finally, the set
vier could provide the forum for pre-collegiate and collegiate counselors to
communicate without the significant cost associated with travel and conferences .
about helping students reach their full educational potential and prepare for postse;n.
dary opportunities.

Use of other electronic media. Nationwide financial aid information could ti,e et prnpiled
annually and placed on CD-ROMs (compact disc-read only memory and distributed
through the Depository Library Program. ptistsecondary institutions, and other
facilities. Regional information could be packaged on computer diskettes and di.-
tributed to the same audience.

Telephone assistance. Newer phone technology services used by the pro ate Cl c..ft

he applied to accessing financial aid information. For example. interested pa. lies 4011 id

call a toll-free phone number and press an =Winonal set of numbers for tape recoraleit
messages about certain types of financial aid or about specific facilities.

The Washington Post's POST-HASTE is an approach that might he studied ;IN a poten-
ttat model. Anyone can call the local telephone number on a touch-tone phone and
enter a code to receive up-to-date information on a given subject. For example. bs
pressing 4(XX) after you dial the main number, you can get Associated Press Spi,r is
News:41(X) leads to a sports scoreboard which asks you to identify' the type of pi ot and
level of play professional or college ) hy hitting additional numbers on stair phone .
it will continue to prompt you with codes to enter in order to narrow your se.ach to the
exact information you are looking for.
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Through the use of electronic technology, wewill be building bridges that have never

before existed. For tbe fust time students and tbe professionals guiding them will be able to

design searches to respond to "access" and -choice" options. in this way, the particular

needs of each student could be taken into account furthering the potential for equal

educational opportunity.

One example may be a student who does not want to live very far from home, needs a

strong english-as-a-second-language program, and wants computer training. How would

yriu find the best schools and financial assists:Ice packages in this case? Through the use of

computers it would be possible to genenne a list of all the options the schools and their

financial aid packages that are open to this particular student, and all with minimal effort.

No longer would counselors have to rely on generic materials that may. infact, be out ol

date.

Making It Happen

While the vision for these new services is quite compelling, it will not come easily. F irst.

these types of dissemination approaches
would he precedemial in government, in only one

case. dealing with the releaseof toxic chemicals in our communities, has an agency been

mandated to provide information to the public through computer telecommunicaiums and

other mearts.

Our esperience has taught us that several components are essential:

In Enough money must he available Initially to fund the initiatwes. particularly f in

hardware and software development
(mostly one-time costs), and in ja tingrons ma

ner to manage information resources:

Planning and design of the systems must involve those who will he using theni so that

they are "user friendly" and practicable;

Significant outreach efforts must he developed to make the public aware of the se t-

vices, with targeting to lower-income communities;

An aggressive training campaign must he waged to teach parents. students. guidank.e

counselors, librarians. and other school personnel how to use the electronic access

routes; and

II 'There must hc a commitment hy the Administration and Congress to Nt. it these

iniumwes. These approaches represent a significant role shift for the DepIrtmeni of

Education and will require a new type of determination to integrate program opera-

tions with the managment of information resources. The Department will need to col-

lect new types of information from postsecondary imtitutiom and verify the

information it collects. New approaches toinformation collection (el., electronic

submissions) may need to be eeplored in order m speed up the process of making ths.

I -74
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informauon available to the public. Additionally, congresiiinnal oversight will he
needed.

10 Steps to Setting Up an Online System

I. House il alas Department sf Ethuagion,
There are many ways in which these ideas could he implementedfor example. a trade

association. private vendor, nonprofit organization. or the Depanment of Education coQI0
nm the service. We recommend that the Department of Education do it. either itself or
through a contractor. We came to this conclusion after reviewing how EPA ran Its public ay
cess system, involving the Toxic§ Rekase Inventory (TRD

-The 1'R1 was housed at the Nein-mat Library of Medicine instead of at EPA. As a
it has become inereasntgly difficult for EPA to implement the next generathm of the TR I
namely, data integratunt. The value of the toxics data increases hy linking it with tither types
of information, such as permit restrictions or enforcement actions. But this data is st.ired
itiffi.'rcnt program offices within EPA, making it virtually impossible to coordinate .d I the
step. and still have its contractor interested in pursuing the

Inevitably, the EPA experience wilt oecur with the Department ot Fducation it tinanyho
aid information is made publicly accessible through electronic means.

:. fao4 rmy prwrom %bead information resources management pertimnel m the &Aiwa
Setting up online services requires skills agency program staff often don't hase cl

Itlusi cases, It is assumed that the program office should carry out the pnigr:im reuu:rc-
ineros Program staff will seldom involve the informAtton resources management IR
taft in the planning and design of the program

I. "'non unately. IRM staff are viewed as Asst.:ling the agcno ott intermd compute/ itee,t,
e ac,ounting softt.4 ate. etc.) IRM staff. however. could prinak assiSianic on tteVI!ni:

.1,11d implementing public access systems, While involyemcnt of IR M slat f will not ,Osalc
sucxess. their lack ot insolvemern almost surely will spell disaster,

W fide this sounds like common sense involve the people with the expel tise ii A
0411 ignored By the same token, the re.ponsthtlot cannot tv ten solO, to the It.cst

ei I tIcT t hOot the input frinn priigram personnel at-unit the type id data Mit ree,t, t tte

ttret,ented to the puts; ic, t concewaNe that a %set" ft rro1l sy stern ,Idtt he !h..:

, ;des less than useless ;minimal tinr ti it he public

( ontact Evi and fothrr ogrnon h'ork ing an public titre's% mumbrrs.

rhe rinironmoilui Profectu in Agency's experience with implorIcatiok: Se tt. I ,!
the, I mergelicv Planning and Community Right to Know Act may proye In...INA:TA,: het,-
:qv,. congress mandated that EPA annually collect information about toxic release. 1
1,1atlil::10111Ing facilities, The law stated that FPA was to make the intortnation iii
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"through computer telecommunicanons
and other means to any person on a cost rerrnh:q -

sable basis."

EPA contracted with the National Library of Medicine to provide an online N.ivice.

They also chose to provide anannual printed national report. distribute the informatiim

through microfiche (and comfiche) to libraries, experiment with distribution of CDROM,,

and make floppy diskettes and magnetk tapes avaiLsble for sale through the National Techr

nical Information Service.

EPA's attempt to establish the firstmandated online public access system has re ce Ned

insiderable attention, Fur example. it was the foi:us of several congressUmal hear ings and

was the basis of a colloquium held by the Bauman Foundation which involved this

Subcommittee's staff.

4. orate an infuemation Resosum Din:cram
Information is a tremendously valuable resource. 'fel there is an enormous mnouni

information that is collected by the Department of Education which the public either knou

nothing about or can't find. The Department should develop an Information Res8,114TS

Directory (IRD) to increase awareness of Departmental information resourco and to

promote greater information sharing throughout the Department, the goyei merit rh,i ttr:

public Again, EPA's experiment with the IRE) process may powe instructive

The 1RD should he a guide to the different information resources avmlahle wuthun the

Department. (Initially. the Department should start with an ptIscsecondat) informanim

resources anti then er;,and to other types of departmental information.) It should include

both descriptive subject and programmatic listing of departmental databases arid models.

hillines and cleannghouses. dockets and lihranes, documents and individual ci int acts

Where appropriate. it should also list information resources outside the Department

The information stored in the IRD should be complete enough that an ludo, ritual cou;d

use it to detemme if the resource would help answer then question. The information t.hottlt!

be updated regularly and rna6e available through the online sers,ke. fit should also he

printed at least twice a year.) The IRD online information should eventually permit the

puhfic to access the information that rs listed, Mit simply utk Waft' Me lorafin

5. Develop a mechanism for citizenparneiparims.
Citi?en participation in the design and maintenance of the system is essenti.,l..A. ,T).

)tig advisory panel should he instituted that can advise the Department and cOrtgrcs, lii
onhne system. The panel needs to be a mixture of experts on postset-ondars financial .110,

early intervention efforts. guidance counseling. Computer loecommirucrgioris

tatives, and public access endeavors

As a first step, the Department should work with the panel and other citizens to futchtis,

the types of information that the public needs For example. what types of tinancial atti in

formation needs to he provided (e.g . matriculation costs. academic Criteria)? What ,ither

types itt information should he provided leg.. earls interxent ion information. dot a .ththit
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postsecondary participation)? As part of this first effort, the Department also needs to as-
sess how the public wants to have the information presented.flis may influence the type ot
software used and the design of the system.

Second, the Department should develop a written plan of its public access approach tor
public review and comment. The Department could learn from EPA's experience dealing
with its TRI database, which is housed at the National I ibrary of Medicine. Problems to be
avoided here include:

Downloading. It is essential to have a downloading function with error checking
protocols, This means that after you request information you can txecute a command
to have that information sent to your computer where you, in turn, can ft:VAi N It or
simply print it. Without downloading features, which, for example, the NLM does not
offer, you must either copy the information try hand, wait for NLM to print and mad
it, or capture it as it scrolls across your monitor. This last method presents several
problems. First, capturing the information screen hy screen means you arc on the s

tern for longer periods of time, adding to the east of your search. Second, the quat
of the information you capture degrades because of line noise over the telepht toe
woe.

Lim- friendliness. There arc many barriers to online communicanons leg., hoa It
hook up a computer and modem). Simplifying the steps should be a high priorih hit
example, an easy to use menu system without complicated command language is es-
sential The more people need to know about computers, the less likely they Ii OW
the system.

Report Tormats. People will usc the system tin sarying purposes, and it must respond
to these differences. One component is havIng flexible report formats so that 11SC
can get hack the type of information they wain in a tormat that makes sense It, them

d. Obtain the itiforatation needed for the Aystem.
The Department of Education will need to collect information from postseconiiar

facilities about availability of financial aid and procedures for obtaining it. along %kith other
informatum about the facility. This will mean that the Departmem will need to he gisen the
authority to collect information without interference from OMB.

Other information has already been collected by the Department, hut will need to he
pm gm, a format that is aecessible to the pu hlw. Pus may reLltme ommir rahle
s'iNIRItnatitto.

'fist, aspects cannot be com scai

Quality of the information. The Department must undertake considerable
verify the information it collects about thc availability of financial aid. Accut a'1,
above all else, is essential for the system to he of value to students: and
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Timing of the Worms/Jon. Much of the Mformation on the system is time sensitise.

such as application due dates. The . dote, the Department must develop methods for

insuring the information is made
available to the public in a timely manner. We

would suggest that the Department review options for electronic submission of the

information it may need. This would improve the possibilities for getting the infor.

mation on the system in the speediest, most reliable manner.

7. Develop user* polity.
The cost to users camlot be aharrier to using the system. especially since part of the

goal is to encourage equal education opportunities for lower-income individuals The !sl&

nonal Library of Medicine had charged an average of $25 per hour (the fee just increased)

for access to the TRI data White this cost is reasonable compared to private sector servicc.,

it has proved prohibitive for many groups with limited financial resources. Such a fee is like

ly to he difficult for students from families with limited incomes and for many schoid court-

selors.

This suggests that any fee policy must powitie for fee reductions and waivers. U ott ir

tunately, there is no guidance on establishing waivers or reductions with online g(n ernmeni

information services.

EPA has experimented with two alternatives to fee waivers or reductions. A little over a

year ago they granted specified amounts of monc for selected applicants to use their sis.

tem. The program did not work effectively because of the shortness of public notice ahout

the program and the eligibility limitations placed on potential applicants.This year EPA is

trying a user support service where the public can call the service to conduct a search for

them. This seems to he working well, but Ls extremely resource intensive.

The fee policies under the Freedom of information Act may he instruslive here. whert .

a separate fee structure is established for commercial and non-commercial users. We

recommend that the Department of Education review Ft )IA in developing its tee poi ics ii

this online system.

B. Develop an outreach and trainingplan.
Because of the newness of online systems and the need to make the public aware if

postsecondary opportunities, it is critical that the Department of Education reach out to du,

ferent parts of the public to make it aware of the electronic service. It could, for example.

send notices to every secondary and
postsecondary school, libraries, andother inyl itut,rms,

A public service advertisingcampaign could he developed for radio and television rnat

would prumote usz of the service. .

Equally as important as outreach is training. Wr would recommend Mat the Depart

alerts of Education develop a framing plan that is subject lii public c mment The 1r31n1n.g

plan shruld involve regional sessions to train guidance counselors. teachers, and other

school personnel: college admission officers: librarians: parents and students; and other in-

terested organizations and individuals. The training should cover the basics of

telecommunications, how to use the system, and interpretation of the informant in asailabh,

7S
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9. Se up sysSem.
Our experience in setting up RIK NET showed that we were able to respond to public

queries without enormous cast. It takes about a year, however. before the bugs in a new sys-

tem are ironed out. Therefore, would recommend that a pilot project tie started vers

early to-beta" test it.

Jo. Get unguixgfiedibaci te waif, srnice.
Ongoing feedback from users is imperative to make sure the system tesponds to the

needs of the public. Such feedback will be important in assessing what new inform:dam

needs to be added to the system.

CONaUSION

Improving educational opportunities for low-income and minority piipulations is no

easy task, hut is a fundamental tenet of American soriety. There are many challenges to

creasing "aceess" to. and "choice" among, postsecondary options. One of the rnost essential

elements is availability of up-to-date, accurate information about financial

Improving dissemination of fuamcial aid information should nut OCCUT in a vacuum
What we have talked about today could serve as the first step in implementing a publicly ac,

cessible electronic inventory and locator system to federal information products. serv

and systems. Starting with postsecondary information. it could expand to other Deparuncin

of Ecucation information resources and eventually irwolve the enure government.

Such a governmentwide inventory/locator has heen mandated since I 4811 under the

Papervork Reduction Art, hut has not been implemented. It has not been implemented.

part, because there has been no vision of how to proceed We hope this effort to provide
postsecondary financial aid Mformation could provuie the impetusfor development of a

decenVatized Fritem operated by each agency, available to the public through a single
phone number. The public could call the phone number and be "gatewayed" to the ii;tor

non he or she needed.

'fbe advent of new and more widely available electronic t:chniilogy has changed the

terms of the pithcy debate about public access to gosernment information. With the gt tiW

ut neW technologies, OUT appetite for information has grown and our 3hillty to process is b,Is

increased accordingly. The need is real and the teehnolop is now present, itut the

directives for affirmation dissemination principles are not. We hope that Congress will laic

the lead in developing an information policy to respond to the challenges of 1os,0s.

We commend the subcommittee for holding this hear mg today on improving access to

student financial aid. Your interest in harnessing newer information technologies is a first

..tcp fp% ard mh development a compretensise pokey on the management of giwvrnna-i ot-

hirmaturn resources.

1. 7 c,
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SENATOR WARREN B. RUDMAN
QUESTIONS FOR THE RECORD -- DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

I. The process for applying for federal student financial
assistance can be complex and confusing. In order to obtain

a student loan, students must -- (1) complete a 4-page
application requesting financial information including the

value of assets such as a home or business and other real

estate and investments, (2) verify the accuracy of the
processed application and provide that information in the

form of a student aid report to their college financial aid
office, (3) select a private lender and (4) submit a separate
loan application to that lender.

- Has the Department looked at ways of simplifying this

process?
- What advice can you provide students and their families in

selecting a lender? Do loan application procedures vary by

lender?

2. The Department provides a free application for students to

use in applying for Federal Student Aid; however, most
colleges require that students complete a Financial Aid Form

(FAF) for procesaing by the College Scholarship Service or

the American College Testing Service for which a fee is

assessed.

- Since the forms are virtually identical and the need
analysis the same -- based upon a statutory formula -- why

are students required by colleges to use the CSS forms? In

other words, why should students have to pay for a service

that the Department of Education provides free of charge?

3 Most of my constituents appear to be aware of the primary
federal student aid programs such as Pell Grants and Stafford

Loans. However, there seems to be an information gap in

terms of identifying non-federal sources of student

assistance.

- What can the Department do to increase the availability of

information regarding private sources of student aid7 Are

there existing comprehensive listings of private aid or is

this information available only through a piecemeal

approach?

I S
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SENATOR WARREN B. RUDMAN
QUESTIONS FOR THE RECORD -- Dr. Dallas Martin, National

Association of Student Financial Aid
Administrators

1. The Department of Education provides a free application for
students to use in applying for Federal Student Aid; however,
most colleges also require that students complete a Financial
Aid Form (FAF) for processing by the College Scholarship
Serves or the American College Testing Service for which a
fee is assessed.

- Since the forms are virtually identical and the need
analysis the same -- based upon a statutory formula -- why
are students required by colleges to use the CSS or ACTS
forms? In other words, why should students have to pay for
a service that the Department of Education provides free of
charge?

- Do participating colleges receive any portion of the fees
charged by CSS or ACTS for processing financial aid
applications?

2. Are student financial aid administrators equipped to provide
students with comprehensive information on private sources of
student aid? Are you aware of any comprehensive listings of
such assistance?

1 8 1
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May 28, 1991

The Honorable Herb Kohl
Chairman
Subcomminee on Government
lnfoimadoo and Regulation

702 Senate Han OW Building
Washington. DC 2051114903

Dear Senator Kohl:

Per your mimes:. I have enclosed the responses to the questions which Senator Warren

Rudman raised regarding how we can impzuve access to student financial aid information.

In addition, let me personally think you for taking time in= your busy schedule to address

the Wisconsin Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators earlier this month at

their Me meeting. Regrettably could not stay to bear your remarks, but the feedback

which I received was very positive.

Your continuing interest in financial aid. and the help of your excellent staff, is greatly

appreciated by all of us.

If you need any furdwr information or help. please feel fire to contact me.

Sincerely,

Dallas Martin
Fmsidens

ADMArt

1 S2
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Responses from the National Association of Student
Financial Aid Administrators to Senator

Warren Rudman's Questions

1 The Department if Education provides a free application for students to use in applying
for Federal St lident Aid; however, most colleges also require that students complete a
Financial Aid Form (FAF) for processing by the College Scholarship Service or the
American College Testing Service for which a fee is assessed.

Sint-c the forms are virtually identical and the need analysis the same-based upon statuwry
formula-why arc students required by colleges to use the CSS or ACTS forms? In other

words, why should students have to pay for a service that the Department 0- Education
pr.,vides free if charge?

Do participating colleges receive any portion of the fees charged In, CSS or ACM for
processing financial aid applications?

A student can use any of thc forms listed below to apply for Federal aid including a Pell
Oranl. To consider a student for aid from non-Federal sources as well, a school may

specify which of the forms listed below the student should complete. The forms are

1. Applicatum fur Federal Student Atd (AFSA). The U.S. Department or Education's form;

2. Application for Pennsylvania State Grant and Federal Studeru Aid, The Pennsylvania

Higher 1:ducation Assistance Agency's (PHEAA's) form;

3. Applwation for Federal and State Student Aid (APSSA). CSX's form

4. Singlefile Form. United Student Aid Funds (USAF's) form:

5 &unity Financial Statement (FES). The American College Testing (ACM Program's
form:

b. Financial Aid Form (FAF). The College Scholarship Service's (CSS's) form.

If a student wants to apply for Federal aid only, all the forms are free. (lhe student will
need to fill out only certain Federal "core" sections of the form. The application will tell
thc student which sections those are.) Then, the student must check a box to have the
information forwanied to the Federal processing center. The box is in the middle of the

form.

If the student wants to apply for non-Federal aid as well, they will have to till out some

additional information that all the forms except the AFSA collect. ACT and CSS charge a

fee for processing that extra information. So. while applying for Federal aid is always free.
students may have to pay a fee to apply for non-Federal aiddepending on which form a

school asks students to use.

The costs for collecting and processing the additional data has ,o be paid for by someone

since the Education Depamnent will only reimburse thesr servicvrs for the cost associated

with collecting and processing required Federal data. ACT and CSS have always utiliz
"student fees" to cover these costs. whereas Pennsylvania Higher Education Assaistance
Agency has subsidized the costs from state appropriations for Pennsylvania students. United

Student Aid Funds and CSX are newer processors and, therefore, are currently subsidizing

their additional cost from other sources of revenue.

1 S 3
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Colleges and universities do not receive any portion of the fees that are charged by CSS or

ACT.

2. Are student financial aid administrators equipped to provide student% with

comprehensive information on private sources (i student aid? Are you aware of any

comprehensive listings of such assistance?

Most ftnancial aid administrators are able to pmvide students with written information about

Fedend, state, institutional, and private sources of financial aid. The information which they

provide to students on private aid sources, however, is usually not as comprehensive as is

their information on dte other sources. The reason for this is the multiplicity of physic

sources. many of which are only available to students in a given locale or with particular

characteristics. As such, it is more diffieuh and very costly for schools to distribute and

ascertain comprehensive sources of all private aid. There are. nowever, a number of

commercial firms which do publish national listings of private sources of financial aid. Fur

the most pan. these sources can be found in public Kiwi libraries. Many can also be

purchased by students from bookstores. Some of the better sources are published by

Barron's, Lovejoy, Feingold, Peterson's. and Kessler.

In addition, there are several commercial "scholarship search" types of automated services

available to students for a fee. The quality of these services vaiy greatly. and some are

more comprehensive than others. Students access these sources by filling out forms or

questionnaires, pay a fee (usually $25 to $75), and then have their profile data matched

against a data bank of known sources. If the firm feels that a student might qualify for one

of the programs. then it will provide the student with the nave and address of the same. If

a student is willing to spend some time in the library, they can usually find the same

sources on their own without having to pay a fee.

1 4
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urarF.r) STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCAITON

onnea O uccuusnos AND CIZINGNICANONAL AFFAIRS

June 20, 1991

The Honorable Herbert Kohl
Chairman, Subcommitte on
Government Information and Regulations

Committee on Govrnment Operations
United States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20610

Dear Mr. Chairman,

Attached are responses to queetions you provided to the
Department regarding ite operations in disseminating information
about student aid programs and simplifying aid application
procedures. I regret the dlay in providing a response to these

questions.

If I can offer any other assistance, pleaee let me know.

Sincerely,

464146i1 ../

W lam O. Monsen
ting Assistant Secretary

/1)(

Attachment
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Port A: Has the arbnent looked at ways of simpleing the

=6):tudent aid and financial aid process?

Secretary Alexander agrees that both the Federal student financial aid
application and delivery process sze too complicated and burdensome. One of the
Wet goals in these early stages of his tem* at the Dope:us:ea of Education has
been to seek ways to reduce the complexity of the student aid process.

In our provost" for the reauthorization el the Higher Education Act, we have
=atseveral ehm to.the legislation that would eimplify the application,

.: streaunlbied definition of student independency, a unified need analysis
fininnla fbr all Federal student aid program., and more provisions for low-
imams families to skip certain questions. We are also p.og to require
lenders to nee a common application fin all guin=teed student Ima. In
addition. we have proposed to deep* the process ibr obtaining a deferment for a
guaranteed student loan by consolidating the various categories of eligibility to
two: hardship and in-school.

We are also actively soliciting the participation of the groups of individuals outside
the government who have the most direct interest in improving the financial aid
delivery procesa: the schools and the students. A panel is being fermed made up
of financial old adminisixoters who have daily contact with the students and who
manage the financial aid programs and Nods in postsecondary educational
institutions, Pius, we are setablishing a group of students to assist in the review
of the application design and wording md to advise the Department , in general,
on ways to simplify the entire aid delivery system.

1 S6
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Question 1 Part ; What advice can the Department provide students and their
families in selecting a lender;

Generally, the Department intbrms applicants of the Mowing:

For previous borrower& the Department will instruct the a r cant either to
contact their previous lender or to contact the financial aid 6.ii at the
school they plan to attend. Schools as better ahle to handle these typo of
inquiries since they work more cl *sly with Guarantee agencies and have a
more comprehensive list of lenders that have been used by previous
borrower&

For first time borrower& the Department will instruct the applicant to
contact either a lender whom the fitugly has used in the past, or the
financial aid office at the school the student plans to attend--br the same
reasons mentioned above

1.. S- 7
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Question - Part C. Do the loan application procedwee vary by lender?

bloitztAl:radtm%plication procedures do not vary by lender, but there is no *Jingle
application for guaranteed etudent loans. The loan guarantee

nionut sonde the arplimult a loan appilcatlon, or the school obtains an application
from th school hurler. Tha applicant, the and the lender complete
certain designMed portions of ths form. Ons of our legislative proposals is to
require a main= application for use by all tandems, schools, lenders, and
guarantse agencies.

iss
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Question 2: Since student aid applications are vinualliy identical and since the

the CSS form? ik? ehoZikstVesnt7tzdtobypoycleirtbrto ust
need analysa are also

1167ViClet that the Irpiartment o"Zducatlon provides at no coot to ths applicant?

Canvass established and mandated the concept of the Multi* Data
siisaciss, alloodn1 _students to aPnly for 'Federal aid u4 one of the need
analysis flume. This mandato was issued in order to the problem
multiple ibrms ibr wham types af 'Want aid (*.g. Federal, State and
institutional aid). They also mandated that nothing in the stftute should prohibit
an NIDE fiem collecting additional data as may he neeesamy to detarinine
eligibility 1hr non-Federal aid. Since States and institudima may have their own
sperifio roguirements lb? awasding State and institutional aid, =Es, such as
C88, collect additional data which enables schools to award Stat, and
institutional aid using a single Sum mad* as the CBS financial Aid Form. Unlika
the AFEIA which collects mlyixdbrmation mandated Iv the staftts to determina
ar applicant's eligibility for redmml student aid, =Ks such as C8S *Aid
additonal information (e.g. Stato specific information) which thdlitates awarding
State and institutional aid. Plasm note that the applicant ia not charged a fee for
completing the Federal partian of an BiDE application, but only for coniPleting the
additional non-Federid portion.

1 b
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(NMI) z,-rArEs inwARTMENT OF Et n It'ATION

t)I1.11 mit) t ov:Rt s.sioNic. AA*,

June 20, 1991

The Honorable Herbert Kohl
Chairman. Subcommittee on
Government Information and Regulations
Committee on Government Operations
United States Senate
Washington, D.C. 20',10

Dear Mr. Chairman,

Attached are responses to questions you provided to the

Department regarding its operations in disseminating information

about student aid programs and simplifying aid application

procedures. I regret the delay in providing a response to these

questions.

If I can oftvr ,tny ottwt It.q1!;tance, plvaGe let ne know,

sincorely,

/km,5
W)tlian O. han'wn
4/7ting
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Question 1 - Part A: Has the Department looked at ways of simplifying the
Federal student aid and fmancial aid process?

Secretary Alexander agrees that both the Federal student financial aid
application and delivery process are too complicated and burdensome. One of the
first goals in these early stages of his tenure at the Department of Education has
been to seek ways to reduce the complexity of the student aid process.

in our proposals for the reauthorization of the Higher Education Act, we have
suggested several changes to the legislation that would simplify the application,
such as a streamlined definititu, of student independency, a unified need analysis
formula for all Federal student aid programs, and more prcviabris for low-
income families to skip certain questions. We are also proposing to require
lenders to use a common application for all guaranteed student loans. In
addition, we have proposed to simplify the process for obtaining a deferment for a
guaranteed student loan by consolidating the various categories of eligibility to
two: hardship and in-school.

We are also actively soliciting the participation of the groups of individuals outside
the government who have the most direct interest in improving the finaneial aid
delivery process: the schools and the students. A panel is being formed made up
of financial aid administrators who have daily contact with the students and who
manage the financial aid programs and funds in postsecondary educational
institutions. Plus, we are establishing ^ i.roup of students to assist in the review
of the application design and wording a.-.3 to advise the Depzirtment . in genera!,
on ways to simplify the entire aid delivery system.
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Question I - Part 1 3 What advice can the Department provick students and their

families in selecting a lender?

Generally, the Department informs applicants of the following:

For previous borrowers, the Department will instruct the applicant either to

contact their previous lender or to contact the financial aid office at the

school they plan to attend. Schools are better able to handle these types of

inquiries since they work more closely with Guarantee agenthes and have a

more comprehensive list of lenders that have been used by previous

borrowers.

For first time borrowers, the Department will instruct the applicant to

contact either a lender whom the family has used in the past, or the

financial aid office at the school the student plans toattendfor the same

reasons mentioned above.

1" 9
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Question 1 - Part C: Do the loan application procedures vary by knder?

Moat loan application procedures do not vary by lender, but there is no single
standardized application for guaranteed student loans. The loan guarantee
agency sends the applirmt a loan application, or the school obtains an application
from the school lender. The applicant, the school, and the lender complete
certain designated portions of the form. One of our legislative proposals is to
require a common application for use by all students, schools, lenders, and
guarantee agencies.

1 9 3
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Question 2: Since student aid applications are virtually identical and since the
need analyses are also identical, why are applicants required by colkges to use
the CSS forrn? More importantly, why should students have to pay a fee for
services that the Department ofEdiwation provides at no cost to the applicant?

Congress established and mandated the concept of the Multiple Data Entry (MDE)
agencies, allowing students to apply for Federal aid using one of the existing need
analysis forms. This mandate was issued in order to address the problem of
multiple forms for various types of student aid (e.g. Federal, State and
institutional aid). They also mandated that nothing in the statute should prohibit
an MDE from collecting additional data as may be necessary to determine
eligNlity for non-Federal aid. Since States and institutions may have their own
specific requirements for awarding State and institutional aid, MDEs, such as
CSS, collect additional data which enables schools to award State and
institutional aid using a single form such as the CSS Financial Aid Form. Unlike
the AFSA which collects only information mandated by the statute to determine
an applicant's eligibility for Federal student aid, MDEs such as CSS collect
additional information (e.g. State specific information) which facilitates awarding
State and institutional aid. Please note that the applicant is not charged a fee for
completing the Federal portion of an MDE application, but only for completing the
additional non-Federal portion.
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Question 3: What can the Department do to increase the availability of
information regarding private sources of aid? Are these existing comprehensive
listings of private aid or is this information only available through a piecemeal
approach?

We urge students and parents to seek aid from as many sources as possible, both
Federal and non-Federal, and suggest useful sources of inquiry and research.
For example, our primary information publication for parents and students - the
Student Guide (attached) begins with two pages of tips and suggestions for finding
out about non-Federal sources of aid. Our *Key to the Future publication for high
school students begins with similar advice, and the information specialists at the
toll-free student aid information number give callers general suggestions on
sources to check for non-Federal aid. We also publish abooklet on selected
sources of Federal and private aid for minorities and women (attached).

There are a number of private-sector publications and information services that
have extensive listings of various aid sources, many of which are listed at the
beginning of the Student Guide. We have felt that, rather than competing with
these enterprises, our role should be to encourage and provide guidance for
finding information sources.

f?5 44-999 (192)
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